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Qualifications
A. Linda McLaughlin

I am an applied microeconomist and an Affiliated Consultant at National Economic
Research Associates, Inc. (“NERA”). | have conducted research on entertainment and media
industries for over 40 years. | have analyzed marketplace prices paid for copyright licenses,
reasonable rates for such licenses, and the distribution of fees collected to individual rights
owners in a variety of media, including cable networks, broadcast stations, television programs,
motion pictures, books, music compositions and recorded songs. | have submitted reports to and
testified before the Copyright Royalty Judges (“CRJs”) and Copyright Arbitration Royalty Panel
(“CARP”) concerning the distribution of cable royalty funds for 2000-2003 and 2004-2005, the
compulsory license fee for satellite-retransmitted broadcast stations, the distribution of satellite
royalty funds, and the costs and revenues of the record labels affiliated with the major U.S.
record companies. In addition, I have submitted reports to the Federal Communications
Commission and the Federal Trade Commission, and have testified before state and federal
courts and arbitrators concerning entertainment market issues. A detailed statement of my

qualifications is attached as Appendix 1.

B. David Blackburn

I am an applied microeconomist and Director for NERA, an economic consulting firm
based in White Plains, New York. I am based in NERA’s Washington, D.C. office. | earned a
B.Sc. in Applied Mathematics and Economics from Brown University and a M.A. and Ph.D. in
Economics from Harvard University. | have taught economics courses at the graduate and
undergraduate level at several institutions. | have written and spoken publicly on a number of

economic issues, including intellectual property issues.

At NERA, my practice has focused on the valuation of intellectual property, on antitrust
related matters, and on the calculation of economic damages in commercial disputes. A
substantial quantity of my economic research, including my Ph.D. dissertation and my testimony

in several legal intellectual property disputes has focused on markets for, and valuations of,
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copyrights. This has involved copyrights for a variety of entertainment media, including film,
television, and music. | have submitted reports to and testified before the CRJs in the Webcaster
IV proceeding, and have submitted reports and/or testified before federal courts and the Patent
Trial and Appeal Board on intellectual property issues. My CV, including a list of my recent

testimony, is attached as Appendix 2.

1. Assignment and Summary of Opinions

Counsel for the Public Broadcasting Service has asked us to assess the relative value of
distant Public Television (“PTV”) stations imported by cable system operators (“CSOs”) during
the time period between 2010 and 2013, inclusive. In preparing this report, we have reviewed
information from a variety of sources, including data from Cable Data Corporation (“CDC”),
testimony and data provided by other parties in this proceeding and past determinations as to the
appropriate distribution of Cable Royalty Funds. In addition, we have relied on our experience
and training as applied microeconomists and our experience in the economic analysis of the

value of intellectual property.

We reserve the right to supplement our opinions should additional information or

testimony become available to us.

Based on our research to date, we have reached the following conclusions:

e Given the information currently available to us, an appropriate method for
determining the relative marketplace value of distant PTV stations is to adjust the
results of the 2004-05 average share awarded by the Copyright Royalty Judges for
changes in relative value that have occurred since that time;

e The relative increase in carriage of distant PTV stations since 2004-05 indicates
that the relative marketplace value of distant PTV signals has increased. PTV’s
share of distant subscriber instances has increased 32 percent in 2010-13

compared to 2004-05. Based on the relative increase in carriage alone, an
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appropriate distribution to PTV from the share of the Basic Fund (excluding
music)® would be 9.9 percent on average between 2010-13, or on an annual basis,
9.3 percent in 2010, 10.2 percent in 2011, 9.8 percent in 2012, and 10.4 percent in
2013.

e In addition, based on changes since 2004-05 in other measures supplied by
experts for other parties—CSO survey value results, CSO econometric value
results, and viewing—the relative share of distant PTV programming grew at least
approximately as much, and in most cases substantially more, than PTV’s
increase in carriage. CSOs appear to be valuing each distant PTV carriage
instance at a relatively higher dollar value and subscribers appear to be increasing
their viewing intensity of distant PTV stations. Based on changes in these other
measures, an appropriate distribution to PTV from the share of the Basic Fund
would be about 9.9 to 20.8 percent on average between 2010-13.

e This range of distributions to PTV is in line with the 2010-13 shares of the Basic
Fund derived from the estimates of value to CSOs supplied by other parties in
their direct testimony: augmented Bortz survey: 9.3 percent; Horowitz survey:
14.9 percent; Israel econometric study: 15.6 percent; and Crawford econometric

study: 19.7 percent.

Il. Background
A. Recent History of Cable Royalty Distributions

In their most recent determination, the CRJs concluded that the relative marketplace
value of distantly carried PTV programming amounted to 7.7 percent of the Basic Fund

(excluding music) in 2004 and 7.4 percent of the Basic Fund (excluding music) in 2005, or an

In this testimony, we will use the term “Basic Fund” or “Basic Fund (excluding music)” interchangeably to refer
to the Basic Fund awarded to categories other than Music Claimants and National Public Radio. We will use the
term “Basic Fund (including music)” to refer to the Basic Fund awarded to all categories, including Music
Claimants, other than National Public Radio. Finally, we will use the term “Combined Royalty Funds” to refer
to the combined Basic Fund, 3.75 Fund, and Syndex Fund. [See 2004-05 Determination, pp. 29, 58-60.]
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average of 7.55 percent over the two periods. This determination was based on the CRJs’
assessment of several types of evidence, including in particular Bortz surveys of cable operators’
valuations of programming types, as augmented to correct certain omissions in those surveys,

and further adjusted based upon regression analysis evidence and other considerations.?

B. “Relative Marketplace Value”

According to the 2004-05 Determination for cable royalty funds, as well as previous
proceedings, the standard for determining the distribution of the royalties for cable-retransmitted
distant signals among the claimant groups that supply the compensable programming is relative
marketplace value, which is determined by the demand of the cable operators for the distant
signals they choose to import.® In past proceedings, the CARP has noted that “relative
marketplace value [is] the sole relevant criterion that should be applied” and this standard—to
“simulate...market valuation” as if there were no compulsory licensing regime—was adopted

and has been carried forward by the CRJs.*

As has been found in prior distribution determinations, assessing the relative marketplace
value of the various claimants is a challenge because no such marketplace exists, nor does a
comparable marketplace which could otherwise be used as a benchmark for assessing the relative
value provided by the various claimants. In the next section, we discuss these challenges and

various possible solutions for overcoming them.

The CRIJs relied on Ms. McLaughlin’s testimony in reaching these determinations. CRJs, Distribution Order, In
the Matter of Distribution of the 2004 and 2005 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2007-3 CRB CD 2004-2005,
June 29, 2010 (*“2004-05 Determination™), pp. 27-30; Testimony of Linda McLaughlin, In the Matter of
Distribution of the 2004 and 2005 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2007-3 CRB CD 2004-2005, June 1, 2009,
corrected September 30, 2009 (“McLaughlin, 2009”), available in Written Direct Statement of Public
Television, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-
13). The augmentations to the Bortz surveys from 2004 and 2005 included valuations for cable operators
excluded from the original samples because they carried only distant PTV and/or Canadian signals.

2004-05 Determination, pp. 6-8. A recent decision from the Copyright Royalty Judges confirms the relative
market value standard. [CRJs, Initial Determination of Distributions of 1999 Cable Royalty Funds (Phase 1), In
re Distribution of 1998 and 1999 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2008-1 CRB CD 98-99 (Phase I1), December
10, 2014 (*1999 Phase Il Initial Determination™), pp. 10-14.]

* CRJs, Distribution Order, In the Matter of Distribution of the 2000-2003 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No.
2008-2 CRB CD 2000-2003, March 3, 2010 (“2000-03 Determination™), p. 15 (emphasis in original); CARP,
Report of the Copyright Arbitration Royalty Panel to the Librarian of Congress in Docket No. 2001-8 CARP CD
98-99, p. 10. [Summarized in the 2000-03 Determination, p. 15.]
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C. Assessing Relative Marketplace Value of the Various Distant Signals

Because no marketplace exists for the non-compulsory licensing of distant signals, one
cannot simply observe the relative values of the signals provided by the claimants to the cable
royalty funds. In cases like this involving valuation of intellectual property (“IP”), there are
several tools which are commonly relied upon to determine what the value at issue (or relative
values at issue) would be if such a market existed. For example, one common practice is to rely
on the marketplace valuations of similar IP as benchmarks, which may need to be adjusted to
account for various differences between the valuation of the benchmark IP and the IP at issue, in
order to assess the value of the IP at issue.” However, in this case, we are not aware of the
existence of such marketplace benchmarks. Instead, we must turn to other methods to assess the

relative marketplace value provided by the various claimants.

The challenge of assessing the relative value of a variety of IP is not unique to the
distribution of cable royalty funds among the various claimants in this proceeding. Indeed,
determining how to divide value among various contributors to that value is one of the most
active areas of economic analysis. For example, economists have studied this bargaining
problem restricted to only two parties, and several methods for assessing fair divisions of the
bargain have been developed, including the Nash Bargaining Solution.® This bargaining context
also arises commonly in the calculation of economic damages resulting from the infringement of
patent and other IP rights, under the guise of a “reasonable royalty” determination. The literature
and court decisions relating to determining a reasonable royalty reveal that it can often be

difficult to determine how to best make such an apportionment of value.

For example, many proceedings before the CRJs have relied heavily on the use of benchmarks, and have
explicitly noted that the use of such benchmarks can often be the best available information for determining
market value of IP. The recent Web IV decision focuses primarily on various benchmarks presented by both
sides as the basis for their rate proposals. See, generally, CRJs, Determination, In re Determination of Royalty
Rates and Terms for Ephemeral Recording and Webcasting Digital Performance of Sound Recordings (Web 1V),
Docket No. 14-CRB-0001-WR (2016-2020), December 16, 2015.

See, e.g., Andreu Mas-Colell, Michael D. Whinston and Jerry R. Green, Microeconomic Theory, Oxford
University Press, 1995 (“MWG”), pp. 838-46.
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When more than two parties are present, the challenge is amplified. One such solution to
this problem is the so-called “Shapley value,” which can—given appropriate data and
information—be calculated via an algorithm in which the marginal contribution of each
contributor is measured in each possible ordering of the various contributors.” This results in a
Shapley value for every contributor in which each contributor receives the average of all the
possible marginal values that it contributes. If there are only two contributors, the Shapley
values are the same as the Nash Bargaining Solution, but with more contributors, the Shapley
value becomes increasingly more complex. Indeed, with n contributors, there are n! (n factorial)
different orderings of the various contributors; thus with even six contributors, one must assess
6!, or 720, different orderings, and the marginal contribution of all six contributors in each of
those 720 orderings. Accordingly, although Shapley values have appeal—as the CRJs observed
in the 1998-1999 Phase 11 cable royalty proceeding®—it is simply impractical to apply a Shapley
value approach to an allocation proceeding in which there are so many claimants, due to the
sheer number of different calculations that would be required, and also due to the difficulty in
collecting the relevant information for assessing each of those marginal contributions. The
example cited in the 1999 Phase Il Initial Determination shows the power and usefulness of the
Shapley value and its appeal in these proceedings, but doing so on the scale required here is

impractical, if not impossible.

If we lack reliable marketplace benchmarks and the direct calculation of relative value
via Shapley value calculations, what is left? In past proceedings, certain parties have argued that
the relative value of the various signals can be assessed by looking at how the fees were
generated.” However, such an analysis has rightly been found to be flawed because the fees

generated by cable retransmissions of distant signals do not depend at all on the relative

See, e.g., Lloyd S. Shapley, “A Value for N-Person Games,” in The Shapley Value: Essays in Honor of Lloyd S.
Shapley, Alvin E. Roth, Ed., Cambridge University Press, 1988, pp. 31-40; Alvin E. Roth, “Introduction to the
Shapley value,” in The Shapley Value: Essays in Honor of Lloyd S. Shapley, Alvin E. Roth, Ed., Cambridge
University Press, 1988, pp. 1-27.

® 1999 Phase Il Initial Determination, pp. 14-16.

See, e.g., arguments put forward by the Canadian Claimants in the 2000-03 Determination. [Summarized in
2000-03 Determination, pp. 8-9.]
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marketplace value of the signals,*® but rather are a function of the payment rules themselves

which are the result of legislative compromise and are arbitrary.**

Instead, in our opinion, given the information available to us, the most reliable
methodology for assessing the relative marketplace value of distant PTV programming is to rely
on the relative marketplace value from the 2004-05 Determination, which was largely based on
the augmented Bortz survey of cable operators, as a starting point and adjust PTV’s relative
marketplace value for observable changes in circumstances since that time.'? In this case, we
know that the CRJs determined that PTV’s relative marketplace value was 7.7 percent of the
Basic Fund (excluding music) in 2004 and 7.4 percent of the Basic Fund (excluding music) in
2005, or an average of 7.55 percent. From that starting point, the question remains as to how that
distribution should be adjusted due to any changes in the relative marketplace value in 2010-13

as compared to 2004-05.

In our opinion it is appropriate to look at changes in carriage of the various distant signals
to assess how the relative marketplace value of the various signals has changed over time. While
observations relating to carriage cannot be used to fully assess the relative marketplace value of
the various signals, they do provide direct insight into how the relative value of the different

distant signals has changed over time. When a CSO chooses to carry one station instead of

10 See Testimony of Linda McLaughlin, In the Matter of Distribution of the 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003 Cable
Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2008-2 CRB CD 2000-2003, January 30, 2009, available in Written Direct
Statement of Public Television, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-
CRB-0010-CD (2010-13). [Summarized in 2000-03 Determination, p. 22.]

See, e.g., Copyright Royalty Tribunal, Adjustment of the Royalty Rate for Cable Systems, Docket No. CRT 81-
2, November 19, 1982, 47 FR 52146 at 52154. The Tribunal noted that “[t]he rates were established as a
legislative compromise, they are arbitrary.”

11

As an example, all systems must pay at least a minimum fee equal to that of importing one distant signal
equivalent (“DSE”)—even if they import fewer than one DSE—and so the value gained by the decision to
import signals up to that level need not bear any relation to the fee paid. During 2010 to 2013, about one-third of
distant signal subscriber instances (i.e., one subscriber receiving one distant signal) are in systems that import no
more than one DSE. [Data provided by CDC.]

The CRJs have previously explained that proving changed circumstances is, essentially, methodologically
equivalent to direct, reliable estimates of relative valuations; that is, one need not demonstrate both a direct
calculation of relative valuations and separate proof of changed circumstances. [2004-05 Determination, p. 27
and fn 18.]

12
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another, it is demonstrating that the net expected value generated by that station is greater than

the net expected value generated by any other available station that it did not choose to carry.

This holds true not just among distant station programming choices, but among the
broader choices of cable networks, local and distant stations. Simply put, CSOs must choose the
package of channels that attracts and retains subscribers to maximize their profitability. Thus,
for example, if a CSO chooses to add a distant PTV station rather than carrying other distant
stations, this reveals that the CSO expects to create more value for itself and its subscribers by
carrying that PTV station; economists refer to this demonstration of relative value as “revealed
preference.”™® Revealed preference allows us to clearly see that, if certain stations and signals
are being added more often than others (that is, CSOs are choosing to carry certain stations and

signals more often), then the relative value of those signals are rising relative to past periods.**

Changes in other measures also can indicate whether a specific distant signal
programming category is relatively more or less valuable. For example, increases in relative
viewing of that category can indicate that subscribers value it to a greater extent. Similarly,
increases in relative value to CSOs as measured by surveys and econometric analyses can show
that CSOs value that category more highly than before. This is particularly the case if these
changes are not simply reflecting changes already captured by changes in carriage—that is, a
relatively larger quantity of that category was selected—nbut also showing that there is relatively

greater subscriber viewing per minute or value to CSOs per additional minute of that category.

To that end, in the remainder of this report, we assess, first, how the carriage of PTV and
other distant stations’ programming has changed since 2004-05, and then consider changes in

measures of viewing and value based on data supplied by experts for other parties.

B See, e.g., MWG, pp. 10-11.

" We note that among signals that were previously carried and are still carried, we cannot assess whether or not
these signals have become more or less valuable, based on carriage changes alone, other than noting that they did
not reduce in relative value enough to be dropped by the CSO.

However, as noted by the CRJs in the 2004-05 Determination in response to some of the omissions in the
unadjusted Bortz survey, the choice to carry or not to carry programming can directly reveal relative value, as “a
cable system that chooses only PTV or Canadian programming may be implicitly making a choice in favor of a
100% relative value score for such programming.” (Emphasis in original.) [2004-05 Determination, p. 15.]
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V. Carriage Changes Since 2004 and 2005

The composition of the distant signals imported by CSOs in 2010-13 has changed since
2004-05.%> In particular, cable subscribers received more distant PTV stations and fewer distant
network, independent and Canadian stations. On average, cable operators that carried distant
signals chose to carry somewhat fewer total distant signals per subscriber: 1.284 distant signals
per subscriber in 2010-13 compared with 1.457 distant signals per subscriber in 2004-05. This
decline in total distant signals per subscriber was due to a decline in the average number of
distant signals per subscriber for network stations (a drop of 0.109 per subscriber), U.S.
independent stations (a drop of 0.081 per subscriber), Canadian stations (a drop of 0.011 per
subscriber), and Low Power stations (a drop of 0.003 per subscriber), offset by an increase in

PTV stations (an increase of 0.028 per subscriber). See Chart 1.

> These and other data in our report represent data compiled by CDC for Form 3 cable systems. Form 3 systems

paid 97 percent of royalties in 2004-05 and 99 percent in 2010-13.

16 Based on data supplied by CDC. The total includes a small number of distant Mexican stations.

One notable change since 2005 has been the growth in the use of multicast signals. Of these multicast signals,
most are PTV multicast signals; out of the 14.9 million total multicast subscriber instances per half year period
from 2010 through 2013, 87 percent were PTV multicast instances.

9
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Average Number of Distant Signals Per Subscriber, By Type Chart 1
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This change in carriage choices by CSOs can also be seen by looking at the distribution
of the number of distant subscriber instances. (The number of “distant subscriber instances” is
the number of distant signals received by each subscriber, summed for all subscribers. In other
words, one distant subscriber instance is one subscriber receiving one distant signal.) While the
number of distant signals per subscriber has fallen since 2004 and 2005, there has been an
increase in the total number of subscribers.’” As a result, total distant subscriber instances have
increased from an average of about 70.7 million in 2004-05 to about 71.8 million in 2010-13.
During this same time, the number of PTV distant subscriber instances increased from about 8.5
million to about 11.4 million. Thus, PTV accounted for about 12 percent of the distant
subscriber instances in 2004-05 and about 16 percent in 2010-13. U.S. independents also

7" Somewhat more subscribers were in Form 3 cable systems that chose to carry distant signals in 2010-13 (on
average 56 million or 91 percent of all subscribers) than in 2004-05 (on average 49 million or 82 percent of all
subscribers). Data were supplied by CDC.
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increased their share, although by only about 3 percentage points, while networks and, to a lesser

extent, Canadian and Low Power stations had share declines. See Chart 2.8

Percent Distribution of Form 3 Distant Subscriber Instances, By Type Chart 2
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V. Adjustment to PTV’s Share of Basic Fund Based on Carriage Changes

PTV increased its share of subscriber instances by about 32 percent (i.e., from about 12
percent to about 16 percent). As we have described above, this growth in carriage and subscriber

instances is evidence that the relative value of distant PTV signals has increased, as CSOs have

8 As we noted in footnote 15 above, the use of multicast signals is responsible for some of the increase in the use
of distant PTV signals. Approximately 94 percent of multicast PTV signals were in systems with more than one
prorated DSE, which means that in almost all cases, those systems carrying multicast PTV signals were paying
extra to carry them (i.e., paying more than the minimum fee).

PTV’s increased relative share is also attributable to factors other than increased multicasting. Even if PTV
multicast distant signals were entirely excluded in 2010-13 (while other stations’ multicast signals remain
included), the PTV share of distant signal instances would still have increased to about 14 percent (from about
12 percent).
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increasingly chosen to provide their customers with distant PTV as opposed to other distant
programming. This carriage data is particularly relevant to assessing the change in relative
marketplace value of PTV programming because the PTV category is the only category in this
proceeding that consists of all of the programming on a particular type of station.*® By contrast,
when a CSO makes a carriage decision regarding a non-PTV station, it can be difficult to
disentangle the CSQO’s relative valuation of the various types of programming carried on that
station. The fact that, on the margin, CSOs are increasingly choosing to increase the value of
their cable packages by adding distant PTV stations relative to other distant stations reveals an

increase in the relative marketplace value of distant PTV programming.

Relative to the set of programming that the CSOs were carrying in 2004 and 2005, as
shown above, CSOs have increasingly chosen to add distant PTV stations over other distant
station alternatives. Based solely on this measure, assuming there were no other evidence of
changes in the relative value of PTV programming, and in light of CSOs’ revealed preferences as
described above, an appropriate distribution for 2010 through 2013 for PTV would be to increase
its share of the Basic Fund in proportion to its growth in distant subscriber instances. PTV was
awarded 7.55 percent of the share of the Basic Fund (excluding music) in 2004-05. A 32 percent
increase in PTV’s share of distant subscriber instances in 2010-13 relative to 2004-05 would
increase PTV’s average share of the Basic Fund from the 7.55 percent that was awarded in 2004-
05 to 9.9 percent of the Basic Fund in 2010-13. These calculations can also be done on an
annual basis, relative to the 7.55 percent that was awarded in 2004-05, by calculating the annual
change in distant subscriber instances in each year relative to the 2004-05 base. As shown in
Table 1, this yields a share of 9.3 percent in 2010, 10.2 percent in 2011, 9.8 percent in 2012, and
10.4 percent in 2013.

9 CRIJs, Notice of Participant Groups, Commencement of Voluntary Negotiation Period (Allocation), and
Scheduling Order, In re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD
(2010-13), November 25, 2015, Exhibit A.
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TABLE 1
PTV Share of Basic Fund for 2010-13
Based on Growth in Share of Subscriber Instances
In Form 3 Systems

Period PTV

Adjudicated Share
Average 2004-05 7.55%

Growth in PTV Share of Subscriber Instances

2004-05 to 2010 23%
2004-05 to 2011 35%
2004-05 to 2012 30%
2004-05 to 2013 38%

Updated Share

2010 9.3%
2011 10.2%
2012 9.8%
2013 10.4%
VI. Changes in Other Measures Since 2004-05

Experts for other parties have supplied data on measures of value to CSOs from surveys
and econometric estimates, and of viewing that are comparable to 2004-05 data. On all these
measures, PTV’s share is substantially higher in 2010-13 than in 2004-05.

A. Surveys

Each year, Bortz Media & Sports Group, Inc. (Bortz) conducts a survey of a random
sample of cable operators on behalf of Joint Sports Claimants.”® The cable operators are asked

how they would allocate a fixed budget among the different programming categories on the

2 \Written Direct Testimony of James M. Trautman, Bortz Media & Sports Group, Inc., Cable Operator Valuation

of Distant Signal Non-Network Programming, December 26, 2016 (“Trautman”), in Written Direct Statement of
the Joint Sports Claimants, vol. 1, tab 1, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding
No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13).
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distant signals they actually carried in the preceding year. The survey results reflect the
collective valuations made by the eligible respondents. Certain cable systems are excluded from
the Bortz surveys: those that carry distant signals only in the PTV and/or Canadian category.

Had these omitted operators been included, those carrying only PTV stations would have been
restricted to “allocating the fixed budget” entirely to the PTV category, and similarly those
carrying only Canadian stations would have to allocate their entire budget to the Canadian
category. ? (Omitted systems that carried both PTV and Canadian stations could split their
budgets between the two categories.) Mr. Trautman acknowledges that the survey results for
PTV and Canadian program categories require adjustment because of these exclusions.?* We
testified to that adjustment for 2004-05 and now do the same for 2010-13.% That is, we compute
the values the Bortz surveys likely would have found had they not excluded from the original
samples cable operators that carried only distant PTV and/or Canadian signals. ** We refer to the

corrected results as the augmented Bortz survey.

We received the data identifying the cable operators selected to be surveyed according to
the Bortz stratified random sample but that then were excluded solely because they carried only
PTV and/or Canadian distant signals. As explained in more detail in prior testimony
incorporated here, % we recalculated the survey results, assuming that these systems had been
included in the analysis. We further assumed that these omitted systems would have a response

rate similar to those that were eligible, and that they would have followed the survey

21 The relevant Bortz survey value categories here are PBS and all other programming broadcast by U.S.

noncommercial stations and all programming broadcast by Canadian stations carried by the CSO on a distant
basis. [Trautman, pp. 17-18.]

22 Trautman, pp. 7-8. The Royalty Judges acknowledged that, without adjustment, “this exclusion clearly biases

the Bortz estimates downward for PTV and Canadian programming.” [2004-05 Determination, pp. 14-16.]

% McLaughlin, 2009, p. 11.

% In 2004 and 2005, there were ten omitted systems in each year (an average of eight carrying only PTV distant

signals and one only Canadian and one with both PTV and Canadian) compared with 251 systems eligible to be
surveyed in each year. In 2010-13, there were an average of 16 omitted systems in each year (an average of 13
carrying only PTV distant signals, one carrying only Canadian, and two with both PTV and Canadian),
compared to an average of 302 eligible systems.

% McLaughlin, 2009, pp. 7-11 and Appendix B.
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instructions. ?° We used the same stratification and weighting process that the Bortz survey

employed.  The CRJs, in their 2004-05 decision, relied on this augmented Bortz calculation in

reaching their determinations.?

Chart 3 compares the augmented Bortz results for 2004-05 and 2010-13: It shows an

increase in PTV’s average share of 24 to 37 percent (depending on whether the bottom or top

end of the range is used), or about 31 percent on average. This is in line with the 32 percent

change due to the increase in distant PTV subscriber instances alone.

26

27

28

That is, systems carrying only PTV (Canadian) distant signals would allocate 100% of their budget to PTV
(Canadian). For those carrying both PTV and Canadian, we assumed a range between 100% to PTV and 100%
to Canadian signals.

In the 2004 and 2005 surveys, there was an implied inclusion of certain noncompensable programming on
WGN. As a result, the values cable operators that import WGN ascribe to movies, syndicated series and
devotional programming are likely to include both compensable and noncompensable programming, which
would overstate the values of the compensable programming in these categories. [Trautman, p. 5 and 2004-05
Determination, pp. 16-17.] Changes were made to the 2010-13 surveys that Mr. Trautman acknowledges reduce
but do not eliminate this bias. The survey questions asked of those systems carrying WGN as their single distant
signal were tailored to focus on only compensable WGN programming. This was not done for systems carrying
WGN and other distant signals. [Trautman, pp. 7 and 30.] The augmented Bortz results do not correct for this
bias.

“We...us[e] as our starting point the augmented Bortz survey shares as calculated by Ms. McLaughlin which
includes appropriate adjustments to the PTV share...; and then, we proceed to adjust these values further...[for
Canadian and Devotional Claimants].” (footnote concerning rounding omitted). [2004-05 Determination, p. 27.]
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Augmented Bortz Survey: Chart 3
Relative Value of Distant Signal Programming, by Category
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In the 2010-13 period, another CSO survey (the Horowitz survey) was done on behalf of
Program Suppliers to replicate and improve on the methods of the Bortz survey in 2004-05.% In
particular, the Horowitz survey included systems carrying only PTV and/or Canadian distant
signals, and so is comparable to the augmented Bortz results for 2004-05. It also addresses the
issue of bias due to noncompensable programming on WGN.* Chart 4 below compares the
augmented Bortz results for 2004-05 with the Horowitz survey results for 2010-13.3" The

Horowitz survey shows an increase in the relative value to CSOs for PTV of 109 percent, much

2 Dr. Marvin Frankel selected the sample and Howard Horowitz conducted the survey. Direct Testimony of

Marvin R. Frankel, Ph. D. and Direct Testimony of Howard Horowitz, December 22, 2016 (“Frankel” and
“Horowitz”), in Written Direct Statement Regarding Allocation Methodologies of Program Suppliers, In Re
Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13). The weighted
estimate produced by Dr. Frankel and Mr. Horowitz is most closely analogous to the 2004-05 Bortz survey, and
more particularly, to the augmented Bortz results for that time period.

¥ Horowitz, p. 4.

81 Chart 4 groups the Horowitz category “other sports” with syndicated programming.
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more than the growth of distant subscriber instances alone. These results suggest that PTV’s
share may have increased due to an increase in the relative value to CSOs per imported PTV

station as well as in the quantity of imported PTV stations (as measured by subscriber instances).

Augmented Bortz Survey (2004-05) and Horowitz Survey (2010-13): Chart 4
Relative Value of Distant Signal Programming, by Category
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A comparison of Charts 3 and 4 shows that the PTV category has a substantially higher
share in the Horowitz survey than in the augmented Bortz survey. In investigating a possible
reason for the difference, we noticed that several large systems with PTV multicast stations—a
major factor underlying the increase in relative PTV carriage—that were eligible to respond to
both surveys, did not actually respond to the Bortz survey, but did respond to the Horowitz

survey. ¥

%2 See, for example, JSC 00008255 Respondents by Company.xlIsx; JSC 00008206 [RESTRICTED]
JSC_Form_3_Distant_Carriage_Detail_20131.xIsx; JSC 00008265 2013 Sample (Categorized).xlIsx; PS-2010-
13-C-001054-001106.pdf.
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B. Econometric Analyses

Commercial Television experts Dr. Joel Waldfogel and Dr. Gregory Crawford supplied
econometric analyses showing the share of value to CSOs provided by distant compensable
programming in 2004-05 and 2010-13, respectively, on a seemingly comparable basis.*®* Chart 5
shows that PTV’s share of value to CSOs increased from 6.8 percent in 2004-05 to 18.8 percent
in 2010-13, an increase of about 175 percent. This growth was the result of both an increase in
the relative share of compensable minutes of distant PTV programming and the value of each
minute of programming. The value of an additional distant minute of PTV programming
increased from 4.2 cents in 2004-05 to 5.1 cents in 2010-13, an increase of 21 percent.** That is,
there is not only a relatively greater quantity of distant PTV programming selected to be carried

by CSOs, but also each unit of programming is more valuable.

¥ Statement of Joel Waldfogel, In the Matter of Distribution of the 2004 and 2005 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket
No. 2007-3 CRB CD 2004-2005, June 1, 2009, p. 13, Table 3 (“Waldfogel”), available in Written Direct
Statement of the Joint Sports Claimants, vol. 2, tab 18, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated
Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13); Testimony of Gregory S. Crawford, Ph. D., December 22, 2016
(corrected April 11, 2017), p. 41, Figure 17 (“Crawford™), in Corrected Written Direct Testimony of the
Commercial Television Claimants Group, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding
No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13). Dr. Crawford also supplied his preferred estimate, which accounted for
duplicative programming, unlike the 2004-05 estimate. [Crawford, p. 45, Figure 20.] PTV’s share by this
measure is 17.0 percent.

% Waldfogel, p. 13, Table 3; Crawford, p. 40, Figure 16. The period 2010-13 uses Dr. Crawford’s “initial”
estimate, which does not adjust for duplicative programming, to make his 2010-13 results comparable to the
2004-05 Waldfogel results.
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Waldfogel (2004-05) and Crawford (2010-13) Econometric Analyses: Chart 5
Relative Value of Distant Signal Programming, by Category
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Joint Sports expert Dr. Mark Israel also supplied an econometric analysis showing the
share of value to CSOs provided by distant compensable programming in 2010-12.% Like that
done for Commercial Television by Dr. Waldfogel in 2004-05, and by Dr. Crawford for 2010-13,
Dr. Israel measures “what CSOs pay as a function of what they choose to carry.”*® While Dr.
Israel has made certain adjustments to the Crawford methodology, one of which adjusts the

distant signal equivalent to account for only those subscribers in a system that actually receive it,

% Written Direct Testimony of Dr. Mark A. Israel, December 22, 2016, { 40 (“Israel”), in Written Direct Statement

of the Joint Sports Claimants, vol. 1, tab 2, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding
No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13). Dr. Israel apparently considers his 2010-12 regression analysis to apply to the
entire 2010-13 period. For example, he compares the shares derived from his 2010-12 regression to the Bortz
survey shares averaged over the 2010-13 period. [Israel, pp. 21-23.]

% Israel, 17 21-25 (“In general, | have employed the same methodology used by Dr. Waldfogel in his 2004-05

study.” Due to a difference in the two analyses in the measure of programming minutes, Dr. Israel’s value of an
additional minute of PTV programming ($0.66) should not be compared to Dr. Waldfogel’s. [lsrael, pp. 12-13
and 18-19.]
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Dr. Israel treats his 2010-12 results as comparable to those of Dr. Waldfogel for 2004-05.%
Chart 6 shows that PTV’s share of value to CSOs increased from 6.8 percent in 2004-05 to 13.5

percent in 2010-12, an increase of 99 percent.
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C.

Viewing

Program Suppliers experts Paul Lindstrom and Dr. Jeffrey Gray supplied data showing

shares of viewing and programming time for distant compensable programming in 2004-05 and

2010-13, respectively.®® Chart 7 shows viewing shares by program category for 2004-05 and

3" Israel, 1 26 and § 39, Table V-3.

% Testimony of Paul Lindstrom, In the Matter of Distribution of the 2004 and 2005 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket
No. 2007-3 CRB CD 2004-2005, June 1, 2009, PS Exhibits, PL-3, p. 1 and PL-5, p. 1, The Nielsen Company,
MPAA Metered Total Year, Demographics=Households, Jan-Dec, 2004 and Jan-Dec, 2005 (“Lindstrom”),
available in Amended Written Direct Statement of Public Television, In Re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds,
Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13); Testimony of Jeffrey S. Gray, Ph. D., In Re
Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13), December 22,
2016 (corrected April 3, 2017), pp. 16 and 19 (Tables 1 and 2) (“Gray”), in Errata to Amended and Corrected

Public Television's Corrected Amended Written Direct Statement
Docket No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13)
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2010-13. Based on these data, PTV’s share of distant compensable viewing increased from 19.8

percent in 2004-05 to 33.0 percent in 2010-13, an increase of 66 percent.
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This increase is greater than PTV’s increase in subscriber instances. The larger increase

in viewing suggests viewing intensity (relatively more viewing per distant subscriber instance)

has increased. In fact, PTV programming was more lightly viewed than other distant

compensable programming in 2004-05—its viewing share was almost 25 percent lower than its

share of programming time—and it is more heavily viewed than other distant compensable

programming in 2010-13—its viewing share was almost 20 percent higher than its share of

Written Direct Statement Regarding Allocation Methodologies of Program Suppliers, In Re Distribution of

Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13).

Public Television's Corrected Amended Written Direct Statement
Docket No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13)
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programming time. PTV distant viewing intensity has increased 57 percent from the earlier to

the more recent period.*

D. Summary of Growth Estimates

Chart 8 summarizes the growth in PTV’s relative distant signal performance between
2004-05 and 2010-13 by the various measures: growth in subscriber instances, growth in CSO
survey value (augmented Bortz, Horowitz), growth in CSO econometric value (Crawford,
Israel), and growth in subscriber viewing. PTV is the only category that shows positive growth

across all these various measures.*°

PTV Percentage Growth Measures Between 2004-05and 2010-13 Chart 8

Subscriber Instances 32%

Augmented Bortz 31%

11

Horowitz 109%

m% Growth
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120% 140% 160% 180% 200%

¥ Lindstrom, PS Exhibits, PL-3, p. 1 and PL-5, p. 1 and Gray, pp. 16 and 19 (Tables 1 and 2).

“0" Each program category can be compared on Charts 3 through 7. For Program Suppliers, the movies and

syndicated program categories on Charts 3 and 4 should be combined to be comparable to the other categories.
Commercial TV is called news on Charts 3 and 4.
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As discussed above, in 2004-05, PTV was awarded a 7.55 percent share of the Basic
Fund (excluding music). A 32 percent increase in PTV’s share of distant subscriber instances in
2010-13 relative to 2004-05 would increase PTV’s average share of the Basic Fund from the
7.55 percent that was awarded in 2004-05 to 9.9 percent in 2010-13. If, instead, the growth in
PTV’s share of these other measures from 2004-05 to 2010-13 were applied to the 7.55 percent
that PTV was awarded in 2004-05, PTV’s share of the Basic Fund would increase to a range of
between 9.9 percent and 20.8 percent in 2010-13. Specifically, based on the increase in PTV’s
share of CSO survey value, PTV’s share of the Basic Fund in 2010-13 would increase to 9.9
percent or 15.8 percent, depending on whether the 2004-05 augmented Bortz survey were
compared to the augmented Bortz survey or the Horowitz survey in the later period. Based on
the increase in PTV’s share of CSO econometric value, PTV’s share of the Basic Fund would
increase to 20.8 percent or 15.0 percent, depending on whether the 2004-05 Waldfogel
econometric study were compared to the 2010-13 Crawford study or the 2010-12 Israel study.
Finally, PTV’s share of the Basic Fund would increase to 12.6 percent in 2010-13 based on the
increase in PTV’s viewing share since 2004-05. Table 2 shows these calculations for the period

as a whole as well as on an annual basis.
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VII.

TABLE 2
PTV Share of Basic Fund for 2010-13
Based on Growth in Share in Various Measures

Augmented Crawford
Subscriber Bortz Horowitz Initial Israel

Period Instances Survey Survey Regression Regression Viewing
Adjudicated Share

Average 2004-05 7.55% 7.55% 7.55% 7.55% 7.55% 7.55%
Growth in PTV Share

2004-05 to 2010 23% 21% 25% 127% 41%

2004-05 to 2011 35% 41% 117% 191% 47%

2004-05 to 2012 30% 12% 145% 180% 110%

2004-05 to 2013 38% 49% 151% 202% 68%

2004-05 to 2010-13 32% 31% 109% 176% 99% 66%
Updated Share

2010 9.3% 9.2% 9.5% 17.2% 10.6%

2011 10.2% 10.7% 16.4% 22.0% 11.1%

2012 9.8% 8.4% 18.5% 21.2% 15.9%

2013 10.4% 11.2% 18.9% 22.8% 12.7%

2010-13 9.9% 9.9% 15.8% 20.8% 15.0% 12.6%

Comparison with Share of Basic Fund Estimates Computed by Other

Experts

In sections 111 to VI, we explained and applied a changed circumstances method to
estimate PTV’s share of the Basic Fund in 2010-13. Here, we compare the results obtained by
that method with those found by experts for other parties from measures of value to CSOs in
2010-13 alone.

In order to make the comparison, we first need to convert the shares the other experts
reported into shares of the Basic Fund. The surveys and econometric estimates of value to CSOs
determine shares of the Combined Royalty Funds for each of the programming claimants.*
However, the Combined Royalty Funds are actually divided into three funds: Basic, 3.75 and

Syndex. PTV is eligible for an award only from the Basic Fund, which is approximately 85

1 These measures are on an “excluding music” basis.
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percent of the total. As a result, in order for PTV to receive the share of total value to CSOs
estimated by the other experts, it must receive a larger share of the Basic Fund, since it will

receive no share from the other funds.

Table 3 shows PTV’s share of the Basic Fund based on the 2010-13 estimates of value to
CSOs from the surveys and econometric analyses prepared by other experts.** As the data show,
the shares in Tables 2 and 3 are similar, with Table 3 ranging from 9.3 percent to 19.7 percent.

These estimates are generally consistent with the results of the changed circumstances method.

TABLE 3
PTV Share of Basic Fund: 2010-13
Based on Surveys and Regressions

Augmented Crawford

Bortz Horowitz Preferred Israel
Period Survey Survey Regression Regression
2010 8.6% 8.8% 16.1%
2011 10.2% 15.6% 21.8%
2012 8.0% 17.6% 20.1%
2013 10.5% 17.6% 20.7%
2010-13 9.3% 14.9% 19.7% 15.6%

VIII. Conclusion

The growth of relative PTV distant subscriber instances alone supports an average PTV
share of the Basic Fund excluding music of 9.9 percent for the 2010-13 period. However, other
measures—viewing and value to CSOs based on surveys and econometric analyses—show
greater growth in PTV’s relative value, and support higher ranges of PTV shares of the Basic

Fund excluding music from 9.9 to 20.8 percent. The larger increases are supported by an

2" Table 3 uses Dr. Crawford’s “preferred” estimate, which adjusts for duplicative programming,
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increase in value per unit of the distant PTV programming, as shown through increased viewing
intensity and increased value of an additional minute of such programming. This is consistent
with the higher PTV shares found in the Horowitz survey and the Crawford and Israel

econometric analyses.
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l. Qualifications

A. Linda McLaughlin

I am an applied microeconomist and an Affiliated Consultant at National Economic
Research Associates, Inc. (“NERA”). My initial testimony in this proceeding provides

additional background information.*

B. David Blackburn

I am an applied microeconomist and Director for NERA, an economic consulting firm.

My initial testimony in this proceeding provides additional background information.?

1. Assignment and Summary of Opinions

Counsel for the Public Broadcasting Service has asked us to assess the representativeness
of the Bortz surveys with respect to distant Public Television (“PTV?”) carriage in light of data
produced by the Joint Sports Claimants in discovery. We reserve the right to supplement our

opinions should additional information or testimony become available to us.

In our previous report, we computed the values that the Bortz surveys likely would have
found had they not excluded from the original samples cable operators that carried only distant
PTV and/or Canadian signals, which we refer to as the “augmented” Bortz surveys.® Based on
our further analysis to date, we conclude that the augmented Bortz surveys’ samples of cable
systems for the 2010-13 period have only slightly less distant PTV carriage than the universe of
all systems: five percent less. However, not all of those selected to be surveyed actually
responded; as we explain below, the actual respondents to the augmented Bortz survey have
considerably lower distant PTV carriage than the universe of cable systems: 22 percent less.

This shows participation bias with respect to PTV carriage in the augmented Bortz surveys.

! Testimony of Linda McLaughlin and David Blackburn, In re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated
Proceeding No. 14-CRB-0010-CD (2010-13), April 17, 2017 (“McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony™).

2 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony.
3 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony p. 14.
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Participation Bias in the Bortz Survey

As we explained in our original report, the Bortz survey, as presented by James
Trautman, begins each year with a random sample of cable systems. It then explicitly excludes
from the “eligible” sample those systems that carry distant signals only in the PTV and/or
Canadian category. A little more than half of those in the eligible sample responded.* The cable
operator respondents were asked how they would allocate a fixed budget among the different
programming categories based on the distant signals they actually carried in the preceding year.
The survey results reflect the collective valuations made by the eligible respondents. Had the
omitted systems carrying only PTV and/or Canadian distant signals been included in the eligible
sample, they would have been restricted to “allocating the fixed budget” entirely to the category
carried. The augmented Bortz results we presented in our original report included these systems,
applying the same response rate as those eligible.® We concluded that the augmented Bortz
survey showed an increase in PTV value of 31 percent from 2004-05 to 2010-13, which was

lower than any other measure of the change in PTV value.®

In our initial report, we noted that several large systems carrying distant PTV multicast
stations—a major factor underlying the increase in relative PTV carriage—that were eligible to
respond to both the Bortz and Horowitz surveys of cable system operator value did not respond
to the Bortz surveys but did respond to the Horowitz survey. We suggested that this difference
in respondents might explain the reason for the relatively lower Bortz value for PTV
programming.” Since our initial report we have further investigated the respondents to the
augmented Bortz surveys, based on data produced by the Joint Sports Claimants in discovery.

4 Written Direct Testimony of James M. Trautman, Bortz Media & Sports Group, Inc., Cable Operator Valuation of
Distant Signal Non-Network Programming, December 22, 2016, pp. 20-21, , in Written Direct Statement of the
Joint Sports Claimants, vol. 1, tab 1, In re Distribution of Cable Royalty Funds, Consolidated Proceeding No. 14-
CRB-0010-CD (2010-13) (“Interviews were completed with between 52 and 57 percent of cable systems
included in the sample . . . . [R]esponse rates were lower in 2010-13 than the 65 to 68 percent achieved in 2004-
05.”).

5 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, pp. 13-16.
& McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, Chart 8.
” McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, p. 17.
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The augmented Bortz sample for the 2010-13 period has only slightly less distant PTV
carriage (15.1 percent) than the universe of all systems (15.8 percent), or 5 percent less.®
However, the actual respondents to the Bortz surveys, even when similarly augmented, have
considerably lower distant PTV carriage (12.4 percent) than both the universe and the augmented
sample.® The respondents’ carriage of PTV distant signals was 22 percent less than that of the

universe of systems. See Table 1.1 This shows participation bias with respect to PTV

carriage.!
Table 1: PTV Share of Total Distant Subscriber Instances:
Universe Compared with Augmented Bortz Sample and Respondents
Augmented Augmented
PTV Share of Total Distant Subscriber Instances Sample Respondents
Augmented Augmented Relative to Relative to
Period Universe Sample Respondents Universe Universe
(2)(1)-1 (3)/(1)-1
1) (2) 3) (4) ®)
2010-1 13.6% 11.5% 9.8% -16% -28%
2011-1 16.7% 16.3% 11.4% -3% -32%
2012-1 15.9% 15.6% 13.9% -2% -13%
2013-1 16.9% 16.1% 14.1% -5% -16%
2010-1 to 2013-1 15.8% 15.1% 12.4% -5% -22%

8 The augmented Bortz sample includes the Bortz “final eligible” sample plus the systems in the original Bortz
sample that were eliminated because they imported only PTV and/or Canadian stations.

° The augmented Bortz respondents include the actual Bortz respondents plus the omitted systems that import PTV
and/or Canadian stations weighted by the Bortz response rate.

10 Data from Cable Data Corporation (“CDC”) based on survey information provided by the Joint Sports Claimants.

1 For a general discussion of the problems with participation (or non-response) bias, see Shari Seidman Diamond,
“Reference Guide on Survey Research,” in Reference Manual on Scientific Evidence, Third Edition,
Washington, DC: Federal Judicial Center/National Academy of Sciences, The National Academies Press, pp.
359, 383-85.
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Because we initially found that several large systems carrying distant PTV stations did
not respond to the Bortz surveys but did respond to the Horowitz survey, and now have
discovered participation bias in the augmented Bortz surveys, we similarly decided to check for
participation bias in the Horowitz survey. We previously concluded that the Horowitz survey
showed an increase in PTV value of 109 percent from 2004-05 to 2010-13.12 Based on data
produced by the Program Supplier Claimants in discovery, we found that the respondents to the
Horowitz survey have higher carriage of PTV distant signals (18.6 percent) than the universe of
all systems (15.8 percent).*® The Horowitz survey’s respondents’ participation bias with respect
to carriage of PTV distant signals was in the opposite direction compared to the augmented Bortz
respondents, and slightly less biased (18 percent overrepresentation by the Horowitz respondents

versus 22 percent underrepresentation by the augmented Bortz respondents). 4

The augmented Bortz surveys’ participation bias may partially explain why, unlike other
measures of value (including the Horowitz survey), the augmented Bortz surveys do not show an
increase in PTV value that is greater than merely the increase in PTV carriage. In our initial
report, we concluded that the relative increase in carriage of distant PTV stations in 2010-13
indicates that the relative marketplace value of distant PTV stations has increased. Based on
changes in other measures supplied by experts for other parties, including cable system operator
(“CSQO”) survey value results and CSO econometric value results, we further concluded that the
relative share of distant PTV programming grew at least approximately as much, and in most
cases substantially more, than PTV’s increase in carriage.’® To the extent that these other CSO
values for PTV programming increased more than the carriage of that programming, they show
an increase in the per-unit value of the PTV programming and, thus, a larger increase in value

than the increase in carriage.

12 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, Chart 8.

13 Data from CDC based on data provided by the Program Supplier Claimants in discovery and universe data in
Table 1 above.

14 On a year by year basis, the respondents to the Horowitz survey have higher PTV carriage by about 18 percent in
2010, about 25 percent in 2011, about 5 percent in 2012, and about 17 percent in 2013. (Data from CDC based
on data provided by the Program Supplier Claimants in discovery and universe data in Table 1 above.)

5 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, pp. 2-3.
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While three of the measures of CSO value supplied by experts for other parties (the
Horowitz survey and the Crawford and Israel econometric results) show a larger increase in the
value of distant PTV programming than the increase in carriage of distant PTV programming,
the augmented Bortz surveys show approximately the same increase in value as in carriage.®
The participation bias as to PTV carriage in the 2010-13 augmented Bortz survey may explain
why it does not show a greater increase in its respondents’ value of PTV programming than the
universe’s increase in PTV carriage: its respondents are not carrying PTV as much as the
universe is. In contrast, the Horowitz survey shows an increase in distant PTV programming
value even relative to its respondents’ higher carriage of distant PTV programming and is

generally more consistent with other measures of CSO valuation.

DECLARATION

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

< a A M

Executed this 15" day of September, 2017 Lirda McLaughlin '
\ M
Executed this 15" day of September, 2017 David Blackburn

16 McLaughlin-Blackburn Testimony, Chart 8.
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PROCEEDI
(

JUDGE BARNETT: Good mor

be seated.
Mr. Dove?
MR. DOVE: Would you lik
witness, Your Honor?
JUDGE BARNETT: Oh, I co
(Laughter.)
Whereupon--

LINDA MCLAUGHL
having been first duly sworn, was
testified as follows:

JUDGE BARNETT: Please b

DIRECT EXAMINA
BY MR. DOVE:

Q. Good morning, Ms. McLaug

A. Good morning.

Q. Would you please state y
the record.

A. Linda McLaughlin.

Q. What is your current pos

A. I'm an affiliated consul
an economic consulting firm.

Q. And when did you begin i
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position?

A. 2014.

Q. Did you hold prior posit

A. Yes. I've worked at NER
| started as a consultant and wor
over the course of time to senior
president. | retired from full-t
2009, and then | was called a spe
consultant, and they changed the
and affiliated consultant. Maybe
to consultant at the end of this.

Q. And how long have you be
with NERA?

A. For over 40 years, since

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, what is
educational background?

A. | have a Bachelor of Sci
math from Marquette University, a
degree in economics from the Univ
Pennsylvania.

Q. AtNERA, in general, wha
work do you do?

A. | do microeconomics, gen
contested matters like this, anti

intellectual property areas for t
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sometimes commercial damages.

Q. And are there particular
areas in which you tend to concen

A. Yes. | have done a lot
media and entertainment.

Q. And for approximately ho
have you concentrated in the medi
entertainment area?

A. For more than 30 years.

Q. Have you previously test
the Copyright Royalty Judges or t
predecessors as an economic exper
copyright licensing or the valuat
copyrighted works?

A. Yes, | have.

Q. Could you please describ
testimony or identify that testim

A. So | think the first was
determination for carriage on sat
television stations, and then | -

-- that was for PBS. And then th
for MPAA, and that was in the spl
satellite royalty fund. And that
just a report or testimony, writt

| believe there was a settlement.
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to the hearing.

Then in the 2000 to 2003
determination in cable of the spl
cable pool, similar to this. And
thing in 2004-'05.

Q. And in the 2000 to 2003
distribution proceeding, who were
by in that proceeding?

A. Inthe last two, both of
for -- well, one was for PBS and
was the 2000 to 2003. And the ot

Q. Do you recall -- let's -
going back to the satellite rate

proceeding, do you recall in that
did the Judges adopt the methodol
put forward?

A. Yes, | think they did.

Q. And how about in the 200
proceeding? Did the Judges adopt
augmentation in that proceeding?

A. Yes. |--1did somethi
what I'm doing now, augmenting Bo
that was used as a starting point
Judges.

Q. Thank you. Ms. McLaughl
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testified or filed reports in oth
proceedings as an economic expert
economic attributes of entertainm
markets?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you please provide
examples of that testimony.

A. Yes. | submitted testim
in the -- in a proceeding concern
rates and the effect of competiti
Also to the FCC about bargaining
cable operators and cable network
FTC on pricing of streaming music

Then also in federal cou
between HBO and a pay-per-view op
concerning the pay-per-view right
An arbitration, a matter between
and the YES Sports Network about
sports network should be carried
That, you know --

Q. Letme drilldown. In -
to in the course of your work, ha
analyzed -- had the need to analy
other statistical studies?

A. Yes. The cable rate hea
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largely about -- not hearing, I'm
FCC cable rate inquiry was focuse
econometric studies of how compet
cable rates.

On the survey side, I've
Nielsen and other viewing data si
first projects at NERA, about TV
New York and Philadelphia and the
middle, what they did, and where,
special surveys were done to anal
detail than would normally be giv

published reports.

In the Cablevision case,
involved surveys, not only the Ni
viewing that Yes would use to sel

advertising time but also in the

survey about consumers watched Ya

whether they were just available
subscribers or restricted on a sp
Q. Thank you.

MR. DOVE: Your Honors,
we offer Ms. McLaughlin as an exp
with experience in the economic a
entertainment and media markets a

valuation of copyrighted works wi
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markets.

JUDGE BARNETT: Hearing
Ms. McLaughlin is so qualified.

MR. DOVE: May | approac
and the bench?

JUDGE BARNETT: You may.
BY MR. DOVE:

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, I just h
binder of exhibits that contains
We've also included in the binder
1001, 3000, 3002 through 3008, an
potential reference, but right no
focus on Exhibit 3012.

And I'd like you to exam
please, and tell me whether this
testimony of you and Dr. Blackbur
17th, 2017.

A. Yes.

Q. And I'd like you to plea
attachment 1 of Exhibit 3012. An
ask you, is this a description of
experience and qualifications?

A. Yes. It's called Append

Q. Okay.

A. Yes, it's a description.
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Q. Who is Dr. David Blackbu

A. David is a director at N
out of the Washington, D.C. offic
worked with him, and he's an econ
I've worked with on other recent
well as this one.

Q. Turning to attachment 2
Exhibit 3012, is this a descripti
Dr. Blackburn's experience and qu

A. Yes.

Q. Anddid you and Dr. Blac
collaborate to prepare the testim
Exhibit 30127

A. Yes.

Q. What were your respectiv

A. Well, Dr. Blackburn work
direction. | -- we talked back a
the information we were looking a
report and the actual words in th
| asked him to look into certain
closely than I did, but | would |
worked under my direction.

Q. And do you have any corr
Exhibit 30127

A. The only thing I noticed
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reading through this recently is

wrong footnote number, and footno

as we noted in footnote 15, but i
really be 16. And they're both o
page, so it's pretty easy to see

Q. Okay. Any other correct

A. No.

Q. Thank you. Ms. McLaughl
behalf are you appearing here tod
A. Public Broadcasting Serv

Q. And what were you asked
your direct testimony?

A. |l was asked to address t
the royalties that -- from the --
should receive from the distribut
signals in a distant -- on distan
systems.

Q. And was this a determina
relative value? Were you looking
value?

A. Yes, the relative value
of PTV -- I'm sorry about the PBS
been calling it PTV in my report.

So the distribution of t

value or what is the relative val

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888

2445

we reference a
te 18, it says

t should

n the same
that.

ions?

in, on whose
ay?
ice.

to address in

he share of
that PBS
ion of its

t cable

tion of

at relative

of the PTV --
/PTV, but I've

he relative

ue of the PTV



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

signal compared with other distan
are imported by cable systems in

Q. And we're going to walk
-- your conclusions in detail, bu
| was wondering if you could expl
know, did you -- well, did you re
conclusions as to the questions y
to address?

A. Yes.

Q. Andjustin general, wha
conclude?

A. Well, | concluded as to
the rate, that it should be at le
rate, | mean the relative value -
9.9 percent and perhaps as much a
20.8 percent.

| reached this conclusio
looking at changed circumstances
beginning with the rate that was
that time, the relative value tha
established at that time for PTV,
looking at the changes in distant
instances, which is just a measur
but it was a quite striking one,

looking at measures of value or o
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that would indicate the extent to
first saw in units was reflected
Q. And then after you looke
changed circumstances, did you --
look at sort of the estimates tha
actually presented by some of the
in this proceeding?
A. Yes. Changed circumstan

the current -- is going from the
current. And if you just looked
current, it should come out, you
similar way. And, in fact, it di

So | compared the estima
that way with what the -- with wh
parties said as what their relati
PTV would be.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Excuse

MR. DOVE: Sure.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Good m
are you?

THE WITNESS: Good morni

JUDGE STRICKLER: | have
for you, just so | understand, to
to your testimony and consistent

testimony just now at the bottom
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your report, together with David

say that you expanded upon what w
2004-2005 determination based on
in carriage of Public Television
correct?

THE WITNESS: Right, in
change in -- percentage change in
instances, yes.

JUDGE STRICKLER: And th
page on page 3, in the first bull
that page, you begin by saying "i

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: | just
understand what you mean by "in a
that context. Are you saying tha
that carriage-oriented and increa
subscribership, | should say, tha
mentioned in the previous bullet
additive or are you saying it's a
way of looking at it by reflectin
additional evidence that you meas
econometric values, the survey va
it an alternative, an additional
oris it a -- are you doing a bui

THE WITNESS: It's not a
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| understand, it's not first you
change in share and then you -- i
instances, and then on top of it,
other changes in value.

Rather, that the change
measure may indicate a change in
perhaps the value of each unit we
relatively went down. It could h
or stayed the same.

So I'm looking at these
measures of value to see if the u

reflecting a relative change in v

JUDGE STRICKLER: Okay.

understand it, does "in addition"
alternative approach to check and
first approach, the first bullet

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Is tha
means or is it cumulative?

THE WITNESS: Well, it's
the sense that it's not just -- i
to check it, but it is also to ch
right?

So if there's -- if ther

in units -- | said it at the begi
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of the numbers. The change in un
would imply a relative market val

9.9 percent. When | see values g
least as much or more, then | can
9.9 percent. Do you see -- based

But then | can look at t
measures themselves and say: Wel
look at the change in value, know
had been this units increase as p
reason the value is changing, the
it and it's valued at a higher am
you could just look at those as w

JUDGE STRICKLER: So the
that you mention is, in fact, cum
looking at the additional number
the additional evidence that you

THE WITNESS: Right. Th

JUDGE STRICKLER: --in
bullet point?

THE WITNESS: Yes, the 2
comes from a change in a value me
All right? And that value measur
involves both a change in price,
the amount of minutes, and a chan

amount of carriage.
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JUDGE STRICKLER: Thank
BY MR. DOVE:

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, let's tu
analysis of changed circumstances
2004-'05 and 2010-'13 in the dist
marketplace as relevant to Public

What sort of data or inf
you review or consider in address
issue?

A. luse data from the CDC,
Corp., the past determinations, a
reports of people that were -- ot
submitted in this proceeding and
some of the data underlying those

Q. And what types of report
referring to that were submitted
proceeding?

A. Reports that looked at -
experts, so Mr. Trautman, Dr. Hor

Dr. Crawford, and so forth, as we
reports from the 2004-'05 proceed
I'm looking at some changes -- at

Q. Let's take those then on
First, what specific steps did yo

analyze the data from Cable Data
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address whether the relative valu

Public Television signals had cha
A. Well, the first thing |

the change in subscriber instance

-- S0 that's one subscriber recei

distant Public Television station

distant station of any type.

And | looked -- | saw ho
different types of programs -- th
types of signals, Public Televisi
independent stations, networks, C
power, how they changed and in to
the importation of distant signal
compared to any subscribers and s
imported anything. There are som
don't import anything.

Q. Isthere atable that sh
results of that, of what you saw?

A. Yes, my chart 1.

Q. Let's pull up chart 1.
chart 1 show?

A. Chart 1 shows, if you ju
entire bar, that the total of sub
instances per subscriber went dow

2004-'05 to 2010-'13. So the bar
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(202) 628-4888

2452

e of distant
nged?
looked at was
S. And that's
ving one

or one

w the

e different
on,

anadian, low
tal how all of
s changed
ystems that

e systems that

ows the

What does

st look at the
scriber
n from

is shorter.



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

It went down from 1.45 to 1.28.

And the PTV increased du
time, the little part on the bott
to .204 per -- so a cable subscri
about 17 -- you know, about 17 an
half percent of them received one
then, you know, about 20 percent
received one signal in the second

However, they're receivi
signals and all of the other type
programming, independent stations
went down per subscriber. So one
went up and the others went down.

Q. Let'sturnto chart 2 of
What does this chart show?

A. Inthis chart, | look at
information but just look at the
distribution of the distant subsc
instances. And so here it shows
share went up from 12 percent to
to 15.9 percent, which is a 32 pe
increase.

Q. And what happened with r
other types of signals?

A. Well, the network signal
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lot. In terms of percentage, Can
power went up because -- and the
went up a small amount.

Now, they went up becaus
such a decline in the others that
the number went down, the percent

Q. And what did you conclud
analysis?

A. That the subscriber inst
increased by a lot. And if you w
that measure alone, which as | sa
just use that measure alone, but
just use that measure alone, that
the relative value in 2004-'05 th
previous Judges determined, which
7.55 percent of the Basic Fund ex
that that would have increased by
increased by 32 percent, that wou
to the 9.9 percent of relative va
that | mentioned earlier.

Q. And I think you -- I kno
testified to this to some extent,
be clear, do you think that dista
instances are the best possible e

relative marketplace value?
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A. No. |think you have to
together with something that has
of the equation in it, not just t
the -- not just the units but the
well. So that's why | looked at
measures.

Q. I'd now like to turn to
cable operator surveys. Whose te
regarding cable operator surveys
consider in addressing changed ci
from 2004-'05 to 2010-'13?

A. Ilooked at the Bortz --
testimony from 2004-'05, the augm

report, which relied on Dr. -- on
Mr. Trautman's work, and just aug
add the signals that he had left

And then | looked at tha
-- | did that same thing in 2010
then in the 2010-'13, | also look
survey done by Dr. Horowitz.

Q. Let'stalk about Mr. Tra
survey first. On page 14 of your
you discuss an adjustment to the
both in 2004-'05 and in 2010-'13.

Why did you decide that
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adjust the Bortz survey?

A. The Bortz survey asks --
sample of cable operators and ask
to ask them how they would apport
of the signals they carry. They
deemed some people ineligible. T
them in the sample, but they were
for the survey. And those -- tho
operators were people who importe
signals or only Canadian signals

Canadian signal but nothing else.
So what I'm doing is add

in so that they can -- we can hav

all the cable operators. Or a sa

the cable operators.

Q. And | believe you may ha
to this earlier, but did the Judg
2004-'05 proceeding rely on your
regarding adjustment of the Bortz

A. They used it as a starti
their determination of the relati

Q. Inthe 2004-'05 Bortz su
cable systems were excluded from
survey, even though they imported

Public Television distant signal?
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A. Ineach year, I think it

Q. And how about in 2010 to
those years -- or in the Bortz su
years, how many cable systems wer
from that Bortz survey even thoug
imported a Canadian or Public Tel
distant signal? And so this is n
exercise, for your convenience we
slide that shows that relevant fo
Mr. Trautman's report.

A. Yes. Inthe -- over the
it was an average, | think, of 16
different number in each year. S

highlighted part here says in 201

about 15 PBS-only and 2 Canadian.

would be 17 for that year.

But there are different
the different years, 17 PBS-only
cetera.

Q. Inorder to do your augm
the Bortz survey, what were your
assumptions?

A. 1 assumed that the syste
adding back in would have to answ

in the same way it was asked for
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people, and that is they were onl
respond to the category they are
they are supposed to split up the
the categories they are carrying.
So they would have to sa
for PTV, if that's all they carri
all they carried was Canadian sig
have to say 100 percent for Canad
they carried both, they'd have to
between, you know, zero for one a
other or 100 for one and zero to
Q. How about with regard to
rate? Did you make any assumptio
A. Oh, when | added them in
followed the same response rate.
at the -- some of the highlighted
in the final eligible sample for
we're looking at, 2010, in all th
together, there were 288 cable sy
163 of them completed the surveys
So the response rate, 16
or, you know, maybe that's, you k
60 percent, say, 50, 60 percent.
that same response rate and | did

by strata and applied that to the
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signal. So | didn't assume that
included. | only assumed, you kn
approximately half of the 16 were

Q. Inthe most simplified f

would you please explain how you
adjusting the Bortz results in 20
And you can feel free to use this
Table 11-1, if that's helpful to
providing this overarching descri

A. Okay. Sothe --just ta
the -- talking about the strata,
completed surveys, those people g
aggregate an answer for PTV value
another page in the Trautman repo
Bortz report that says that value

Q. It'son, I think, on pag
Exhibit 1001.

A. Sorry, | just don't want
wrong number and start off -- yes
year, the survey respondents gave
of the value -- said 4.4 percent
relative value was PBS. And so |
the 163, multiplied by 4.4 percen
of the 15 PBS-only signals, say 8

that would have responded, would
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100 percent. The two -- the port

two, say, one of the two Canadian

would have responded would say ze

And then | would, you know, multi

and divide it by the sum of the 1

PBS-only that would have responde

Canadian-only that would have res

Q. And did you give this si
explanation anywhere in your writ

A. | explained it in my 200
testimony.

Q. And the actual process y
through to recalculate the Bortz
was a little more complicated tha
simplified explanation you just d
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And what else did you ha
adjust the Bortz results?

A.  Well, first, | -- the Bo
done by strata. That is the diff
the systems as is shown on that t
small, medium, sort of larger and

And then it was -- in ea

there was different response rate
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the response rates that were appl
strata.

In the -- the Bortz surv
just use each response to weight
It weights them by their royaltie
weighted each of the people I'm a
their royalties.

And then at the end, it
of the strata by the royalties in
the percent of the royalties that
universe as opposed to in the sam
that re-weighting.

Q. And did you describe the
the stratification and weighting
your written testimony?

A. Inthe 2004-'05 testimon
appendix that did that.

Q. And you used the same pr
to '13 and provided all of your ¢
the parties in discovery?

A. Yes.

Q. If we could turn now to
After you performed the recalcula
2004-'05, what was the adjusted B

result for Public Television in t
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A. In 2004-'05, it was show

bar there, between 6.1 percent to
with the variation depending on w
who carried both a PTV and a Cana
say.

Q. So that's why you presen
as a range?

A. Yes.

Q. And is that why there is
for the Canadian Claimants group
the chart?

A. Yes.

Q. Sticking with the left s
3, how are these other five categ
middle different from the unaugme
survey for 2004-'05?

A. Well, to the extent that
category -- and Canadian category
the others shrunk. The percents
to 100 percent.

Q. Now, in his written rebu
testimony, Mr. Trautman states th
Television should not be credited

100 percent of the value of the p

PTV-only systems based on the Hor
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Do you agree with that?

A. No.

Q. And why not?

A. Because the way these su
conducted of the people who did r
were told: Give us the -- divide
in percentage terms between these
categories of the programming tha
and make sure the percents add up

100 percent.

And then at the end if -
reminded: Make sure the percents
100 percent. Particularly, | gue
didn't, so that they would make t
100 percent.

And so in order to be co
people that actually responded to
survey and had to have their answ
100 percent, however they -- howe
divided them, people who carried
have to say how would | split up
would give it all 100 percent bec
carrying any other category? The
with the Canadians.

Q. So let's turn back, agai
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What does the right-hand side of

A. The right-hand side show

augmented Bortz survey relative v
2010-2013, and for PTV it shows a
and a half to 8 and a half percen

Q. And how much of a change
2004-'05?

A. 31 percent.

Q. What explains in your vi
increase in the augmented Bortz v
Public Television from 2004-'05 t

A. Well, there's two parts
the people who answered the Bortz
actual respondents, gave more to
second period compared to the fir
average, they gave -- you know, w
as an example, but on average the
5.1 percent in the later period,
something in the 3 percent areas
point something.

So, first, the people wh

responded gave more and, second,

somewhat more PTV-only or PTV plu

in the second period compared to

Q. Isthe change in Public
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augmented Bortz survey valuation
with the change in Public Televis
subscriber instances that we disc
with respect to chart 2?

A. Yes, just based on those
information, you would say that t
approximately the same increase i
measured by the Bortz survey as t
in subscriber instances as we fir
9.9 percent would be the resultin
applied the -- either percent.

Q. Now, in 2010 to '13, was
operator survey that included all
cable systems, including those wh
distant carriage was Public Telev
stations?

A. Yes.

Q. And which survey was tha

A. The Horowitz survey.

Q. And is this illustrated
your report?

A. Yes. Inchart4, | comp
Horowitz survey in the current pe
augmented Bortz survey in the pri

| make that comparison to the aug
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because Horowitz already includes
Canada-only signals.

Q. Did Mr. Horowitz conduct
himself in the 2004-'05 proceedin

A. No.

Q. How does Mr. Horowitz's
survey compare to the 2004-'05 au
survey?

A. Instead of having the ki
we saw before of about 30 percent
approximately double for the PTV

Q. Sticking to your direct

now, did you notice when you were
this report any possible reasons
explain why on average cable oper
responding to the Horowitz survey
Television more highly than cable
responding to the Bortz survey, e
Bortz survey had been augmented?

A. Yes. When | prepared th
saw that they were different, | w
you know, understand how that wou
And so | looked into the response

is, who was in the respondent gro

and for Horowitz.
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And | saw that there wer
cable systems that carried -- the
large; they carried -- in terms o
payments. They carried -- and th
more Public Television signals th
average. So they were -- they ha
you know, percent of subscriber i
the average.

And they were not includ
Bortz survey. And these particul
-- | didn't say the name of them
know, | had a footnote in my repo
to, you know, documents that | lo
these were Verizon systems.

Q. And we're going to come
when we get to your rebuttal test
but let's now turn and talk about
econometric regression analyses.

Whose testimony regardin

analyses did you consider in addr

circumstances between 2004-'05 an

A. For the earlier period,
the regression from Dr. Waldfogel

the later period, | looked at two

one from Dr. Crawford and one fro
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Q. So looking now at chart
direct testimony, what does this
A. On the left, it shows Dr
results in terms of the relative
came out of his econometric analy
PTV, it shows 6.8 percent.
So the -- and then in th
right, it shows the Crawford anal
2010-'13 time period. Now, Crawf
analyses. This is the one that i
comparable -- you know, comparabl
Waldfogel. He did a second that
but that wasn't too dissimilar, b
comparable, so that's why | used
And in this initial anal
Crawford, he found 18.8 percent o
value for PTV, which is about alm
what Dr. Waldfogel found.

Q. How did Dr. Crawford's a
marginal value of a minute of Pub
programming compare with Dr. Wald
analysis?

A. Dr. Waldfogel found an a
the -- that an incremental minute

programming would be worth 4.4 ce
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-- | say it in my report. 1 just
say the -- say it backward. | th
4.2 cents, sorry. And Dr. Crawfo
it was 5.1 cents. So it went up,
20 percent or so.

And so this -- thisis s
less directly that not only did t
in terms of subscriber instances
actually went up in terms of the
incremental minute.

Now, the minutes went up
subscriber instances, and that's
was tripling and not just increas
30 percent and then another 20 pe

Q. Let'sturnto chart 6.
chart show?

A. This compares the same W
analysis with Dr. Israel's 2010 t
analysis, which Dr. Israel said w
to Waldfogel.

Q. And what are the results
Television here?

A. Here Public Television,
approximately doubled from 6.8 pe

relative value to 13.5 percent.
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Q. Let's turn now to the vi

JUDGE STRICKLER: Justb
do -- counsel, excuse me.

| note that you explaine
chart 5 and chart 6 the compariso
econometric analyses. You don't
your report, correct me if I'm wr
favor one over the other as being
probative; is that right?

THE WITNESS: That's rig

JUDGE STRICKLER: Thank
BY MR. DOVE:

Q. So, Ms. McLaughlin, turn
viewing studies, whose testimony
viewing studies did you consider
changed circumstances from 2004-'
2010-'137?

A. Ilooked at Mr. Lindstro
the earlier period and Dr. Gray's
later period.

Q. If you could turn to cha
testimony. What does this chart

A. This is showing relative
the two periods, and the PTV view

to these data, went up from 20 pe
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33 percent.

Q. Andwas --

A. Butthe increase in view
same as -- as the previous measur
talking about in value, but it's
the increase in viewing was great
increase in subscriber instances,
that the program became more popu
consumers, and that might be why

up -- also a reason why the value
the cable operators. But it's no
measure itself.

Q. Allright. If we could
slide 12. And I just want to tie
together in looking at what is, |
8 of your testimony.

And if you could just so
through that bar by bar. What do
8 demonstrate?

A. Allright. So here I'm
percentage change between 2004-'5
in a variety of measures. First,
at my units measure subscriber in
that went up 32 percent, all righ

So then | wanted to see
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value? The augmented Bortz surve

31 percent, about the same. The

measures went up more. For Horow

109 percent increase. For Crawfo
176 percent. For Israel, 99 perc

So there -- it's suggest
increase in value was greater tha
in subscriber instances in three
value measures. And then it also
viewing went up. You know, it al
increase in viewing as well.

Q. Andthenletsturnto T
testimony. What does this summar

A. This table shows that if
with the share that the Judges ga
the Basic Fund that the Judges ga
2004-'05, which was 7.55 percent,
increased it by each of these mea
would happen to PTV's share of th
in 2010-'13.

So if you increased it b
subscriber instances, it would in
9.9 percent. That's the same as
the augmented --

Q. [I'msorry, it would incr
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9.9 percent?

A. To0 9.9 percent. Yes, it
by 32 percent. Sofrom7andah
is the 32 percent.

Q. And this is at the botto
bottom row you're talking about,

A. Yes. |calculated it ye
well.

Q. So that's for subscriber
Just going across the columns, wh
conclusions with regard to what P
Television's share of the Basic F
to '13 should be, based on those
measures?

A. Well, it should be at le
9.9 percent and | think greater t
because most of the value measure
than that, but it would be 9.9 pe
augmented Bortz, 15.8 percent bas
Horowitz, 20.8 percent based on C
initial regression, and 15 percen
If you used the viewing measure,
12.6 percent.

Q. And justto recap, you k

you look at changed circumstances
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Television? | mean, why was that
you thought was appropriate here?
A. Because it has the most
it, of any of the approaches, it
account what happened in the past
us to compare more things. So we
subscriber instances -- the chang
subscriber instances, which isn't
itself of value, but it's indicat
part of the -- of the reason why
would go up, the -- the units par
And we can look at the r
which started at a higher level t
survey did or the augmented Bortz
2004-'5, so we can just look at t
not just at the level. We can sa
higher before and now, you know,
but it's higher by a bigger amoun
We can look at viewing,
see as a measure of value itself,
look at the change in viewing to
was an increase in popularity in
programming.
So | think it enables us

more information.
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Q. And as part of this chan
circumstances approach, did you d
know, that one particular methodo
better than another? Was that pa
did?

A. No, just that the -- tha
-- | concluded that the change in
least as great but probably great
change in subscriber instances.
otherwise, | did not -- | didn't
should use, you know, this method

Q. Up until now, we've just
about changed circumstances. Let
for a moment about other experts'
which look at 2010 to '13 in isol

not look specifically at changes

Did you assess how any o
analyses compare with your assess
changed circumstances?

A. Yes.

Q. And are the results of t
summarized here on Table 3?

A. Yes.

Q. What does this table sho

A. So this table shows that
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the past information and only loo
the augmented Bortz survey would
share of the Basic Fund of 9.3 pe
period as a whole. The Horowitz
14.9 percent. The Crawford prefe
regression -- here I'm using his
because he prefers it, and | don'
compare with something else -- 19
And the Israel regression, 15.6 p

And, you know, these num
similar, as you would expect, to
circumstances because if you look
circumstances, that begins with t
moves to the present and tells yo
present would be based on that ch
you just look at the present, tha
incorporate the change in it.

So, you know, it's not s
that, you know, they work out to
Not the same, but similar.

Q. Now, I notice that the s
table are of the Basic Fund. How
calculate Public Television's sha
of the -- well, put it this way:

of all, why would you make these
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in terms of the Basic Fund?

A. So Public Television onl
share of the Basic Fund. But all
studies look at, as a percent of
from all funds, how they would di
relative value.

So that if the relative

all royalties but you're only goi
from the Basic Fund, you have to
you know, you have to divide -- t
-- by the Basic Fund's share of t

Q. And so how -- how then i
did you calculate Public Televisi
the Basic Fund?

A. Well, | used the data fr

showed how much money is in the B

the Syndex Fund and in the 3.75 F

has about 86 -- | mean, I'm sorry
fund has about --
Q. We'll take that.
(Laughter.)
THE WITNESS: -- 86 perc
total.
BY MR. DOVE:
Q. And did the Judges in th
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proceeding also do a similar calc
regard to the Basic Fund?

A. Yes, they -- yes. | fol
method.

Q. Solet's come back now t
started talking about earlier wit
the Bortz survey. If we could --
turn in your notebook to Exhibit
binder.

And my question for you,
Ms. McLaughlin, is -- well, first
examine this document and tell me
is the written rebuttal testimony
Dr. Blackburn of September 15th,

A. Yes.

Q. Anddid you and Dr. Blac
collaborate to prepare the testim
Exhibit 30027

A. Yes.

Q. And do you have any corr
Exhibit 30027

A. No.

Q. | believe you testified
you had noticed that several larg

systems that carried Public Telev
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had not actually responded to the
even though they were in the elig
but did respond to the Horowitz s
that right?

A. Yes.

Q. And were you able to obt
allowed you to analyze in a syste
whether the difference in actual
rates may have biased the Bortz s
with respect to Public Television

A. Yes. If you remember th
we talked about was --

Q. Iguessifwe can go to
which is Table 1 from your Exhibi
extent that's helpful in explaini
did with respect to this issue.

A. Right. We saw that PTV'
distant subscriber instances was
15.8 percent in the universe. We
the beginning of my charts.

So | wanted to compare P
distant subscriber instances in t

what was in the Bortz sample and

augmented responses. And | chose

because of what | noticed when |
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looking at it, that there were la
that were not only big royalty pa
carried PTV more than that, you k
15.8 percent average, you know, t
extent.

So | did that and found
augmented sample of Bortz -- and,
course, | would use the augmented
because I'm comparing it to the w
The augmented sample was a little
you know, not too much lower in B
5 percent over the whole time per
augmented respondents were quite
They were more like PTV's share i

So | thought that this s
it's a possible reason for the di
the lower value of the Bortz -- a
survey compared to all the other
value that didn't show a greater
value than the subscriber instanc
been due to just what happened wi
the eligible respondents.

JUDGE STRICKLER: And wi
eligible respondents, did you say

morning that the missing eligible
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respondents -- that is, that did
the survey -- were Verizon system
THE WITNESS: Some of th
Verizon, and | think that there w
there were only two Verizon syste
responded to the Bortz survey in
| don't think those two carried P
particular systems.
And there were -- but th
but Verizon is quite a large perc
Dr. Crawford has a figure of, in
of how large in royalty paying th
systems are, but it's something o
14 percent, something like that,
10 percent of all royalties come
So | didn't just look to
Verizon. | tested it more genera
you know, | don't know that it wa
just Verizon. 1think -- but I d

part of the problem.

JUDGE STRICKLER: And tu

Horowitz survey, was there also a
Verizon not responding to that su
THE WITNESS: No, in fac

respond to the Horowitz survey.
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was checking Bortz to see if they
bias in their respondents, | chec

to see, you know, if they had any
measure, and Horowitz had a littl
distant subscriber instances than

So Horowitz, you know, s
like more -- heavier on the peopl
lot of PTV, whereas -- and perhap
having a lot of Verizon responden
and Bortz seemed to be a little |
the people who were carrying PTV
amount.

JUDGE STRICKLER: So the
making on Table 1 in your rebutta
applies only to the Bortz -- augm
survey, rather than to the Horowi

THE WITNESS: Right. |
Horowitz survey later in the rebu
| didn't do a chart on it, but |
that -- | checked it, you know, i
under, maybe the other one is ove
fact, | found that was the case,
Horowitz survey was not over on t
as much as the Bortz survey was u

JUDGE STRICKLER: Do you
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Horowitz survey was deficient --

in any way because of this same p
you're describing with regard to

by Verizon and perhaps others?

THE WITNESS: | think it

been that they -- that the Horowi
more Verizon respondents than the
representation in the universe, b
general, forget about Verizon, ju
people's carriage of PTV, they mi

gotten eligible respondents that

heavier on the carriage.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Heavie

augmented Bortz or heavier than t

THE WITNESS: Heauvier th
universe. Heavier than the unive

JUDGE STRICKLER: So it
actually, to some extent, err in
direction?

THE WITNESS: Yes, exact
explain that on page 4 of the rep
that it was the Horowitz -- the h
was like 18 percent higher versus
lower compared to the universe.

words, if | had put this whole ch
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Horowitz study instead of a minus
right-hand corner, it would have
18.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Thank
BY MR. DOVE:

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, in his
rebuttal testimony, Mr. Trautman
based on his analysis in his appe
A-5, participation bias does not
lower value for Public Television
surveys.

Do you agree with that?

A. No.

Q. And why not?

A. Well, he used a differen
Not that it's not a valid measure
didn't -- didn't incorporate ever
used for his survey, how -- how m
people in his survey who carried
compared to the universe -- how m
universe carried PTV at all?

And he said they were ab
Now, he didn't include the PTV-on
to carry PTV and something else,

I'm not worried about that proble
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you use the augmented Bortz.

So -- but what | found,
PTV carriage that | was looking a
amount of PTV carriage and thinki
the amount of PTV carriage went u
values generally went up, and the
other studies, and so there might

here because the Bortz study didn

same amount of PTV carriage among

who did carry PTV.

Q. Mr. Trautman also states
Television's share in the Horowit
inflated by what he calls an outl
respondent.

Do you agree that the re
identified by Mr. Trautman is an
should be removed?

A. No.

Q. And why not?

A. We can give this outlier
AT&T. AT&T is a large MSO. They
about 10 percent of all the royal

The survey is supposed t
representative of the people who

have royalty payments. You would
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throw out somebody who said 10 pe

you had a reason to believe their
wrong for them, to start with.

And there is no reason t
their answer was wrong for them t
Their -- they -- the answers that
the value of PTV when they do car
don't carry it in every one of th
but the answer they give is highe
other people, but not the highest
not that there's nobody who gives
It's just that they are a lot of
they're getting a lot of weight,
should, because they pay a lot of

This is not the case of
of 100 people and I'm going to pr
the universe of the country. And
person is so different from the r
that it might not -- it might inf
projection in a way that wouldn't
that wouldn't be true, maybe it w
on their part.

We don't -- there is no
this is a mistake on the part of

systems. They answer similarly f
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to the next. Sometimes the same;
not. In 2010, they were differen

But they -- and not only

not like they are one person who
representing, you know, 100,000 p
universe. They are about 10 perc
royalty paying. And in the Horow
they're representing about 14 per
value of the respondents.

So they're only standing
know, somebody who is -- themselv
somebody that's half the size of

Q. Didn't Mr. Trautman say
responses of one respondent were
the Horowitz results each year, t
average Horowitz PTV allocation w
by almost 5 percentage points?

A. He said that.

Q. And what's your response

A. You know, it's a statist
how he created, and it's not -- y
didn't make it up. But it's not
statistic for this survey.

This is a weighted surve

5 percent did not include any wei
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removed the AT&T responses, all o
can't just remove the ones that s
If you remove all the AT&T respon
Horowitz survey, the survey perce
down for PTV but it would go down
percentage points.
Q. Thank you.
MR. DOVE: I have no fur
guestions.
JUDGE BARNETT: Cross-ex
MR. GARRETT: Yes, ma'am
JUDGE BARNETT: Mr. Garr
CROSS-EXAMINAT
BY MR. GARRETT:
Q. Good morning, Ms. McLaug
A. Good morning, Mr. Garret
Q. I'm Bob Garrett on behal
Sports Claimants. Good to see yo
A. You too.
MR. GARRETT: Your Honor
housekeeping matters before we be
We have filed a number o
that we plan to use with Ms. McLa
canvassed the parties. | think w

agreement on all but one of them.
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one that we don't have agreement,
simply not move the admission of.

JUDGE BARNETT: All righ

MR. GARRETT: Butwitht
permission, I'd like to give Ms.
binder with the exhibits, as well
material that we're going to be r
today. And then I'll move for th

JUDGE BARNETT: Thank yo
need to be sure the numbers get o

MR. GARRETT: Yes, ma'am
approach the witness?

JUDGE BARNETT: Yes.

MR. GARRETT: Your Honor
are Numbers 1096 through 1104 inc
believe we have no objections to
exhibits with the exception of 11

JUDGE BARNETT: So you'r
1102?

MR. GARRETT: | will not
| will offer the others and ask t
them.

JUDGE BARNETT: Thank yo
Exhibits 1096 through 1101, inclu

through 1104 inclusive are admitt
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(Exhibit Numbers 1096 th
1003, and 1004 were marked and re
evidence.)

JUDGE BARNETT: And are
withdrawing 1102 or do you want -

MR. GARRETT: | think I
with her to see what | can get ou

JUDGE BARNETT: Far bei

MR. DOVE: We're going t
when it happens.

JUDGE BARNETT: Oh, I wo
disappointed if you didn't.

Go ahead, Mr. Garrett.

MR. GARRETT: All right.
Your Honor.

BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. So, Ms. McLaughlin, what
you are two binders. One contain
smaller one are the exhibits that
referenced. And at various point
morning here, we'll refer to some
exhibits.

The other contains some

material that you had in the bind

Mr. Dove, your testimony, as well
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testimony of some others that we
today such as the Bortz report, a
possibly some of the prior determ
the Judges and their predecessors
proceedings. Okay?

A. Okay.

Q. Let me -- before | begin
just go back to some of your answ
final group of questions here. Y
Verizon systems as those that wer

in the Bortz reports, correct?

A. Well, | don't think | sa
not included at all. | think the
been two, right?

Q. Right. There were two r

A. Right.

Q. --of Verizon here. But
respondents from Verizon in the H
report, correct?

A. Yes, there were.

Q. Did you check to see wha
allocation those Verizon systems
Public Television in the Horowitz

A. 1did look at that.

Q. And do you know how that
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allocation compared to the averag
given by other Horowitz responden
Public Television programming?

A. Itwas higher in some ca
know, lower in others. | mean --

Q. I'mlooking for just an
average.

A. Oh. To compute the over
| did not compare Verizon's overa
with the Horowitz respondents.

Q. Isit possible that the
average of those Verizon responde
than it was for the other Horowit

A. You know, | remember tha
comparison | did, | compared -- |
their responses in three of the y
a lot of trouble with the 2010 da
Horowitz report. | mean, trying
who was who. So | didn't look at

But in the other years,
higher than the numbers that were
report. So | saw that they would
would have -- they would have, on
raised the Bortz PTV response if

included.
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Q. Do you know what the ave rage
allocation was for Public Televis ion in the
Bortz reports in the years in que stion?

A. Well, in the augmented B ortz, | have
it, if | can look back at the tes timony.

Q. Certainly.

A. You know, | don't think | have the
year by -- | don't think | have t he year by
year in my report. So -- but the -- | just had
the overall. So | don't know tha tlcould -- 1
could say what the average was, b ut | -- for
2010 to '13, itwas 6.1 t0 6.2 pe rcent. Soin
the years that | looked at, | kno w that it was
-- they were higher than 6.1 to 6 .2 percent.

Q. Okay. And you also refe renced the
AT&T respondents in the -- in the Horowitz

surveys, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was a single re spondent who
answered on behalf of 60 differen t systems,
correct?

A. You know, | know that Mr . Trautman
said that. | did not check that. | don't know
one way or the other. But | have no reason to
disbelieve it, but | didn't check it.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Q. Well, the information is
Horowitz report, isn't it?

A. ldon'tthinkit'sin hi
may be in his report, but | don't
being in the report. It might be
backup.

Q. Okay. So let me just ki
to the beginning here. When were
retained by the Public Television

A. I'm not sure, but | thin
have been in 2014.

Q. Okay. And your assignme

determine the relative market val

Television programming during 201

on distant signals?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And in orderto m
determination, is the only thing
looked at the change in the dista
instances, initially?

A. Initially -- well, no.
the change in other measures, but
measures that were available from
know, | looked at the change, you

other kinds of measures that you
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25

CDC, but not like in -- in DSEs o
or something like that, so | look
those things, but not in -- but |
beyond that initially.

Q. Okay. And so you filed
testimony here in December of 201

A. Yes.

Q. And in that testimony, t
analysis, the only study that you
your change in distant subscriber
study, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was the one tha
9.9 percent increase in the relat
value of Public Television progra
correct?

A. Itwas the 32 percent in
would yield a 9.9 percent share o
value.

Q. Allright. Andthenac
months later after you had a chan
the studies of all the other part
amended testimony, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And--

2495

rin fees gen
ed at all of

didn't look

your initial
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presented was
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t you showed a
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A. That's the testimony we
about.

Q. That's Exhibit 3 --

A. Right.
Q. --3012 that we were dis
morning, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Allright. And so what
that study was to -- I'm sorry, i
testimony was to review the studi
been put in by the other parties,

A. Yes.

Q. And based upon the studi
all the other parties, you then c
range of 9.9 percent to, what was
20.6 percent; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And within that range, d
opinion as to what the fair marke
relative fair market value of Pub
programming is?

A. My --1don't have a spe
| just have that it should be gre
9.9 percent based on the fact tha

four value studies showed that it

2496

were talking

cussing this

you did in
n that
es that had

correct?

es putin by
ame up with a

it,

0 you have an
t value of --

lic Television

cific number.
ater than the
t three of the

was higher,
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that the value increased to a gre
and one of the studies showed the
increased of a minute of PTV prog

Q. So, basically, what you'
is you've looked at the bottom-li
Public Television in the studies
the other parties here, and just
that value is for Public Televisi

A. Well, I did study -- I d
chart 3, | put in what the -- I p
values they said, four of the peo
two survey people and the two reg
people, but | looked at the chang
to 2010-'13 in these other studie
them back to the Waldfogel and th
Bortz in that time -- earlier tim
the viewing of Lindstrom.

Q. Butthe range that you h
between 9.9 percent and the 20.6
that range is established solely
of the other parties plus your di
subscriber instances analysis, co

A. Ifyou count the --int
for that, you would have to count

and the earlier augmented Bortz,
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the -- you know, the determinatio

Judges.
Q. Allright. Butthese ar
that have been done by other part
A. Yes.
Q. And not by you?
A. Yes, yes, exactly. Exac
Q. Allright. And when you

evidence or the studies from all

parties, you did your augmentatio

correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And the number that you

did your Bortz augmentation, was

9.9 percent? Is that correct?

A. You're saying the number

referring to would be what the --

relative value of PTV would be in

9.9 percent based on the change t

circumstances method, using just

augmented Bortz, and 9.3 percent

at the 2010-'13 numbers, yes.

Q. Allright. So very clos

was that you first came up with y

subscriber instances analysis?
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A. Yes, showing the value i
same as the subscribers.

Q. Okay. Let me justturn
about your use of the CDC data.
familiar with CDC, | take it.

A. I've used the CDC data b

Q. Okay. So let me pull up
John.

Ms. McLaughlin, this is
that was produced by your counsel
here. And it was represented tha
the calculations that you did in
subscriber instances analysis?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

JUDGE BARNETT: Mr. Garr
marked as a restricted document.

MR. GARRETT: Yeah, I'll
Your Honor. This was another thi
discussed. | think it's restrict
first of all, | don't believe the
Television Claimants have any obj
keeping the room open here while
restricted.

And | think it's restric

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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because this was part of a larger
CDC has, and they don't want the
database out in the public domain
JUDGE BARNETT: Well, CD
to tell us that. If there is any
room who is not -- has not signed
nondisclosure agreement or who is
this information, could you pleas
while we discuss this document.
(Whereupon, the trial pr

confidential session.)
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OPEN SESS
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, right be
we were talking about partially d
signals. Do you recall?

A. Yes.

Q. And a signal -- a Public
station as a local signal is elig
must-carry rules, correct?

A. The local would be eligi

Q. So you're familiar with

rules?

A. I'm not familiar with th

it, but | know that there are mus
and that they are -- that they ap
Television.

Q. So could a Public Televi

go to a cable system, say, look,

Public Television station and und

rules you must carry me, correct?

A. For the primary signal,
that's true.

Q. You are absolutely right
apply to the multi-cast signals,

A. Right.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Q. So a Public Television s
become a must carry on a particul
system in certain areas and the c
might branch out in other areas w
becomes a distant signal, correct

A. Well, if they carried it
a distant signal in other areas,

Q. Okay. And if they carri
other areas here, they might be c
for reasons other than the fact t
value, that is, that the cable op
the signal, correct?

A. They might be carrying -
said in the testimony that you we
to before that it might -- they m
just have uniform carriage throug
know, that they are devoting a si
know, they have to pay a price, a

both -- both in the signal, but e

would be the case of a system tha

configured so that it would, you
have one headend.

It would, you know, so i
costly for them to do things diff

probably not -- that probably wou
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some of the very large systems th

multiple headends and carry diffe

in different parts, both locally

Q. Okay. Soinyour 2000t

testimony, which was that Exhibit

state there on page 3 --

A. This is 3003?

Q. Yes.
A.  Um-hum.
Q. Page 3.
A. Yes.

Q. Inthat top paragraph, |

the penultimate sentence. "For e

you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Itsays, "may retransmit

distant signal only for the purpo

the same broadcast stations and o

throughout its system in order to
marketing and technical cost."
A. Yes, | see that.
Q. And that's what you are
A. Yes, exactly.
Q. Didyoudo any -- look a

that show how often -- well, let
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do that, so you have, when we see
distant subscriber instance analy
that a signal has been carried to
particular subscriber.
We can't tell from that

the cable system really valued th
signal enough to bring it to thes
or whether it is doing it for the
other --

A. Right, it's not that it
It has the -- it has the market,
has the value that it makes it ea
the system.

Q. Okay.

A. lwas justgiving it as
So | don't mean it has no value.
saying that it could be -- it cou
they want the signal just so ever
same throughout.

My, you know, my general
that larger systems don't have ev
same throughout, but, you know, t
-- they have -- they might have t
some the same and some different.

Q. Okay. So did you look a

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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to get a sense of how often Publi
signals are carried, that is, Pub
distant signals are carried as pa
distant signals?

A. ldidn't actually think
distant applied now. | thought i
subscriber groups.

But if that's what you -
you mean by partially distant or
percent of the system because the
group gets it?

Q. You looked at the number
subscriber instances in the analy
did, correct?

A. Right.

Q. And some of those distan
instances are going to be -- are
reflect a signal that is distant
subscribers of a system and local
Correct?

A. That's right.

Q. And the reason they migh
the system is because that system
must-carry request from the Publi

station?

2534

¢ Television
lic Television

rtially

partially

t was only

- is that what
asa--asa

subscriber

of distant

sis that you

t subscriber
going to
to some

to others.

t be local to
received a

¢ Television

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

A. Or they just want to --
they just want to carry the local
station, whatever it is.

Q. Sure. They might want t
local Public Television station.
Television stations also have the
existing on carriage in a particu

A. I think all stations, lo
have the option of insisting on c

Q. Well, for commercial sta
them don't insist upon a must car
for retransmission consent, don't

A. ldidn't say what -- whe
opted for it or not. | just said

have the, you know, you could eit
| could demand that | be carried.

Q. Okay. Would it surprise
that during the period 2010 throu
somewhere between 60 and 80 perce
distant subscriber instances that
there reflected carriage of parti
signals?

A. ldon't know that that's

but it would not surprise me. |

is very often the case that syste
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carried -- if by that you mean in
part of the area, so you have a s
5 percent of the area is getting
of the subscribers, in other word
this station as a distant signal.

Q. And that would be a part
signal in that case?

A. Under that definition, i
surprise me. | don't know that t
correct or not.

Q. Okay. Let's go to your
testimony here which is 3012. Go
We will put it up on the screen,
want the, you know.

A.

| actually like reading

of paper better.

Q. Fair enough.

A. Okay. And what page?
Q. 9, note 16.

A. Okay.

Q. So thisis the -- actual

referred to this footnote earlier
testimony this morning.
A. Yes.

Q. Talking about the growth

2536
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multi-cast signals.

A. Yes.

Q. And you say there, "of t
multi-cast signals, most are PTV
signals. Out of the 14 million t
multi-cast subscriber instances p
period, 87 percent"?

A. Right.

Q. Are you saying that ther

A. These are distant. We'r
about distant. If | didn't say i
footnote, | was talking about dis
multi-cast.

Q. Are you saying that ther
million distant multi-cast subscr
for each accounting period during
137

A. On average, yes.

Q. Okay. Let me --let'sj
Exhibit --

A. Well, maybe | -- maybe -
total or average? | can't--1c
reading it. It might have beent

Q. Let's go to the next exh

clarify this here, which is 1100.
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recognize Exhibit 1100?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us what tha

A. That is the total distan

total distant multi-cast subscrib

Q. Now, if we go to the far
under Total --

A. Right.

Q. -- we see there the tota
multi-cast --

A. Yeah, so it shows that t
is the -- is the total of all the
you know, adding up all the accou
yes.

Q. Right.

A. But the point was to get
get the 87, you know, it would --
87 percent was the important numb
in the footnote.

Q. Right. And soif | can
Geoff. Now, just so the record i
in 2010-'13, based upon the Exhib
are about 1.6 million PTV multi-c
subscriber instances on average,

A. That looks right because
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million number that we looked at
mentioned it in my testimony, rig

that about half of the increase b

and 2010-'13 was due to increased

the -- or carriage of the -- carr
distant multi-cast just didn't --
carried at all before.

Q. Right.

A. Didn't exist.

Q. Right. But looking over

period of the multi-cast, distant

instances for PTV amounted to abo

of your total distant subscriber

correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

A. Half of the growth and 1
the total.

Q. Allright. Let me go ba
to this hypothetical marketplace.
the hypothetical marketplace for
signals in 2010 through '13, woul
must-carry rules be in place or w
eliminated, in your opinion?

A. lguessI'm--letmere
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testimony that we're referring to
know, it could be any hypothetica

Q. Sure.

A. You are talking about hy
negotiations in terms of setting
terms of coming up with relative
-- if we were -- if we were tryin

in a hypothetical marketplace, we

would have people who were cable

bargaining with television, local
stations about importing them.

Q. And the stations would b
with the copyright owners of the
programming, correct?

A. Right. So --right. Bu
at this point it would be -- | wa
as being the stations, right, the
behalf of the copyright owners ba
the cable operators.

So they would -- all rig
have the -- now | have the hypoth
mind. I'm sorry. Could you repe
guestion?

Q. Well, in that hypothetic

that you're envisioning, would th
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rules be in place? Would local P
Television stations have the righ
upon carriage?

A. Well, and local other st
have the right to insist on carri

Q. So those regulations wou
place in the hypothetical marketp
envision?

A. Because -- yes, because
it wouldn't be the same market, y
wouldn't -- it wouldn't be the sa

Q. Would the cable operator
under the current law cable opera
substitute advertising on broadca
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Inthe hypothetical mark
they be able to substitute advert

A. No, because otherwise it
the same marketplace.

Q. It wouldn't be the same
which?

A. As what we're -- as what
about, the distant retransmission

signals.
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Q. Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: You wo

hypothesize a change in that rega
are constructing a hypothetical m
THE WITNESS: Well, well
but then it wouldn't help us figu
the price -- what the price would
marketplace that we are looking a
JUDGE STRICKLER: | want
something, a little more of your
sparked a more general question.
You said that in this hy
marketplace you conceive of the s
negotiating, | think you said, on
copyright owners?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
JUDGE STRICKLER: What i
incentive, | mean, marketplace ne
occur because there is incentives
something, profits, revenues, min
what have you.
THE WITNESS: Um-hum.
JUDGE STRICKLER: What i
incentive in this hypothetical ma

a station to negotiate on behalf
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copyright owners to get higher ro
none of that is going into the po
station itself? Why are they a f
in that regard?

THE WITNESS: Oh, well,
station would have some of its ow
as well as some programming that

You know, for example, t
the news programming on a -- on a

commercial station, say, would be
itself.

And | think that would b
true of television stations, that

programming is theirs and some of

programming they purchased from o

JUDGE STRICKLER: So tha
that gives them the same incentiv
copyright owners, was programs ar
together on the station?

THE WITNESS: Right. An
they would be in competing -- in
it could be in competing with oth
It would depend on the type of pr
how -- but this -- this is the wa

envisioning the hypothetical mark
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JUDGE STRICKLER: Thank
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. So going back to inserti
advertising, your view would be t
hypothetical marketplace that you
would not be able to be inserted
operators?

A. Well, not if we wanted t
would happen in a -- in other wor
for using the hypothetical is to

how to distribute funds that are
the current marketplace.
So we would want it to b
the current marketplace.
Q.

prohibition on substituting ads?

In the current marketpla

A. | think so.

Q. Assume for a moment that

changed so that you could now sub

A. Okay.

Q. With that assumption, wo
able to substitute for infomercia
essentially are program-length co

A. ldon't know. It's your

(Laughter.)
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BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Well, I have ideas, but
me testify here.

All right. So you don't
opinion on whether --

A. No.

Q. Because you just don'tt
could substitute?

A. Well, no, I'm sure -- I
different marketplace could happe
wouldn't -- it is not really of i
| don't think.

Q. Right. Because the roya
have been paid for 2010 through 2
by cable systems who could not su
advertising?

A. That's why | said that,

Q. Okay. So let me ask you
hypothetical here: Assume that t
absolutely conclusive evidence to
during 2010 to 2013, that program
had a relative marketplace value
Are you with me?

A.  Um-hum.

Q. Okay. And assume that t
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conclusive evidence that in a mar
I'm sorry, | have to do this agai
have now forgotten what | just sa

A. [l wrote it down.

(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Would you ask the questi

A. A had 50 percent.

Q. Ahad50 percentinama
hypothetical marketplace where yo
substitute advertising. Got that

A.  Um-hum.

Q. Butthere was also concl
that in a marketplace where you c
substitute advertising, which is
marketplace we're actually dealin
relative market value was 25 perc
got that?

A.  Um-hum.

Q. So in your hypothetical
where do you set the value? Ist
50 percent or 25 percent?

A. If we're trying to apply
situation that we care about here

where it had -- where A's value r
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other people was 25 percent and w
couldn't substitute advertising.

Q. Okay. Thank you.

Oh, in this hypothetical

that you envisioned, would the sy
exclusivity rules still be operat

A. You know, | really haven
of thought to that. | see that t
exclusivity doesn't seem to amoun
big part of the royalty pool, .01

So I didn't, | mean, | j

don't know that it makes a differ
it does, and perhaps that's why.
little because there is a rule an
to pay, | don't know, but | haven
about it.

Q. Allright. I wasn'trea
to the Syndex surcharge. lwasr
the FCC syndicated exclusivity ru
themselves, as to whether or not
would be operative in the hypothe
marketplace that you envision, or
haven't thought about it, that's

A. | haven't thought about

Q. Okay. Allright.
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Now, let me go to page 1
current written direct testimony,
3012. And this is where you disc
regression analyses presented by
and Dr. Israel.

A. Waldfogel and Crawford.

Q. I'm sorry, here it's Wal
Crawford. And if | switch over h
of your testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. You see there in Table 3
regression, that's the one that g
19.7 percent, do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's what we talke
earlier. You also have a way of
20.6 percent, too, correct?

A. Yeah, if you look at --
my footnote 34 on page 18, | expl
the -- in the 2010 to 2013 period
that we're -- that comes next, th
Waldfogel/Crawford chart, that |
Dr. Crawford's initial estimate w
adjust for duplicative programmin

that's comparable to Waldfogel, a
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make, you know, to make it compar
But | also, you know, ex

Crawford in the -- in the footnot

that Crawford also supplied his p

estimate, which accounted for dup

programming, and the PTV share by

is 17.0 percent instead of 18.8.

Q. Okay. So a difference o
percentage points depending on wh
analysis?

A. Yes, exactly, his prefer
is the other one. But | couldn't
the chart because it wasn't the s

Q. Allright. Butin eithe
what would give Public Television
relative market value, correct?

A. Of the different measure
yes.

Q. Okay. Let me go back to
that testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. And this is where you no
is the penultimate sentence of th
"the value of an additional dista

Public Television programming."
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A. Yes, | see that.

Q. You said it went up from
5.1 cents.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And so how did th
minute of Public Television progr
to the other minutes of programmi
different categories; do you reca

A. You mean, what was the -
cents for the units?

Q. Well, let me just skip h
6. And you can check, but we hav
the -- well, you see there the PT

A. Yes.

Q. That's your 5.4 cents?

A. Right. And you are show
-- the other cents, right?

Q. Exactly. Taken straight
Crawford there.

A. Right.

Q. So the value of that add
according to Crawford --

A. Right.

Q. --isjust slightly abov

additional devotional minute, cor
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A. Right. And slightly bel
additional Program Suppliers, rig

Q. Actually very close to t
Suppliers' minutes here.

A. Right. PTV has a lot of

Q. Yeah.

A. The sports -- you had --
graph up before that showed 87 pe
subscribers get WGN.

Q. Yes.

A. But WGN has -- a lot of
programming on WGN is not compens
accounts for why the sports could
value for the -- for a marginal,
value for an extra minute, but it
that many minutes.

And so when they multipl
having a much higher value, when
it by the minutes, it -- the perc
not looking at the percents here
trying to explain how you could ¢
something that has a PTV, a price
additional minute of 5 cents, whi
of low on this, and yet that be 2

the 18, you know, 18.8 percent of
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So the reason is because
the price times the minutes to ge

Q. Understood. But the 5,
cents might also reflect other fa
availability of a lot of local --
Public Television programming ava
local basis?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. Okay. So you think --

A. It should reflect everyt
they have -- they count local sta
you know.

Q. Okay. And the reason yo
17 or 19 percent mark in the Wald
sorry, in the Crawford regression
as you said, Public Television ha
time?

A. Yes.

Q. If we just go for a seco
Geoff, to Exhibit 1087, which is
written rebuttal testimony. And
Table 5.

Do you see that up on th
there? We didn't put Israel's te

your binder. We do have a copy h
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want to see the whole thing. But
just focusing on --
A. This is Ducey and Crawfo

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, you mean thisisac
Israel's report? Is that what yo

Q. Written rebuttal testimo
review that?

A. 1did.

Q. Okay. And Ducey was the
actually categorized and calculat
different minutes for the Waldfog
the 2004-'05 proceeding. Right?

A. Right.

Q. Okay. So |l want to focu
on Crawford, who simply takes thi
directly from -- I'm sorry.

A. Israel takes the informa
Crawford?

Q. Exactly. Do you want to

(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. And we see that your sha

is 36.3 percent. By your, | mean

Television's share.
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A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Andthatis,inf
highest share of minutes in the -
the categories, correct?

A. According to this table.
know it's high. I've seen things
know it is one of the higher cate
me put it that way. If it's not
it's very close.

Q. Allright. I mean, this
share, a volume share, would you

A. Yes. Soldidn'tlook a

looked at -- | looked at change i
instances.

For PTV standing by itse
shouldn't really matter if there
subscriber instances or more minu
there are there 24 hours, for the
you know, of programming, for the

But for other categories
programming, first of all, they c
the -- and Canadian, that would b
would be the same. All right?

But for other categories

the percent compensable. And the
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compensable, there could be like
and less Program Suppliers or vic
something. Right?
So | believe the compens
the percent of the time that's co
WGN went down over the two period
think it is so much that PTV is a
share. It is that the other peop
know, the total went down because
Q. So Public Television, yo
basically getting 24 hours of pro
and a lot of which kind of repeat
correct?
A. Alot of all programming
itself to some extent.
Q. Well, not sports. Okay?
people only watch that once. Rig
A. You know, sometimes they
least -- well, maybe this is only
channels, but the Yes Channel rep
Yankee games. | don't know.
(Laughter.)
THE WITNESS: So, you kn
missed it, you could watch it.

BY MR. GARRETT:
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Q. I'mnotsure. Ifit'sn
game, | don't watch it.

A. lam nota Yankees fan.

Q. Good for you. Good for
didn't offend anybody.

(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Butyour share of time i
regression analyses that you were
went up between '04-'05 and 2010
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And at the same time the
Suppliers went down from about 50
'04-'05 to 33.3 percent?

A. Right. I'm assuming the
correct. If they are not, you kn
not. But that's what -- that's w
numbers show.

Q. Okay. Allright. Theb
though, is that if we look at jus
Television for a moment, your, ca
share, in Crawford is about half
share. Does that sound right?

A. You are saying 9.9 perce
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20.8 percent?

Q. No. I am saying that th
you get in Crawford, which you me
either 17 to almost 19 percent --

A. Oh, okay, yes, yes.

Q. --that's roughly half o
share of 36.3 percent?

A. Oh, I see, oh. Well, ye
because -- because of the five --
the five cents compared to the ot
as you just showed. Right? That
that's how you get the -- yeah.

Q. Understood. You have go
programming that has a marginal v
down near the bottom of the diffe
categories.

A. Right. We have -- we ha
only going to a portion of statio
is a lot of the programming and,
the price in the regression, they
the minutes.

And so, you know, that's
relationship is the price to the
volume.

Q. And this programming, as
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established earlier, is going to
16 percent of all cable subscribe
distant signal basis, correct?

A. And Crawford is picking
regression because he is doing su
growth.

Q. Understood.

A. So, in other words, even
16 percent, it is getting a bigge
it is getting as big as Program S

of implying that 16 percent of th

is compensable of Program, you kn

if they went to 87 percent.

Q. Okay. Let me justgoto
Geoff. So you see here we just p
share in Crawford, which is that
and then we showed the different
much like you have done in your t
recognizing that in Crawford it i
19 percent.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, | see you have the
the 17 percent, but that's his pr
estimate.

Q. Exactly. And the bottom
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25

you have looked at all these stud
fair to say that in all the studi

A. |--1did not use fee a

Q. Well, we will. We will
me.

A. Okay.

Q. Inthe Crawford, Israel,
adjusted Bortz studies, regardles
you use, Public Television's shar
market value is going to be less
its volume?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Go back to the sl

And the situation with Public Tel

similar to that with Program Supp

correct, you know, we see here th

have a relatively low marginal va
to Crawford?

A. Yes.

Q. And, like you, they also

relatively large volume share?

A. PTV and Program Supplier

volume shares, right.
Q. Andifwe --

A. Wait. You have to under

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888

2559

ies. Isit
es --
s gen.

today, believe

Horowitz, and
s of which one
e of relative

than its time,

ide number 6.
evision is
liers,

at they also

lue according

have a

s have larger

stand the



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

regression uses those volumes.

Q. Understood.

A. Right, because otherwise
different volumes, they would get
marginal values. Right?

Q. Butwhen they use volume
for each of the categories, you ¢
your 17 to 19 percent, correct?

A. Right, Crawford comes up

Q. And the Program Supplier
with a number of about, what is i
like 23, 24 percent?

A. It would be higher becau
the, you know, the --

Q. Oh, but they have a litt
than you.

A. Let's see. In Crawford,

Program Suppliers was 24 percent

know, initial analysis.
Q. So if we use the Crawfor
award Public Television the 17 to

20 percent, whatever you are aski

appropriate award for Program Sup

be about 24 percent, correct?

A. Ifyourelied on -- ify
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Crawford and the changed circumst
yes.

Q. Okay. Let's goback. Y
little earlier about the digital
that took place in 2009. Do you

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you are aware
know, prior to that time there we
about whether digital signals or
signals could be carried pursuant
Section 111 compulsory license?

A. I'm only vaguely aware o

Q. Okay. And you're aware
were issues as to whether or not

must-carry rules would apply to t
multi-cast signals?

A. lonly know generally th
there was a consideration of mayb
things due to digitization. | re
follow that debate.

Q. Okay. Were you aware th
2005, before this conversion, tha
Public Television entities, such
negotiated a deal with the Nation

Television Association concerning
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of multi-cast PTV signals?

A. | was not aware of that.
you had something, some paper to
but | don't know whether that was
know anything about it.

Q. So as part of your assig
you did not look at the terms of
which was negotiated in the, you
marketplace that existed, to dete
arrangements were between Public
the one hand, and the National Ca
Association?

A. 1did not look at that,

Q. Do you think in trying t
of what would happen in a hypothe
marketplace, that what happened i
with that negotiation would be in

A. ldon't know. Itis pos
could be. But I didn't know abou
didn't look at it.

Q. Okay. Fair enough.

You're aware, are you no

STELA was enacted in 2010, that c
could carry multi-cast signals on

basis, as well as local basis, wi
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any Section 111 royalty?
A. 1think there was -- it
thought that there was a caveat t

it had to be something, if they h

something before and if they were

by the, by the television station
something like that.

Q. Okay. Let go to Exhibit
is a statement of account. Do yo
there?

A. No. Give me a hint wher

Q. ltisin the smaller bin
that has --

A. Oh, I'msorry. I was lo
bigger one. Got it.

Q. Allright. You have see
of accounts filed with the Copyri
before?

A. Yes, | have.

Q. Okay. And can you tell
particular one?

A. This is from Comcast of

Q. Allright. And this is

San Francisco system, correct? D

that?
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A. Yes, that's San Francisc
surrounding area.

Q. Allright. Soif we jus
keep it up on the full screen for
Geoff, and we go to the second pa

Do you see the various |

that it is filing on behalf of, c

A. Yes.

Q. And then we go to the ne
is where they list all the differ

communities that they are --

A. Yes.
Q. --serving?
A. Right.

Q. Andlthinkthereisac
pages of communities. It says --
A. Yes, itlooks like they

know, seven different channel lin

these many different communities.

Q. Allright. It's a huge
systems. It's a pretty large sys
Well, go to the next -- go to the
Geoff.

See it has got over a mi

subscribers there? Do you see th
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form?

A. Yes, oh, yes.

Q. Allright. We skipto't
this is where they start giving t
line-ups for all the different su
you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And | think this one, ch
A, continues to the next page?

A. Yes. Yes.

Q. And the thing to note is
KQED, which is a Public Televisio
actually a local signal on this ¢
line-up, correct?

A. Ithink they are alphabe
Right. So they have KQED and som
from them. They have another one
-- there are several Public Telev
in this line-up, as well as multi
along with them.

Q. And they are all local;
distant signal at least on this c
is WGN?

A. Yes.

Q. Allright. And if we --
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several pages they identify the d
of channel line-ups.

A. Yes.

Q. We justlooked at channe
correct?

A. That's right.

Q. And then they have chann

AB --
A. Right.
Q. --alsohasalot of loc

including KQED, correct?

A. Right. That and another
two or three, three other educati

Q. Allright.

A. Main ones.

Q. And WGN s its --

A. Yes.

Q. --only distant signal?
skip ahead to their channel line-
see that?

A. Yes.

Q. So here we see that KQED

local in other areas, is actually

whatever subgroups are served wit

correct?
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A. That's correct. It has
KTEH.

Q. Right. If you look ther

Basis of Carriage, do you see tha
A. Yes.

Q. And the "O" signifies th
distant, correct?

A. Yes, or it's not exempt.

Q. Okay. And the E stands
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Andifwe gouptothei
there for column 5, do you see th

A. Yes.

Q. And they explain there i
paragraph, and I'm just going to
the retransmission of a distant m
stream that is not subjectto ar
because it is the subject of a wr
agreement entered into on or befo
2009, between a cable system or a
representing the cable system and
transmitter or an association rep
primary transmitter, enter the de

Do you see that?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. So would it be your unde rstanding that
3 the carriage of signals pursuant to an

4 agreement that might have been en tered into

5 between Public Television entitie s and the

6 National Cable Television Associa tion would be
7 exempt?

8 A. Well, or a cable system or, you know,
9 | take it that's what that langua ge, system or
10 an association, an owner or whate ver.

11 Q. Right.

12 A. Ifitwas -- and it's so indicated,

13 and, you know, we didn't include the exempt
14 stations.

15 Q. They are notincluded in the CDC data?
16 A. No, not as distant signa s, no.

17 Q. And you don't think they should be?
18 A. No.

19 Q. Good. Okay.

20 And if --

21 A. Because they didn't pay a, you know,

22 they didn't pay the royalty.

23 Q. And if questions were as ked on a
24 survey about valuing those exempt distant
25 signals, that would not be a corr ect procedure?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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A. Right. They should only
should only be included if they a
are valued. But | didn't see --
any extent to which they were inc

Q. Okay.

A. And valued.

Q. Allright. Can you tell
distant signal equivalents the sy

total?

A. I'm sure you can from th
but it's -- I think you might hav
math.

Q. Well, you could also go

schedule, page 11 of this, which

know, a dozen pages from the end.

A. From the -- I'm sorry, f

Q. Yeah. Itis DSE schedul

A. Oh, | see page 13. Wait
Yes.

Q. Allright. So this part
had 1.25 DSEs, correct?

A. No. Oh, wait a minute.
part above is the example, right?

Q. Well, the block says "co

DSEs for category O stations."
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A. Yes, but | think this mi
DSEs. | am not sure. I'm --I'm
see it says 1.25.

Q. Okay, if you are not cer
just ask you to turn to --

A. Okay, and the reason tha
is | think that they only include
the subscriber groups that carry
distant, you know, in some subscr

is 1.25 and in some it's 1.

Q. Right. But system-wide
1.25 DSEs?

A. Well, not the way -- not
counted by CDC, | don't think.

Q. How does CDC count it?

A. I think they -- they cou
they are showing -- they don't sh
subscriber group so they would sh
subscribers, the million somethin
system, and then they would say a
certain percent of them got the .

Q. Letme askyoujusttot
back to the primary form here on

is the Space L copyright royalty

A. s this after all those
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Q. Yes, after all the chann
A. Yes.

Q. Yeah, itis like the --
pages after that. But if you loo
right-hand side, you will see Spa

where | want to go to.
A. Oh, | see whatyou --I'
will try to look at it on the scr

Q. Okay.

A. Oh, I foundit. | found

Q. Allright. Soyou seet
there talks about minimum fee, th
for this system would be 1.775 mi

A. Yes.

Q. But, in fact, when they
base rate fee in block 3, it come
1.6 million dollars?

A. Yes.

Q. So by using these -- cal
through all the different subgrou
actually would be paying a base r
less than the minimum fee, correc

A. No. ltis showing -- I
really -- | have worked with thes

accounts, but it takes a while to

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

2571

el line-ups.

it is a couple
k on the

ce L. That's

m sorry. |

een.

it.
he block 1
e minimum fee

llion dollars?

look at the

S up with the

culating it

ps, they

ate fee of

t?

m sorry. |

e statement of

get back into



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

it. And I can't actually follow
calculation part here. | see the

and then | see a million 9, and |
how -- | don't know how the 1597.
some areas they didn't import WGN
so.

Q. Orin some areas they di
KQED as a distant signal because
available as a local signal.

A. Yes. No, no, | understa
if they -- if they imported -- I
sure how you would get to the 159
didn't import WGN in the whole sy

Q. Well, wasn't that the wh
STELA, to allow cable operators t
subgroups and calculate the royal
subgroup basis as opposed to doin
system-wide level?

A. Well, | don't know if th
whole purpose of STELA.

Q. Fair enough.

A. But that was something t
yes.

Q. Okay. Andisn't that wh

done here?
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A. I'm--I'matalossto
this, | have to say.
Q. Okay. Allright. Well,
of that then.
Let me ask you to turn t
Exhibit 1103.
JUDGE BARNETT: Before w

Mr. Garrett, where are we? How m

© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

you have?

10 MR. GARRETT: We're on p
11 JUDGE BARNETT: Then It
12 take our noon recess before we ch
13 We will be at recess until eight

14 (Whereupon, at 12:08 p.m
15 recess was taken.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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AFTERNOON SESSION
(
JUDGE BARNETT: Please b
Mr. Garrett.
MR. GARRETT: Thank you,
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Ms. McLaughlin, I'd like
another topic here and that's the
adjustment that you did.

A. Yes.

Q. And let me start by goin
current testimony here at page 14

A. Yes.

Q. Page 16, footnote 24.

A. 14,1 think.

Q. [I'm sorry, page 14, foot
in that final sentence there you
2010-13, there were an average of
systems in each year."

A. Yes.

Q. And these were the syste
in the original Bortz sample that
Public Television stations as a d
only Canadian television stations

signal, or a combination of Canad
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1:13 p.m.)

e seated.

Your Honor.

to turn to

Bortz

g to your

, footnote 24.

note 24. Now,
say, "In

16 omitted

ms that were
carried only
istant signal,
as a distant

ian and Public
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Television signals?

A. True.

Q. Okay. And there were ju
in each of the years on average?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, you calculat
adjustment based upon just those
systems in the -- from the sample

A. Well, based on the 16, b
explained, | used the estimated r
as part of that. So it would be

Q. lunderstand. | mean, b
with just the number of 16 in eac

A. Exactly.

Q. Right. And those were 1
taken -- that were included in th
sample that Bortz drew?

A. Right. An average of 16

Q. Allright.

A. And we talked about one
year earlier in my direct testimo
Q. Butyou didn't go and ta
cable systems that would have car

as distant signals or only Canadi

signals during the years in quest
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A. No.

Q. And why not?

A. Because | was trying to
would happen to the Bortz results
asked the people who carried -- y
they picked up in their sample an
only PTV and Canada. In other wo
hadn't thrown those out, this is
they would have gotten.

Q. Right. Andifyou had i
confining yourself to just those
sample and looked at all systems

universe that met these character
adjustment would have been much h
Public Television, would it not?

A. Ifl addeditinto only
who responded to the Bortz sample

Q. Yeah. And as you said,
those 16 on average each year, yo
of the response rate, right?

A. The response rate by str

Q. By strata.

A.  Um-hum.

Q. And there was a differen

rate for each of the four strata,

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A. Ineach year, yes.
Q. Andyou used --
A. But it was something alo

of 50 percent. | mean, very roug

1

2

3

4

5 Q. Allright. But it wasn'
6 A. No.

7 Q. Okay. Allright. Letm
8 turn to your chart 2 in your curr
9 A. Okay, that's on page 11.
10 Q. Page 11, Geoff. Now, as

11 it, what this chart shows is that

12 15.9 percent of the distant subsc

13 instances consisted of Public Tel

14 stations, correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And 69.2 percent consist
17 independent stations, correct?

18 A. Correct.

19 Q. And WGNA would have been

20 that 69.2 percent, correct?

21 A. Correct.

22 Q. And if we can just switc
23 toslide 12. So we've replicated

24 that you have here, chart 2, but

25 independents down between WGNA an

2577

ng the lines
hly.

t 100 percent?

e ask you to

ent testimony.

| understand
in 2010-'13,
riber

evision

ed of
included in

h quickly here
the table
broken the

d all other

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

independents. Do you see that?

A. The all other is the lig
All other -- other independents?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, | see that.

Q. So then if you add the -
with 2010 through '13 -- the 59 p
10.2 percent, it comes up with, |
69.2 percent?

A. Yes.

Q. Allright, okay. And is
consistent with your understandin
vast bulk of those distant subscr
for independent stations comprise
of WGNA?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And so when you |
chart here, we see that -- and WG

being 50 percent share in 2004-'0
59 percent of distant subscriber
2013. Do you see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. And is that consistent w
research and experience here?

A. | note that Mr. Trautman
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that.

Q. Okay.

A. So, I mean, he mentioned
| didn't check that, but | though
WGN went up, then the other indep
have gone down, which you're show

Q. Yes.

A. So I don't know that thi
but | have no reason to believe i

Q. Allright. Well,it'sb
same data that underlies your cha
in the record here. Assuming tha
correct, the increase for WGNA be
and 2010-'13, amounted to 9 perce
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And so that's a little b
double the amount of increase in
Television distant subscriber ins
correct?

A. Yes,it's not -- it's --
looking at the delta between them
looking at percentage change. So
lower percentage change but a big

Q. Because it started with

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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the 50 to 59.
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number?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Butyou discussi
testimony this notion of revealed
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And you say that the inc
of distant subscriber instances o
Television stations kind of shows

preference of cable operators for
Television stations?

A. Yes.

Q. And you say the same thi
A. That they were carrying
were carrying more of it, yes. T
guess the only difference is with
the compensable percent went down

know, you know, which part of it.

Q. Right. That's the time-

right?

A. Right. That's the part
separated out.

Q. Okay. That's fine.

Now, let me ask you, Geo

slide 13.
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So here in slide 13, aga
with the same data, if you -- see
column there?

A. Yes.

Q. These are the different
or the shares of distant subscrib
that are shown in your chart 2, ¢

A. The middle column?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. Allright. And so we se
15.9 percent for Public Televisio
in the year 2010 through '13, of
69.2 percent for independents. D
that?

A. Yes.

Q. Allright. So if we rem
this mix here, Public Television
38.8 percent, correct?

A. Of the remainder.

Q. Yes.

A. But -- but the remainder
different kinds of programming.

Q. Well, let's do it this w

mean, you got 16 percent of 100 p
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A. Yes.

Q. Right? And if you remov
say, 60 percent, correct, then yo
have 16 percent of the remaining
correct?

A. Yes,yes.

Q. And that will amount to
40 percent, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Allright. Soifyoudo

account of WGNA in your analysis

have a very significant effect on
Television, correct?
A. You mean if you use the

right? Or | guess | don't -- wha

don't take account of WGN" mean?

Q. If you eliminate WGNA fr

here and simply look at the remai

here --
A. Right.
Q. -- Public Television sha

significantly?
A. Sure. And so does Canad
so does everybody who is left, ri

Q. Right. Okay. Andthe s
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end up getting for Public Televis
WGNA, is about 38.8 percent. Do

A. Yes, because they were t
biggest one, right, of the bars i
You know, there was 59 -- or 15.9
then 10.2 for network and then 3.
since they were the biggest one o
yellow bar, then they're going to
biggest one here.

Q. Okay. Andsoiflasky
to your chart 7.

A. Yes.

Q. Do you have that? Which
21.

A. Yes,lseeit.

Q. Thisis where you show y
viewing in Dr. Gray's uncorrected
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And your share of viewin
to 33 percent; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And so that's ver
what would be shown if one just r

from the whole mix here in lookin
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1 distant subscriber instances anal
2 A. You mean it's close to t

3 the second bar that you put up?
4 Q. Yes.

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Okay.

7 A. Atleast for the --

8 Q. Well, it's actually the

9 A. Well, the one on the rig

10 Q. The one on the right. O
11 A. Yes. | don't know about
12 flip back to that?

13 Q. Sure. Geoff.

14 A. Butldon't know that th

15 everyone because Canada is 3.7 an

16 to -- looking back in the other -

17 Canada here is 9, but on your new
18 whatever one comes after this tha
19 up there, the -- it doesn't affec

20 same way. That's my point.

21 Q. Okay. Butthe pointis

22 don't properly take account of WG
23 kinds of analyses here --

24  A. Right.

25 Q. --thatare based upon s

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888

2584

ysis, correct?

hat other bar,

third bar.
ht.
kay.

the -- can we

at works for
d it goes

- in the -- so
chart,

t you just had

t everyone the

that if you
NA in these

ubject time



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

measures, it can have a very sign
effect --
A. Yes.

Q. --certainly at least on
Television?

A. Yes, yeah, | totally agr

Q. Okay. And also you know
converted from a broadcast statio
network beginning like at some po
correct?

A. 1did not know that.

Q. Allright. Well, assume
the case and they are no longer b
under the Section 111 royalty lic

A.  Um-hum.

Q. Had they converted in, s
looking at your distant subscribe
analysis here, would have produce
you -- that is, for Public Televi
around 38.8 percent?

A. You know, | don't know t
true because when TBS dropped out
super-station -- you know, it was
super-station and became a cable

WGN kind of filled in. You know,
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were a lot of people that didn't
and then WGN filled in.

So maybe, | don't know,
people -- other people are starti

Q. Allright. We did have
situation, though, in 1998 as you
converting. Right? It went from
super-station to a cable network,

A.  Um-hum.

Q. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And we also litigated th
proceeding involving cable royalt

A. Yes.

Q. And, in fact, in that pr
there was a substantial increase
Television's share of distant sub
instances. Do you recall?

A. You know, | don't rememb
remember that there were a lot of
that -- cable operators, that did
distant signals. That's what | r
that time.

Q. Okay. You don't recall

share of distant subscriber insta
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"your" | mean Public Television -
substantially increased?

A. You know, from before, |
| looked at before '98-'99. |th

the first year | started looking
measures.

Q. Allright. And the dist
instances analysis that you prese
presented as well in the 1998-'99
Public Television, correct?

A. Ithink it was a differe
but I think there was one present
Mr. Johnson, Dr. Johnson?

Q. Dr. Johnson. Remember h

Just --

A. Butl think there was so
subscriber instances, but | think
different analysis than I did.

Q. As apoint of CRB trivia
Dr. Johnson testified on a Saturd
day holds the record for the long
any one question. It went on for
pages. And it was a Saturday.

(Laughter.)

JUDGE BARNETT: Enough s
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1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

THE WITNESS: Can | ask
name was? Is it -- it wasn't Lel
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Ididn't call him by his

A. No. Does anybody know?
someone of some renown, Leland Jo

Q. Leland, yes. I|thinkit
different.

But you don't recall how

A. No. Irecall that it wa
analysis, but that it did include
instances.

Q. Okay. Let me ask you to
your testimony, your current test
6.

A. Yes.

Q. And on this page is wher
reference fee generation? You di
generation in your --

A. Yes, yes, at the bottom
mention it.

Q. Okay. And you say that
has been found to be flawed.

A. Yes.

Q. "Because the fees genera
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and?
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hnson.

was somebody
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subscriber

turn now to

imony, at page

e you

scuss fee

of page 6 |

the analysis
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retransmission distant signals do
all on the relative" -- and we go
page --

A. -- market value of the s

Q. "Butrather are a functi
payment rules themselves, which a
of legislative compromise and are
And you cite footnote 10.

And in footnote 10, that
testimony in the 2000-2003 procee

A. Correct.

Q. And in that proceeding,
whether the Canadian Claimants co
award that was based upon fee gen
you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q. They had submitted a con
survey and fee generation methodo
the combination of the two should
their award for 2000-2003?

A. Yes.

Q. And you testified in tha
in opposition to the claim of the
Claimants, correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. Andis it fair to say th
the Judges rejected your testimon
fact, did award the Canadian Clai
royalty share commensurate with i
generation?

A. Yes, they said that the
was wobbly, but of the choice tha
leaving the fee the same or using
which they were -- the only two ¢
available to them because -- some
the way the proceeding worked, th
adopted the fees generated.

Q. Okay. And if we can jus
Geoff, the final determination of
the 2000-2003 proceeding. And go
26804.

In the middle column dow
bottom, do you see that it's high

A.  Um-hum.

Q. Itsays, "We do conclude
1998-'99 CARP's fee generation ap
be accorded deference, not as the
to determine the relative marketp
the Canadian Claimants' programmi

methodology to determine that val
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Do you see that?

A. Right. And then right b
refers to the either/or choice.

Q. Right. Butitis a fact
generation has been used in proce
the years here as a measure of re
value?

A. There have been many thi
been used as a measure over the y
fee generation. And some of them
been, you know, not used.

Q. Okay. And if we look at
next chart here, which is on -- |
slide 8. We tried to compare her
that the Public Television Claima
received in the 1998-'99 proceedi
The award was 3.6 -- I'm sorry, f
and they received 5.7. Do you se

A.  Um-hum.

Q. And then in 2004-'05, fe
and they received 7.6.

A. Yes.

Q. And in 2010 through 13,
is 5.4 percent, right?

A. And are you saying they'
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14.9 or --
Q. | hope not.
(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Butthat's what they're
right? That's what counsel claim
opening statements here, 14.9 to

A. |--isthere a question

Q. Well, probably not.

(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Can we go to the next sl
probably not a question here eith
IS --

(Laughter.)
BY MR. GARRETT:

Q. Butitis fair to say th
Canadian Claimants over the years
their awards tied pretty closely
generation.

A. Their award was less tha
generation -- I'm confused by the
green is the fee gen, fee generat

Q. Yes.

A. Okay. Well, they were s
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tied, you know, in one way, and t
they were -- in 2004-2005, | thin
started with the survey but as th
used the fee gen as the ceiling a
something in the middle. | don't
the other...

Q. That completes your answ

A. Yes.

MR. GARRETT: That compl
cross-examination. Thank you ver
Ms. McLaughlin.

JUDGE BARNETT: Thank yo
Mr. Garrett.

Any other cross-examinat
witness? Will this be by Ms. Plo
Ms. Dominique?

MS. DOMINIQUE: Me.

JUDGE BARNETT: Thank yo

CROSS-EXAMINAT
BY MS. DOMINIQUE:
Q. Good afternoon. My name
Dominique and | represent Program

The 2010 through '13 Bor

excluded from their eligible samp

systems that carried distant sign
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the PTV and/or Canadian category,

A. Right.

Q. Now, the 2010 through "1
surveys did not exclude from thei
systems that carried distant sign
the PTV and/or Canadian categorie

A. Right, they included the
included them.

Q. Would you agree that as
2010 through '13 Bortz surveys an
through '13 Horowitz surveys, tha
better to include cable systems t
distant signals only in the PTV a
category than to simply exclude t
systems?

A. Right. The Bortz as sub
Horowitz, yes, it's better to inc

Q. And PTV gets a higher va
in the Horowitz survey than in th
survey, correct?

A. Oh, you mean the final a

Q. Correct.

A. Yes.

Q. So when systems carrying

signals only in the PTV and/or Ca
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categories are included, as they
Horowitz survey, and the PTV gets
value allocation?

A. Well, yes, but, you know
augmented Bortz, they are include
Horowitz survey gave an even high
the augmented Bortz. So it wasn'
inclusion of PTV potential respon
mean, in other words, Bortz threw
put them back in. And so the aug
has those people back in. And Ho
them in originally.

So | don't think the onl
the Horowitz survey is producing
for PTV is because it included th
particular -- you know, those kin
respondents that were ex'd out of
Bortz study.

Q. Now, in the augmented Bo
you assumed a response rate that
with the response rate for the Bo

A. Yes.

Q. But because those system

PTV-only and Canadian-only system

actually surveyed in the Bortz re
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don't know what the actual respon
have been?

A. That's right. It could
higher. | -- you know, | didn't
include all of them. Some of the
not have, you know, responded, bu
did -- you know, | didn't really
with the -- I didn't know what th
rate was, so | just assumed they
same as the other people in the s

In Horowitz, how they re
they responded.

Q. Right. So Horowitz used
response rates?

A. Yes, exactly.

Q. Okay. And that's unlike
in the augmented Bortz survey?

A. Right. I had to assume
rate.

Q. Would you agree that as
Horowitz survey and the augmented
that the Horowitz survey presents
basis for allocating shares to PT

A. Between the Horowitz sur

augmented Bortz?
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Q. Yes.

A. ldon'tknow. |did see
looked at that one measure of pot
to PTV in the rebuttal report, th
of carriage of PTV, you know, how
people who carried it carried, |
Bortz survey was low, was on the
seemed to under-represent having
having a normal level of PTV, an
of PTV carriage, but the Horowitz
percentage of PTV carriage than t

The Horowitz increase wa
as the decrease was lower, but th
they both had this type of partic
in the opposite direction. So |
-- | didn't reach the question, y
one definitely better than the ot
that on this particular measure,
closer to the universe, but in th
but in the other direction.

I'm just saying | didn't
between them. | saw that they ea
each would have a potential bias.

Q. So would it be your opin

should fall somewhere in the midd
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A. If that measure is -- if
that's relevant and it looked to
least part of it was explained by
system, | don't know whether -- i
someplace in between. Whether it
or not, | don't know.

And there are other --y

have been other criticisms of bot
other factors, so | don't -- | di
fully analyze that because the cr
didn't come out until the rebutta
and they were in areas that | wou
talk to somebody else to fully --
get a full picture of, you know,
guestion was asked or examples of
know, those kinds of criticisms.

Q. So as between the Bortz
Horowitz survey, which survey has

A. The augmented Bortz and
didn't look at plain Bortz, but -

Q. Sure. As between the au
and the Horowitz.

A. On that measure -- becau
looking at PTV.

Q. Sure. So as itrelates
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Right. Yes.

-- which survey has less

> 0 »

Horowitz.

Q. Would you agree thata s
less participation bias is prefer
that has more participation bias?

A. Yes. | mean -- yes, yes

Q. Now, | want to shift gea
you recall speaking with Mr. Garr

PTV's share? Well, | actually th
Mr. Dove, discussing with Mr. Dov
of the basic fund?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Let's take a look
page 25 of your direct testimony,
is, | believe, Exhibit 3012.

A. Yes. Table 2 or Table 3
said 3, but 2 is on the screen.

Q. |Isaid -- let me get the
| think it's Table 3.

A. There itis on the scree

Q. Okay. So for PTV's shar
fund for 2010 through 2013 based

regressions, you have a column ti

survey.
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A. Yes.

Q. And for 2010, you list 8
For 2011, it's 15.6. For 2012, i
for 2013, it's also 17.6.

Are these numbers -- the
not from the Horowitz survey, cor

A. It's the -- it's derived
Horowitz survey. So if you take
the -- in the Horowitz survey as
total royalties and divide that b
fund share of total royalties, wh
approximately 86 percent, you get
numbers.

Q. Okay. So let's take a |
Horowitz report, which is Exhibit
should be a binder right next to

A. With a green cover?

Q. With a green cover, corr

MS. PLOVNICK: If | may
can just hand her if that would b
BY MS. DOMINIQUE:

Q. Ifit's faster, co-couns

you a copy.

MS. PLOVNICK: You may a

2600

.8 percent.

t's 17.6. And

se numbers are
rect?

from the
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THE WITNESS: This one?

MS. PLOVNICK: There's s
binders.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.
BY MS. DOMINIQUE:

Q. And if you take a look a
which is on page 16.

A. Yes.

Q. So this table reflects H
weighted values for non-network p
carried by distant signal station
through '13 royalty years, correc

A. That's right.

Q. So the numbers that appe
3.2 are not the same as the numbe
in your Table 3?

A. No, in other words -- ri
Horowitz shows his results as wha
all royalties because he used all
to -- as his weights for the -- t
in his survey.

What percent turned out
that if PTV got, you know, 7.69 p
of total royalties, since they're

collecting from the basic fund, t
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get a bigger share of the basic r
order to get the same dollars.

Q. Okay. Sojustto be cle
suggesting that the values that y
in Table 3 and the values that ap
Horowitz report at Table 3.2 are

A. No, no. Oneis -- |1 mad
adjustment, right. And I think |
in the testimony. | intended to,

Q. Do you recall discussing
Mr. Garrett just a few minutes ag
was before lunch, the hypothetica

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you analyzed
hypothetical market in the 2010 -
proceeding?

A. No, I didn't actually an
hypothetical market. | was just
you know, what would happen in a
market and how that relates to wh
trying to do and why demand is wh
important, that, you know, it was
theoretical setup of why we're do
doing.

Q. For purposes of this pro
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you analyze the hypothetical mark

A. We looked at -- we discu
ways that people do things, both
again, both the concept of demand
important and that sometimes you
benchmark but we didn't find any
only in that context, possibly co
know, bargaining values, but we d
that would work, and so it was re
of setting the stage approach.

Q. So--

A. In both -- in both times

Q. Understood. So in your
with Mr. Garrett, | believe you t
your assumption, notwithstanding
actually did here, that -- excuse
assumption was that a hypothetica
still be regulated?

A. No, all right. So I thi
-- | don't know if that was confu
didn't mean it to be confusing.
how could we -- putting myself ba
into that time period that | was
then, how could we approach this?

hypothetically, if there was a re
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would have, you know, cable opera

bargaining, say, with the station
did have that occurring, how woul

place? It would only be relevant

took place under the same circums

but all of this is hypothetical.
what | mean?
There is no -- we never

it's more of a way to think about

if we were to use some benchmark

thinking about it, the way of thi
should be -- should reflect what
trying to do here. That's all |

Q. So do you have an opinio
hypothetical market, for purposes
proceedings, could look like?

A. You know, not -- | mean,
hypothetically what it could look
you know, not really. |1 mean, |
think | -- | thought the introduc
better this time than before in t
| thought it was a clearer way of
things. And maybe that's why | d
those words "hypothetical market,

| was -- | was just trying to thi
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we -- do we approach trying to co
relative market value when we don
actual market? That's all | mean

Q. Would you assume that th
prohibition on the insertion of a
would still exist?

A. If we were -- if we were
something that would help us unde
we're trying to do here, you woul

a prohibition on the insertion of
because we have -- we had in 2010
prohibition on the insertion of a
So we wouldn't want to |

something that was different in a
than what it is we're trying to a

Q. So that's the regulation
presume some regulation then in t
hypothetical market?

A. For a hypothetical marke
to analyzing what we're trying to
would have to look in some way i
trying to do, so there would -- h
restriction. You know, whether -
-- in the satellite rate proceedi

at cable networks in part as a be
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what the rate should be for satel
but in those cases, the rate that
rate for people who did not inser
advertising because | wanted it t
Maybe that example helps.

Q. So, essentially, you thi
hypothetical market would still b
market?

A. Yes, or subject to the s
restrictions.

JUDGE STRICKLER: | have
for you in that regard, if we go
your -- | guess it's your direct
this case, so that's Exhibit 3012

THE WITNESS: Yes.

JUDGE STRICKLER: In you
paragraph under section B, relati
value. Do you see that?

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: In the
there, you write, "In past procee
CARP has noted that" -- and then
your quote, quoting the CARP dete
"relative marketplace value is t

relevant criterion that should be
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so that's the end of the CARP quo
this standard" -- CARP quote agai

'simulate market valuation™ -- e
-- "as if there were no compulsor
regime -- was adopted and has bee
forward by the CRJs."
That's the end of your g
see that?
THE WITNESS: Right, yes
JUDGE STRICKLER: So it
at least, and correct me if I'm w
your understanding is that the le
from the CARP and carried forward
has been a marketplace in which t
compulsory licensing regime, whic
to what counsel was asking you ab
whether or not there would be any
At least your phrase "as
no compulsory licensing regime" a
suggests that you meant no regula
First let me ask you that.
THE WITNESS: Yeah.
JUDGE STRICKLER: Is tha
meant, no regulation at all by no

licensing regime?
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THE WITNESS: Well, whet
it would be by regulation or by o
factors, it should be something t
have one difference about it, tha
say, was inserted and that it was
let me explain.

That suppose | said, wel
other signals that somehow mirror
we're looking at. And | can see
charged for them, was, you know,
subscriber, and it was splitup 5
way.

So now we have a relativ
value, 50 for this side and 50 fo
Well, but then it turns out that,

benchmark, there's -- in addition
that they pay, they get to insert
So -- and maybe one of the two ge
lot more advertising, and so the
wouldn't -- wouldn't work as tran
regime where you're not allowed t
advertising.

JUDGE STRICKLER: | unde
That is a helpful way of restatin

said before, so | appreciate that
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But it sounds like what
is actually that we can't use an
marketplace as our, for lack of a
benchmark, to apply in this case
would be so different that the st
be something else. And then you
you've basically made the same st

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: In the
paragraph, you say you look at po
solutions for overcoming them, me
"them" meaning the challenges rel
the --

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: -- abs
marketplace. So it sounds like y
saying the standard itself as enu
CARP and as carried forward by th
really doesn't work because you'r
-- the unregulated marketplace is
if I'm understanding your testimo
correctly --

THE WITNESS: Right.

JUDGE STRICKLER: --is

apply that standard in this alloc
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because they're just too discorda

THE WITNESS: Well, that
that's what's happened in actuali
the unregulated marketplace, ther
like the insertion of advertising
difference.

And that's why that | ha
people point to that as a possibl
this case. You know, there have
are other cases where there is so

licensing regime and maybe under
as well, where advertising isn't
people do point to benchmarks. A
benchmarks may well be valid.

So | don't think that it
you shouldn't look for an unregul
without compulsory licensing, but
unregulated market has to have th
characteristics to this one.

JUDGE STRICKLER: Thank

BY MS. DOMINIQUE:

Q. So I'm going to move on
topic here. Excuse me. Do you r
discussion with Mr. Garrett about

group's share of compensable minu
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A. Yes.

Q. Okay. You did not calcu
compensable program minutes in th
did you?

A. No, | did not.

Q. Okay. So you don't know
claimant group's share of compens
minutes changes if one were to we
minutes by subscribers as opposed
weighting by subscribers?

A. ldon't know.

Q. Let's take alook at Dr.
rebuttal testimony. It's Exhibit
don't have it in front of you, |
copy.

A. These all seem to start

Q. Oryou can look at the s

A. Okay.

Q. Okay. Take a look, plea
19, Table 5. Okay, Table 5is en

of Compensable Minutes by Claiman

Weighted by Subscribers.

A. Yes.

Q. And do you see for the c
labeled 2010 through 2013, we hav
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Sports, Program Suppliers, CTV, P
Devotional, and Canadian ranging
36.3 percent?

A. Yes.

Q. And consistent with the
table, these shares are weighted
subscribers. Is that your unders

A. Yes. And | hadn't reall
that when Mr. Garrett was asking

guestion. They could be weighted
things. And royalties or, you kn
which may give different results.

Q. Okay. Butthese are wei

A. These are weighted by su

Q. Okay.

A. And thanks for pointing

Q. Okay. And these are wha
discussed with you?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Let's take a look
you reviewed Dr. Gray's written d
testimony in this case?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Let's take a look

written direct testimony. It's E
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page 16, Table 1.
Dima, if you could pull

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, are you awar
Dr. Gray calculated each claimant
compensable minutes in a manner t
weighted by subscribers?

A. I'm aware that there wer
of Dr. Gray's weighting of the co
minutes, but | did not focus on t
subscriber weight, which is why |
other chart, | had not noticed th
weighted by subscribers.

Q. Right. And justto bec
represent that Dr. Gray did not w
A. No. | know there was a

his weighting, yes.

Q. Allright. So taking a

1 on page 16 of Exhibit 6036, the
Levels and Shares of Retransmissi
by Royalty Year.

If we look at the final
share of all volume, we see Dr. G
unweighted valuations of the shar

compensable minutes of retransmis
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If you compare Table 1,

column, to the table that Mr. Gar

with you, is there a difference i

A. Yeah. Actually, if | ca
-- | can turn to page 16 here, if
pull up that other table because
| have Dr. Israel's.
Q. Sure.
MS. DOMINIQUE: Permissi

approach.

JUDGE BARNETT: Certainl

THE WITNESS: No, no, |
BY MS. DOMINIQUE:

Q. Okay. Allright.

A. Imean,ifyou pullupt
have this one here, if that works

Q. lunderstand. Okay.

A. Yeah, | see that the --
numbers -- well, they're in diffe
but the numbers are quite differe

Q. Okay. Is so if one were

subscribers, you get different nu

you do not weight by subscribers,

A. Yes. | mean, it's alit

because this is an average for th
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period and these are, you know, o
time, but | know if you look at ¢
see that they are -- | can see th
different.

Q. Okay.

A. So I'm not really sure.

was another problem with Dr. Gray
| can't discuss.

Q. Okay.

A. So I don't know to what
other problem is -- or the weight
result of the difference. | hope
right to say.

Q. Thank you.

MS. DOMINIQUE: No furth
JUDGE BARNETT: We're al
circumstances, so it's fine.
CROSS-EXAMINAT
BY MS. NYMAN:

Q. Good afternoon, Ms. McLa

A. Good afternoon.

Q. My name is Jessica Nyman
represent the Devotional Claimant
matter.

So you mentioned on your
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you are currently an affiliated c
NERA; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And prior to that, you w
VP, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Well, I guess there was
retirement.

A. Yes.

Q. Butyou were a senior VP
had worked at NERA since 1974; is

A. Yes.

Q. So you would agree that
regarded for the quality of its e
publications, and studies; is tha

A. You know, I'm aware of m
people that | work with. I'm awa
people. Right now I'm less aware
the other people who are there.
anything bad about NERA. I'm jus
I'm -- you know, we're -- it's no
committee approves what goes out.

There are people who loo
look at things, but sometimes, yo

seen things go out that | wasn't
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Q. If I could pull up onto
what has been marked as Exhibit 5
If we can't, then put it on the E
Do you see that on your screen?

A. Yes.

Q. And does that bear the m
NERA Economic Consulting white pa

A. Yes. Il don'treally --

Dr. Eisenach joined NERA after |
don't -- | don't think I've actua
him. So | don't -- you know, | ¢
opine about his work.

Q. Sure. If we turn to the
though, it says Dr. Eisenach is s
president and cochair of NERA's ¢
media, and Internet practice. Do

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Do you have any reason t
NERA would have a senior vice pre
cochair of the communications, me
Internet practice that wasn't qua
knowledgeable in the field of com
media, and Internet practice?

A. | am sure that Dr. Eisen

gualified economist. You know, |
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doubting that.

MS. NYMAN: Move to admi
into the record.

MR. STEWART: Objection,
There has been no foundation for
of this document, which is by ano

whom we have no opportunity to cr
that we understand this exhibit,
witness has already said she is n
with it or him.

MS. NYMAN: | plantoju
show a couple things and ask whet
that's presented in here is consi
understanding of certain trends i
retransmission consent to the mar

JUDGE BARNETT: | don't
going to be very elucidating for
objection is sustained.

BY MS. NYMAN:

Q. Soignoring that then, d
your conversation a few minutes a
Mr. Garrett on must-carry and ret
consent?

A. Yes.

Q. Andyou're aware that re
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consent is a legal obligation for
that elect -- or is a legal oblig
from the compulsory license that
systems to obtain consent from co
broadcasters that elect retransmi
prior to being able to retransmit
signals; is that correct?

A. Well, when you say it's
did study this at one time, not i
recent time period, but | saw tha
kind of a -- must-carry cannot re
separated from retransmission con
if you -- it would be one thing t
say in terms of bargaining, the s
want 100 million dollars or you ¢
and the cable system -- and the c
says, well,  won't carry you; I'
somebody else instead.

Q. And let me rephrase that
don't think | was clear. I'm not
the separation of must-carry from
retransmission consent. I'm just
the concept of retransmission con
fees that may be paid under retra

consent are separate from the cop

2619
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compulsory license and the fees t
to the copyright owners for the -

A. Yes, | understand that t
separate. | just meant that, you
fact that you could fall back on
you know, limits the bargaining p
other side.

Q. Right. So would you agr
those broadcasters that do elect
consent instead of must-carry, th

broadcasters expect to be compens
rights to retransmit their broadc

A. |l assume that they are g
something, but -- and | know in s

mostly I'm familiar with local re
consent, and there are some peopl
expected a lot, but | don't -- |
know, | don't really know any mor

Q. Right. But --

A. 1don't know that everyo

Q. Sure. But -- so you wou
in a local market, for example, w
broadcaster maybe a Nexstar or, y

MR. DOVE: Your Honor, t

this line of questioning seems to
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beyond the scope of Ms. McLaughli
testimony and rebuttal testimony
| don't see the connection.

MS. NYMAN: It's going t
changed circumstances, which is d
related to what she testified to,

JUDGE BARNETT: I'll giv
to make that connection. Overrul
BY MS. NYMAN:

Q. Sure. So on that point,

that in the time period -- you te

changed circumstances between the

of 2004 and 2005 and the time per
discussing here, which is 2010 to
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you aware that in t
of 2004 and 2005, by and large br
were not receiving cash compensat
rights to retransmit their signal

A. Distant signals?

Q. No, no, local or distant
general, retransmission consent r

A. You know, | don't rememb

retransmission consent -- | mean,
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it didn't happen and then it happ
don't -- | really don't know the

Q. Are you generally famili
trend, which has been since about
there has been an upward trend in
charged by broadcast stations to
operators for the rights to retra
signals?

A. Only -- I haven't seend
I've only -- I've seen -- I've se
general newspaper articles. That

Q. Allright. | believe in
biography, you listed as one of y

specialty cable and broadcast rig

you've analyzed proposed U.S. FCC

concerning cable and broadcast te
retransmitted television station
that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Andyou.

Re saying you're not fam

A. No, I'm --

Q. --anytrends in retrans

A. Right. I'm saying that

time periods that you -- that you
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that | did not study the trends i
retransmission payments.

Q. Okay. Are you aware the
retransmission consent applies on
commercial stations and that Publ
stations are not eligible for ret
consent fees?

A. Yes, |l am.

Q. And that's why for -- Pu
Television stations choose -- wel
must-carry or they are must-carry
you alluded earlier to commercial
could choose must-carry, but they
choose retransmission consent?

A. Locally, yes.

Q. And retransmission conse
distant signals as well, doesn't

A. lonly -- the only time
at retransmission consent, | was
at it in terms of local.

Q. Ifit were the case that
retransmission consent applied to
signals and, like in the local ma
applies to commercial broadcaster

agree then that a commercial or a
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would have to pay their compulsor
fee and, in addition to that, neg
the broadcaster for a commercial
you agree with that?

A. If --if -- not if that
tautology. You know what | mean?
saying if we assume it, then it w

Q. Well, I'm just saying th
between commercial and public. S
retransmission consent applies to
stations, not to public stations,
the local market?

A. Yes.

Q. And if we apply to the d
Just assume now that it does appl
distant market.

A. But are you suggesting t
distant market, that there are co
stations that pay -- that get pai
systems to be carried distantly,
outside of their local area, and
-- and those cable operators also
retransmission consent? | mean,
fund?

Q. Correct. There are two
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obligations. There is the copyri
goes to the copyright owners, and
retransmission consent fee that g
broadcaster for the right to retr
signal.

A. I'm -- the only thing th
like what happened with WTBS, tha
they were paid a fee for the sate
retransmission via satellite whil
separate from the other -- I'm no
I'm lost.

Q. Would you agree that bei
do something can be different tha
do something?

A. Yes.

Q. And on page 8 of your wr
testimony, you testified that if
to add a distant PTV station rath
carrying other distant stations,
that the CSO expects to create mo
itself and its subscribers by car
station?

A. Right. And the same wou
for -- if you take out PTV and pu

else in. Whatever they choose, t
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revealing that they prefer one ov

Q. Right. And I believe yo
earlier that -- with Mr. Garrett,
sometimes there is no local PTV s
a cable operator is importing a d
station; is that correct?

A. Sometimes that is true,

Q. Areyou aware that where
local PTV station, the FCC requir
system to import a distant signal
PTV signal?

A. You know, | know there a
this, but | don't think that thos
don't think they require them to
distant signal and pay the -- pay
for this. | didn't think that wa

Q. So your understanding is
cable operators don't have to pay
distant PTV signal if there is no

A. ldon't know the rules e
thought that they were not -- | t
there was a -- that there was som
-- | don't think this is what you
about -- | thought there was some

what was local for PTV was differ
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of the rule -- in terms of what's
this.

Q. Correct. And there's lo
that are --

A. So there's the -- what u
called the grade B contour and 35
that. That's the only part that
aware of, and | thought in those
that there wasn't an extra fee, b

are what they are.

Q. Andyou may be talking t
qualified local NCE, FCC's lingo
station, non-commercial, but this
separate concept of the distant P
where there is no qualified local

A. Okay. I'mnot-- I'm no
that.

Q. Do you think that in eva

changed circumstances from 2004 a

2010 to 2013, it would have been
understand disparate retransmissi
obligations between PTV stations

stations or mandatory carriage re

between PTV stations where they d

commercial stations?
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A. On the carriage requirem
that you mentioned about PTV, if
distant brought in where there is
that would not have -- there woul
been fewer local stations in the
cable between the two time period
talking about.

It wasn't that there wer
be very surprised to see that. S
look at -- | did not look at that

On the other part, I'm -
look into the -- what the retrans
consent things that you were talk
the -- or the other topic.

Q. Do you think that would
important to look at?

A. 1did not -- | didn't th
important, and if they are, someo
them out.

Q. Sojust to clarify that,
be important to know whether it w
expensive, even separate from the
copyright licensee, for a broadca
a commercial station and free, as

compulsory license fee, to carry
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A. ljustdon't understand
| mean, | don't -- | don't unders
don't understand what it is that
positing that there are -- there
for carrying just a distant? I'm
carry a distant station, commerci
from Boston and I'm in Washington

Are you saying -- are yo

hypothetically that in order to d
| have to pay the Boston station?
just for the getting it here; it'
for the --

Q. Fortherightto carry t

A. And, in addition, | have
this?

Q. You have to pay the copy
or the compulsory licensee to com
copyright owners.

A. And that would apply to
that | wanted to carry that was ¢

Q. There are certain except
super-stations, so setting aside
the most part, um-hum.

A. Well, | was not aware of

not sure whether it would affect
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or not.

Q. So, hypothetically, I'm
paying the minimum -- you're awar
is @ minimum compulsory license f
regardless of whether you import
signal or not, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Soif'maCSOandlha
minimum fee regardless of if | im
could choose to carry a PTV signa
there's no separate retransmissio
or | could elect to carry a comme
broadcast station but would presu
pay a little extra for that one?

A. Except if it was WGN.

Q. Unless it was WGN.

A. Okay. Well, it's possib
explains, in part, why WGN went u
up but not why PTV went up more t

Q. And then if, though, fro
2005, those retransmission consen
are paid to commercial broadcaste
say, 215 million in the aggregate
billion or some other comparable

trend --
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A. For distant imports, 3 a
billion?

Q. For retransmission conse
distant and local.

A. Well, but -- but how muc
is distant? | mean --

Q. Do you know?

A. ldon't know.

Q. Butifit--if it went
commensurate with local, wouldn't
suggest a reason why more PTV is
rather than -- and less commercia
being carried? Fewer commercial
being carried?

A. Yes, but it wouldn't --
how it would affect the division
pool because we're looking at wha
paying for what they're carrying,
they're not carrying.

Q. Butif we're talking abo
preference, it's not necessarily
between carrying something for fr
carrying something that's going t
more and you have to pay that min

matter what, do you think that af
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revealed preference?

A. It would affect the carr
decisions. But it wouldn't affec
they don't carry it, then it woul
the distribution of the royalties
didn't carry.

Q. Let'sturnto Dr. Gray's
study. So you testified that inc
relative viewing of the category
that subscribers value it to a gr

Is that correct?

A. Yes.
Q. On page 8.
A. Yes.

Q. This assumes that Dr. Gr
measure is reliable, correct?

A. To the extent that -- ri
the -- the example is true, wheth
if --

Q. Your citation to Dr. Gra
study is a suggestion that viewin
increased?

A. Right. Right, if his vi
incorrect, then it's not showing

originally showed.
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Q. And you haven't independ
the reliabilities -- reliability
viewing hour estimates, have you?

A. No.

Q. Andyou also testified o
that, based on Dr. Gray's data, P
distant compensable viewing incre
19.8 percent in 2004 to 27.1 perc
2013, an increase of 31 percent.
that?

A. What page?

MR. DOVE: Objection, Yo
think this is the wrong version o
Ms. McLaughlin's testimony on the

MS. NYMAN: It should be

THE WITNESS: Yes, that
that we're not using.

JUDGE BARNETT: Thank yo
we'll fix that.

Right, Ms. Nyman?

MS. NYMAN: Yes.

BY MS. NYMAN:

Q. Okay. We've got 3012 up

screen.

A. Yes.
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Q. So let's be precise here
say that there was an increase in
mean viewer hours, not number of
correct?

A. Right. It could be the
viewing it all those thousands of
you know, yes, it was viewers, bu
-- it doesn't count different vie
viewing hours.

Q. And looking at this char
viewing share also increased; is

A. Yes.

Q. Butthe data and estimat
methodologies in 2004 and 2005 ar
different from what was used in t
proceeding; isn't that right?

A. After Dr. Gray submitted
there were criticisms of his -- o
hours. And before those criticis
clear that they're -- you know, t
to be comparable.

Q. But, for example, Dr. Gr
National People Meter data instea
data? Were you aware?

A. Yeah, well, I'm not sure
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is actually -- is using now, but,
there are differences between peo
and sweeps data, but it's -- it's
they're irreconcilable.

Q. Well, for example, Natio
Meter data doesn't cover all geog
markets for either distant or loc
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And in contrast, sweeps
cover all markets and it's weight
market-level viewing, correct?

A. Yes, but there is always
in getting measures of viewing of
stations, you know, viewing of th

the places where they're distant.

been the case no matter which mea

Q. Soyou acknowledge that
different, that the data that's b
the 2004 and '05 and --

A. Yes, but I don't know th
problem is of particular importan

Q. Earlier you acknowledged
were aware that Dr. Gray's viewin

proceeding -- sorry, strike that.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888

2635

you know,
ple meter data

not that

nal People
raphical

al viewing,

data does

ed to estimate

a difficulty
distant

e stations in
And that has

sure was used.

they're

eing used in

at that
ce.
also that you

g data in this



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Were you aware that the
in this proceeding doesn't includ

A. | -- only because of som
don't think I'm supposed to talk

Q. | believe we're allowed
the fact that a correction was su

just won't elaborate on, you know
of what was done afterwards.

A. ldidn't know we could t
reason why the correction was mad
-- | read the corrected report, s
of it.

Q. And there's no PTV on WG
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Lastly, you also cite to
and Israel regression methodologi
growth -- you cite to the Crawfor
methodologies to show a growth in
relative value?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. But similar to the Gray
study, you haven't independently
whether the Crawford or Israel re

reliable, have you?
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A. I mean, I've looked at t
have not -- right. | -- I am not
know, this is the right way to do
looked at other -- I've seen the
that were made and also the, you
changes that were made, and none
of those things made me say like,
not -- you know, you better not r
Q. Butyou didn't look at t
run your own tests?
A. Idid notrun my -- I di
separate regression, no.
Q. And you didn't independe
any tests on the sensitivity, did
A. No.
Q. Thank you.
MS. NYMAN: No further g
JUDGE BARNETT: Addition
cross-examination?
MR. ERVIN: One more, Yo
CROSS-EXAMINAT
BY MR. ERVIN:
Q. Good afternoon, Ms. McLa
name is Dave Ervin and I'm here o

the Commercial Television Claiman
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A. Okay.

Q. I wantto go back to you
circumstances method that you've
think it is represented in your d
testimony and followed up in your
testimony. Is that an accurate s

A. ldon'tthink that -- |
the changed circumstances was fol
the rebuttal, but it is represent

direct testimony.

Q. Sotodo, that let's loo
direct testimony, which is Exhibi
page 2. And as | understand it,
described it, you need a starting
the changed circumstance analysis
fair?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And at page 2, |
the appropriate method for determ
relative marketplace value of dis
stations is to adjust the results
average share awarded.

A. Yes, | say that's an app
appropriate method.

Q. Okay. And that's the st
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that you use and it's referenced
Table 1 and your Table 2, which w
just a minute, but that's the sta

A. Exactly.

Q. Okay. And then further
page 2, you talk about the relati
carriage of distant PTV stations,
subscriber instances. Right?

A. Yes.

Q. And you say that that in
the relative marketplace value of
signals has increased. That's ki
starting point for determining if
change of circumstance?

A. Well, it was my starting

that was the first thing that | s

seemed -- | had looked at changed

before, and there was less of a ¢
seemed to be a bigger change.
So | -- but it would --
anything could be the starting po
just where | started.
Q. Okay. And at the bottom
continuing to 3, also the same ex

bottom there where it begins the
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increase, here you're talking abo
relative increase in the distant
PTV signals can provide -- the re
increase in carriage alone can pr
basis for determining the increas
value. Is that right?

A. That's not what the sent
says based on this increase in ca
based on this alone, this is what

It's not --

Q. Okay.

A. --that the -- that you
on that alone. | would -- since
measure, | would always want to ¢
there's anything that indicated t
went down even though the units w
didn't go up as much. Itwould b
to go down while the units went u
suppose that's theoretically poss

Q. Okay. Let's go to page
your direct testimony, Exhibit 30
there's -- on page 12 there's a p
begins -- we'll wait for it up he
"based solely on this measure."”

for you on here. Yeah. Thank yo
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"Based solely on this me
A. Right.
Q. -- and the measure being

carriage increase --

A. Right.
Q. --forPTV?
A. Right.

Q. And that's comparing '04
2010-'137?

A. Correct.

Q. So based solely on this
assuming there were no other evid
changes in the relative value, an
distribution for 2010 through 201
would be to increase its share of
fund in proportion to its growth
subscriber instances.

A. Right. In other words,
what | said before, if we base it
and assuming there's no other evi
changes, that nothing else change
would happen.

Q. Okay. And as for -- the
want to come back to, but in prop

growth in the distant subscriber
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that's all we're talking about so
point in your report, right?

A. Right.

Q. Okay. Ifl could look a
which is on page 13 of Exhibit 30

A. Yes.

Q. Which is your first tabl
we start with the 7.55 percent, w
share that was awarded to Public
the '04-'05 case, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And then you've calculat
the relevant years here, 2010, '1
'13, the relative percentage incr
distant subscriber instances, rig
the 23 percent?

A. Yes, the --

Q. 35--

A. Yes, based on -- right,
share of distant subscriber insta

Q. Okay. And then you've a
increase, the '04-'05, to 2010-'1
each year, to the 7.55 share from

A. Yes, mathematically.

Q. Right. Mathematically,
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that gets the updated shares that
A. Yes.
Q. --right? And no other

been made? No other --

A. No. It--
Q. -- consideration has bee
that yet?

A. To that calculation, no.
itis.

Q. Okay. Solwantto see
there might have been a couple of
qualifications in your direct tes
just wanted to just confirm. The
would be footnote 18 on page 11,
Exhibit 3012. And this is the pa
you're at it, Ms. McLaughlin, you

A. Yes, |l am.

Q. Okay. This is the part
reference multi-cast signals.

A. Yes.

Q. It's Exhibit 3012 where
It's page 11, footnote 18. Okay.

And | believe you were h
conversation with Mr. Garrett bef

multi-cast signals. And | just w
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about a specific reference you ma
it says, "The use of multi-cast s
responsible for some of the incre
of distant PTV signals."

A. Yes.

Q. What did you mean by tha

A. | mean that that increas
subscriber instances from, | thin
to 15.9 percent, part of that cha
change in between the two, part o
3.8 percent point increase is mul
didn't exist before, being import

And the other part is no

It's just a regular PTV station.

Q. Okay. And does that --
did that do anything to or make y
percentage change calculation tha
in distant subscriber instances?

A. No, it was -- it was jus
know, here's something new that's
carried.

Q. Okay.

A. Soitwas kind of a reas
might be an increase. Something

and people were carrying that.
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Q. Okay. And if we could g
also in Exhibit 3012, there's ano
to this same issue that | just wa
with you. You're discussing at t
cable operators surveys, but you

notation there near the bottom wh

"we noticed several large systems

multi-cast stations -- a major fa
underlying the increase in relati
carriage."

Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. My first question is it
major?

A. It's half.

Q. Half? Okay. And, again
noting that it was something that
to the increase in the PTV signal

A. Right. Right, and it wa
this was something that didn't ex

exists now. It was part -- it wa

the change goes, it was, you know
change and these -- the large sys

carrying regular PTV but also mul

weren't in the Bortz survey, but
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Horowitz. That's what | found.

Q. Okay. And then if we co
page 12, also in Exhibit 3012, an
reference that we were talking ab
There was one other -- what | thi
qualification to the use of the i
Let's wait until we get there.

A. Based solely on this mea

Q. Yes, that sentence right
solely on this measure, assuming
other evidence of changes in the
of PTV programming.

A. Right.

Q. And by that, is it -- th
second part of your direct testim
where you're examining the expert

A. Right. Sofirst | look
units and say pretty big, you kno
here, but what happened to the va
| look at these value measures.

Q. Okay. Now, had you -- w
of your consideration before you
the expert reports that were subm
other claimants or was it after?

A. Well, | didn't have the
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value until after | got the other
expert reports. But then -- but
sentence would have applied had |
it, assuming that -- if you know
Q. Ithink I do, but let me

So the other expert repo
talk about in your direct testimo
in here in your direct, your writ
testimony, you're talking about t

those, the review of those, and n

changed circumstances method, usi

basis to establish a value measur

A. Right. Firstis the --

Q. --Ithinkis the wordy
before, right?

A. First using them to see
went up, at least as much as the
Because it might not have. And t
them to see, you know, how much i
these different value measures.

Q. Okay. Ithink I've hear
direct and through some of the ot
guestioning and having read this
not another basis that you're rel

than what's discussed in your dir
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which is your review of the vario
studies. Is that accurate?

A. In terms of whether or n
other evidence of changes in rela
PTV programming, besides that?

Q. Exactly.

A. Right. So thatif | did
other studies, all | would be abl
based on changes in measures that
from CDC, particularly units meas

know, any other measures that the
changes in those measures would h
increase of, you know, at least 3
you know, in that range, but | th
my report would be of more limite
it would -- it would have been su
well, do you know whether the val
Well, you know, | don't.
So | don't know it did.

it didn't. But it would be up to
know, it wouldn't be as strong as
other measures of value.

Q. Okay. Let me ask -- 1w
a couple questions about your dis

other measures of value. So the
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would be on page 15 of Exhibit 30
is the part where you're talking
cable operator surveys.

A. Yes.

Q. And you're specifically
observation about the augmented B
that you had calculated and that
talked about today, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And, specifically
talking about here a comparison a

noting that the increase in the a
results from '04-'05 to 2010-'13
increase that ranges between 24 a
or about 31 percent on average an
is in line with the 32 percent ch
the increase in distant PTV subsc
instances alone."

A. Right.

Q. Right? So that observat
noted there, what did that do for
confirm that your calculation was
distant subscriber instances was
it --

A. No, what it did for me w
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that when you -- when you have a
that the value went up about the
units; therefore, the unit -- the

go down. Like from that other se
were asking me about, you know, a
change in value, well, this one i
saying there's no change in value
in the value by itself, the value
more or less than the units.

Q. I mean, what I'm wonderi
is -- does the alignment confirm
you were doing your analysis that
Bortz results right there, they'r
the increase, or because it align
just using that as a reference po
oh, I'm on the right track?

A. No, it's because it alig
also because the other ones are h
know that the value went up at le
the units.

Q. And by "the others," you
other value measurements that you
about?

A. The other value measurem

Q. Okay. Let's talk about
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moment about your discussion on t
studies. So if we could turn to
still in Exhibit 3012. And here
about the econometric studies fro
Waldfogel and Crawford. And you
a reference that they supplied an
seemingly comparable basis. Doy

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now -- and you ju
a question about sort of how you
reviewed them. But did you revie
level to become familiar with how
different and how they might be s

A. Yeah, and | particularly
Dr. Crawford said he did pretty m
thing but he made three changes.
changes were generally like inste
only minutes based on some short
time, he used all the minutes. |
there were three changes and I'm
them, but two, at least two of th
greater precision in measurement.
the other one was subscriber grou
Waldfogel, he used -- he used dis

partially distant as a -- he cons

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202) 628-4888

2651

he econometric
page 18, also
you're talking
m Drs.

start out with
alysis on a

ou see that?

st were asked
carefully
w them at a
they might be
imilar?
noted that
uch the same
But the
ad of using
period of
nstead of --
going to lose
em were just
And | think
ps. Butin
tant,

idered partial



© 00 N o o b~ w N PP

N N NN NN R B R R R R R R R R
ag A W N BB O © 0 N oo O »d W N+, O

distants.

So subscriber groups and

distants kind of relate to each o

Q. Right, okay. If we stay

there, right, | guess where we ar

right there, yeah, really the nex

reads -- you're making a referenc

of each minute of programming. R

you've had some questions today -

talking about this value measure

your changed circumstances model,

A.
Q.

Right.

And, again, you're compa

share from '04-'05 against the es

are coming out of, in this case,

regression, right?

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

Crawford compared to Wal
Compared to Waldfogel, r
Right.

And, specifically, one o

that you're comparing is the marg

minute that's estimated for both?

A.

Right. I looked at the

per minute, right.

Q.

Okay.
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A. And that was a direct in
value by itself as opposed to a m
mean, it was a direct -- it was o
side as opposed to the quantity s
value is, you know, a quantity ti
right?

So when other people --
surveys, you only have a value pe
don't have a price percent and a

right? It's sort of built in und
they're splitting it out.

In the comparison betwee
and Crawford, he has his -- he sp
states a price at a level that's
Waldfogel.

Q. Okay. And when you were
review, did you look to the level
determine if those marginal value
statistically significant under b
and Dr. Crawford?

A. The -- Waldfogel's value
statistically significant but Cra
And so -- and Crawford's, | belie
outside limit at the bottom for C

have been like just barely touchi
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4.2 percents that Waldfogel said,
know what | mean? Like the 5.1 w
something like 4 to 6. | mean, a
Something in that range.

Q. Yeah. Actually, I first
at it the other way. So if you -

A. If you looked at it the
since Dr. Waldfogel's cents measu
significant, then it would -- the
would be within the bounds on the
could go from O to 8, something |

Q. Right, yes. So you did
that level of detail.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So then it would
say then that the value that's es
Dr. Crawford's model for PTV is w
confidence intervals from Dr. Wal
estimates from the '04-'05 case?

A. But not vice versa, depe
level of significance that you we

Q. Andso -- andthenif I’
on the same page there, would you
there's no statistical basis for

to assert that those two numbers
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from each other for the purposes
using them here, right?

A. Certainly if you start w
that's true. If you start with C
there's a high probability that t
different. So -- but | was just
a point estimate and as something
that there was an increase in the
variable.

If we didn't have that i
could just say, well, there's an
the value, so we can -- and just
We didn't have to have the price
just liked the fact that here's s
estimated just the other piece th
have any -- any chance to look at
subscriber instances.

Q. Okay. Let's take a look
2, which is on page 24 of Exhibit

A. Yes.

Q. And I'll wait until we g

| just wanted to note, a
Table 1, so we're starting -- you
with the PTV share from '04-'05 a

across the top, right?
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A. Yes.

Q. 7.55. And then the perc
increases that you're showing in
PTV share, the way you've already
subscriber instances because that
1, right?

A. Right.

Q. And then the rest of the
there, you're calculating the per
increase year to year and then ex
down below on what's called the u

A. Yes.

Q. Right?

A. Right. So that -- so th
were looking at Crawford, so on t

under Crawford is 7.55 percent.
share from '04-'05. For the whol
there was a 176 percent increase.
multiply 7.55 times 2.76, to get
increase in, you come to 20.8.

Q. Okay. And the calculati
you've made are only those, right
applying the percentage change th
calculated in expressing it in th

percentage, right?
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A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Ithink you had t
maybe in your direct, that your o
that the Public Television share
least 9.9 percent but probably gr
that based on other value measure

A. Right.

Q. Ithink I heard you righ
right?

A. Yes.

Q. And by "other value meas
mean your calculations here that
provided for the Judges; is that

A. Right. Based on -- righ
Horowitz, Crawford, and Israel.

MR. ERVIN: | have no fu
guestions. Thank you very much,
Ms. McLaughlin.

JUDGE BARNETT: Cross-ex
the Canadian Claimants group?

MR. SATTERFIELD: No, ma

JUDGE BARNETT: Redirect

MR. DOVE: No, Your Hono

JUDGE BARNETT: Anything

this withess? Thank you very muc
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Ms. McLaughlin. You may be excus

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE BARNETT: Here we
think by agreement, Dr. Erdem wil
tomorrow?

MR. MacLEAN: Yes, Your

JUDGE BARNETT: And my s

his testimony will last all day.
any contrary surmising? All righ
And this is a week we do
Friday session. So we'll see you
We'll see if we can get through D
tomorrow and go from there.
Thank you very much. We
until 9:00 o'clock in the morning
(Whereupon, at 2:58 p.m.
recessed, to reconvene at 9:00 a.

Thursday, March 8, 2018.)
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l. Qualifications and Summary

I am an economist and a Special Consultant at National Economic Research Associates,
Inc. | have conducted research on entertainment and media industries for over 30 years. | have
analyzed marketplace prices paid for copyright licenses, reasonable rates for such licenses, and
the distribution of fees collected to individual rights owners in a variety of media, including
cable networks, broadcast stations, television programs, motion pictures, books, music
compositions and recorded songs. | have submitted reports to and/or testified before the
Copyright Royalty Judges and Copyright Arbitration Royalty Panel (CARP) concerning the
distribution of cable royalty funds, the distribution of satellite royalty funds, the compulsory
license fee for satellite-retransmitted broadcast stations, and the costs and revenues of the record
labels affiliated with the major U.S. record companies. In addition, | have submitted reports to
the Federal Communications Commission and the Federal Trade Commission, and have testified
before state and Federal courts and arbitrators concerning entertainment market issues. A

detailed statement of my qualifications is attached as Appendix 1.

Counsel for the Public Broadcasting Service asked me to address two issues relevant to
the relative value of distant Public Television (PTV) stations imported by cable operators in
2004-05: whether there has been a major change in the factors that would affect relative
marketplace values between 1998-99 and 2004-05 and what the outcome of the Bortz survey
would likely have been had the survey not omitted systems that imported only distant PTV

and/or Canadian stations.

In summary, I conclude:

= There was no major change in the factors that would affect relative marketplace value
in 2004-05. Available data indicate that there was no decrease in demand for
imported PTV programming. If anything, there was a slight increase in such demand.

= Had all systems with distant signals been considered eligible, the Bortz survey would
have been expected to find that cable operators attributed to PTV about 6 percent of
the fixed dollar amounts they spent on the distant signals they actually imported to
attract and retain subscribers in 2004-05.
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[I. No Substantial Changed Circumstances Between 1998-99 and
2004-05

A. Background
In 1998-99, the CARP awarded PTV 5.5 percent of the cable operator basic royalty fund.

It reached its decision based on a prior percentage allocation to PTV and a finding of no changed

circumstances since that time that affected PTV’s share.!

According to previous CARP proceedings and related court decisions, the standard for
determining the distribution of the royalties for cable-retransmitted distant signals among the
claimant groups that supply the compensable programming is relative marketplace value. The
hypothetical marketplace negotiations over such programming would occur between cable
operators and broadcasters (as intermediaries for copyright owners) for the rights to retransmit
entire broadcast signals.” Only demand is relevant in such negotiations—the demand by the
cable operators for the distant signals they choose to import. Demand for distant signals depends
on the prices and quality of the available substitutes—the local stations, cable networks and other
services offered by cable operators—the additional cost (if any) of bringing the distant station to
the cable system headend, and the income and taste of the cable system subscribers and potential

subscribers.

B. Carriage

Cable operators have a choice whether or not to carry distant signals. All systems must
pay a minimum fee covering one distant signal equivalent (DSE). That is, a cable system could
carry one independent station (equal to one DSE), four PTV stations or four major network
affiliates (each PTV and affiliate station equals one-quarter DSE) without paying additional
royalties.® Although one DSE is “free” with the minimum payment in terms of cable royalties,
the distant signal(s) use bandwidth that the operator may prefer to use for cable networks or other

services. As a result, many systems import no distant signals, and still others carry only a

1 Program Suppliers v. Librarian of Congress, 409 F.3d 395 at 399-400, 403-404 (D.C. Cir. 2005).

2 CARP Report, Cable Royalties for the Years 1990-92, Docket No. 94-3 CARP CD-90-92, May 31, 1996, pp. 22-
24; Report of the CARP to the Librarian of Congress, In the Matter of the Distribution of 1998 and 1999 Cable
Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2001-8 CARP CD 98-99, October 21, 2003, pp. 9-11.

¥ 17 U.S.C.A. Sect. 111(f) (2008).
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fractional DSE. In 1998-99 and 2004-05, Form 3 systems covering about 30 percent of
subscribers imported less than one DSE and paid the minimum fee—about 20 percent carried no
distant signals and about 10 percent carried only a fractional DSE. * For these systems, the value
of a distant signal (or an additional fractional DSE) is apparently less than the value of an
alternate use of the bandwidth the signal would occupy. In contrast, those systems that do
choose to carry distant signals reveal by their behavior that they value the chosen signals more
than alternate uses. As a result, a substantial change in the particular signals cable operators
choose to carry can be a meaningful indicator of a change in cable operator demand.

Slightly more subscribers were in cable systems that chose to carry distant signals in
2004-05 (82 percent) than in 1998-99 (76 percent). On average, cable operators that carried
distant signals chose to carry about the same number of distant signals per subscriber: 1.51 in
1998-99 and 1.46 in 2004-05. The composition by type of signal also remained relatively the
same. For example, the average subscriber with distant signals received 0.15 PTV stations in
1998-99 and 0.18 PTV stations in 2004-05. See Chart 1.°

Based on data supplied by Cable Data Corporation (CDC). These and other data in my report represent data
supplied by Form 3 systems. Form 3 systems accounted for 91 percent of subscribers in 1998-99 and 94 percent
in 2004-05; they paid 96 percent of royalties in 1998-99 and 97 percent in 2004-05. The CDC data used in my
analyses are described in the Direct Testimony of Jonda K. Martin, also submitted in this proceeding.

Based on data supplied by CDC. The total includes Low Power and Mexican, which averaged 0.01 signal per
subscriber or less.
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Average Number of Distant Signals Per Subscriber, By Type Chart 1
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Another way to see that the composition of the distant signals carried remained
approximately the same in 1998-99 and 2004-05 1s to look at the percentage distribution of
distant subscriber incidents. (One distant subscriber incident is one subscriber receiving one
distant signal.) Total distant subscriber incidents increased slightly from 68.0 million in 1998-99
to 70.7 million in 2004-05. The number of distant PTV subscriber incidents increased from

7.0 million in 1998-99 to 8.5 million in 2004-05. PTV accounted for 10 percent of the distant
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CORRECTED

subscriber incidents in 1998-99 and 12 percent in 2004-05.° The percent of distant subscriber

incidents for other types of signals was even more stable over the two periods. See Chart 2.’

Percent Distribution of Distant Subscriber Incidents, By Type Chart 2
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PTV also achieved similarly small increases by other measures. PTV accounted for 0.039 DSEs out of a per-
subscriber average of 1.190 DSEs in 1998-99 and 0.044 out of 1.145 in 2004-05. PTV accounted for 3.2 percent
of fees generated in 1998-99 and 3.4 in 2004-05. [Data provided by CDC.] Compared to subscriber incidents,
however, PTV accounts for a smaller percentage of average DSEs per subscriber and of fees generated due to the
arbitrary designation of PTV signals at one-quarter of a DSE. As I explained in an earlier report, fees generated
reflect the payment framework of the compulsory license and attribution methods, rather than the value of the
programming on the retransmitted stations. See Testimony of Linda McLaughlin, In the Matter of Distribution
of the 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2008-2 CRB CD 2000-2003, January 30,
2009, PTV 04-05 Ex. 9.

Based on data supplied by CDC. Low Power and Mexican stations accounted for less than 1 percent of
subscriber incidents.
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C. Unadjusted Bortz Survey

Each year, Bortz Media & Sports Group, Inc. (Bortz) conducts a survey of a random
sample of cable operators.® The cable operators are asked how they would allocate a fixed
budget among the different programming categories on the distant signals they actually carried in
the preceding year. The survey results reflect the collective valuations made by the eligible
respondents. Certain potential respondents, however, are deemed ineligible: those that carry
distant signals only in the PTV and/or Canadian category. For this reason, Trautman
acknowledges that the survey results for PTV and Canadian program categories require
adjustment.® Nevertheless, the reported survey results can provide useful information about any
substantial changes in relative value between 1998-99 and 2004-05 for two reasons. First, the
ineligible potential respondents are similar in the two time periods.'® Second, many of the
eligible survey respondents import distant PTV and/or Canadian signals along with independents

and network affiliates.*

The unadjusted Bortz survey shows no substantial change in cable operators’ relative
values of the different types of programming. For example, in 1998-99, the surveyed cable
operators attributed 2.9 percent of the value of the distant signals they imported to PTV
programming in 1998 and 1999; the surveyed group attributed 3.5 percent to imported PTV
programming in 2004 and 3.7 percent in 2005.** Changes in other categories between 1998-99
and 2004-05 are of similar magnitude. See Chart 3.%

Testimony of James M. Trautman, Bortz Media & Sports Group, Inc., Cable Operator Valuation of Distant
Signal Non-Network Programming, June 1, 2009 (Trautman, 2009).

°®  Trautman, 2009, pp. 7-8.

% Including the omitted systems that carry only PTV and Canadian distant signals would have increased the size of

the eligible sample by 6 to 8 percent in 1998-99 and 4 percent in 2004-05.

1 For example, in 2004, 59 of the 162 eligible respondents carried distant PTV signals and 11 carried distant

Canadian signals (Trautman, 2009, pp. 15-16).

2" The observed increase is within the range of sampling variation.

B3 Trautman, 2009, p. 6, Table 1-2. Detail may not sum due to rounding.
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Unadjusted Bortz Survey: Chart 3
Relative Value Of Distant Signal Programming, By Category
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Based on both carriage data and the unadjusted Bortz survey, there was no substantial
change in the relative demand of cable operators for imported programming between 1998-99

and 2004-05. The small changes that occuired were generally in favor of PTV programiing.

lll.  Augmented Bortz Survey Results

Available inforination allows me to compute the values the 2004 and 2005 Bortz surveys
likely would have found had they not excluded froin the original samples cable operators that
carried only distant PTV and/or Canadian signals. I refer to the larger sample as the auginented

Bortz survey.

A. Background

The Bortz survey asks cable operators to estunate the relative value of the different
programming types broadcast by the particular distant signals they carry. Specifically, the 2004

survey asked:
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Now, | would like you to estimate the relative value to your cable system of each
type of programming actually broadcast by the stations | mentioned during 2004 [as
those your system carried from other cities], other than any national network
programming from ABC, CBS and NBC. That is, how much do you think each such
type of programming was worth, if anything, on a comparative basis, in terms of
attracting and retaining subscribers. We are only interested in [repeat list of distant
stations carried].

Assume you had a fixed dollar amount to spend in order to acquire all the
programming actually broadcast during 2004 by the stations I listed. What
percentage, if any, of the fixed dollar amount would you spend for each type of
programming? Please write down your estimates, and make sure they add to 100.%

The Bortz survey uses seven program categories, five of which appear on U.S.
independent stations and network affiliates—movies, live professional and college sports,
syndicated shows, news/public affairs and devotional/religious programming—and two of which
are specific to a station type—PTV and Canadian stations.™

But for two factors, the Bortz survey results would show how the cable operators
themselves would have allocated the compulsory licensing royalties they paid to carry that
programming. The first factor is the omission of cable operators selected in the sample but
deemed ineligible to respond because they import only PTV or Canadian distant stations. As a
result of this omission, the value given for PTV and Canadian programming is a floor.** Had
these omitted operators been included, they would have been restricted to “dividing the value”
among only one programming category, PTV or Canadian, respectively. As a result, it is self-
evident what these omitted operators would have replied, if they had been included and had
followed the survey instructions: those that carried only PTV would be required to say 100
percent for PTV programming and, similarly, those that carried only Canadian stations would be

¥ Trautman, 2009, Appendix B, 2004 System Operator Programming Questionnaire, 4a. A similar question was

asked for 2005.

The programming category specifically includes all programming on these station types. For PTV the category
is: “PBS and all other programming broadcast during 2004 by U.S. noncommercial station ___ [the PTV
station(s) carried by the cable operator].”

18 Trautman, 2009, pp. 7-8; Report of the CARP to the Librarian of Congress, In the Matter of the Distribution of
1998 and 1999 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2001-8 CARP CD 98-99, October 21, 2003, pp. 25-26.

15
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required to say 100 percent for programming on Canadian stations.'” | added these omitted
systems back into the Bortz survey. The results of the augmented Bortz survey provide an

estimate of the PTV value, not a floor.

The second factor is the implied inclusion of certain noncompensable programming. In
general, two categories of programming contained on some imported signals are not
compensable: (1) ABC, CBS and NBC network programming and (2) certain programming,
particularly movies, syndicated and devotional programming, not retransmitted from the
programming broadcast by the television station WGN but inserted into the satellite-delivered
WGN signal.*® The survey instructs respondents to ignore the value of the noncompensable
network programming but not the value of the noncompensable WGN programming. As a
result, the values cable operators that import WGN ascribe to movies, syndicated series and
devotional programming are likely to include both compensable and noncompensable
programming, which would overstate the values of the compensable programming in these

categories.

B. Calculation of Augmented Bortz Survey Results

I received information identifying the cable operators picked to be surveyed but excluded
because they carried only PTV or Canadian distant signals. | recalculated the survey results,
assuming that these systems were eligible. | further assumed that these omitted systems would

have a response rate similar to those that were eligible and that they would have followed the

7" An omitted cable operator with distant PTV and Canadian stations, but no other distant stations, would have been
asked to divide the value among the two programming types. For such cable operators, the split in the relative
value between PTV and Canadian station programming would not be self-evident. No such cable operators were
omitted from potential respondents in 2004 and only two such operators were omitted in 2005.

18 Statement of Richard V. Ducey, June 1, 2009, also submitted in this proceeding.
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survey instructions. A simplified version of the recalculation for 2004 is set out below. It

produces an augmented survey result of 6.8 percent for PTV in 2004.°

° 162 respondents, 64.5 percent of those eligible, gave PTV a relative value of
3.5 percent.
° Nine systems were drawn in the original sample but deemed ineligible because

they carried only PTV distant signals. Had they been eligible, we would expect
64.5 percent of the 9 to respond, or 5.8 respondents, all of which would have
assigned PTV stations 100% of the relative value.

° One system was in the original sample but was ineligible because it carried only a
Canadian distant station. Had it been eligible, we would expect 64.5 percent of
the 1 to respond, or 0.6 respondents, which would have assigned PTV stations 0%

of the relative value.

. [(162 x 3.5%) + (5.8 X 100%) + (0.6 x 0%)] / [162 + 5.8 + 0.6] = 6.8%

The actual process is more complicated due to the stratification and weighting process
used by the Bortz survey. (See Appendix 2.) Nevertheless, the simplified result is similar to the

augmented survey result | obtained from the more complete process: 6.2 percent for PTV.

I undertook the same steps for the 2005 survey, with one exception. Among the original
sample of cable operators, there were not only those deemed ineligible because they carried only

PTV distant signals (seven systems) or only Canadian distant signals (one system), but also two

9 The relatively small size of the augmented result for PTV, like the size of the original PTV result, reflects the fact
that only about 30 percent of Form 3 systems and about 25 percent of Form 3 subscribers receive a distant PTV
signal (based on CDC data). The value given to PTV by respondents to the original 2004 survey for systems that
carried PTV was 11 percent, a value higher than those given to Canadian and devotional programming, but less
than other programming types (Trautman, 2009, p. 16, Table 11-2). The augmented survey, if restricted to those
that carried distant PTV stations, would give PTV a value of about 19 percent in 2004, a value in the same range
as news, syndicated programming and movies, and greater than the values given to devotional and Canadian
programming.

It is not surprising that distant PTV programming is highly valued by those that carry it. In 2004-05, virtually all
subscribers received a local and/or distant PTV signal. A substantial portion of those with a distant PTV signal
had no local PTV signal. In 2004-05, 27 percent of Form 3 subscribers with a distant PTV station had no local
PTV station. [Data provided by CDC.] For such subscribers, a distant PTV signal is the only way they can
receive PTV programming.
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ineligible systems that carried both PTV and Canadian distant signals. Because it is unclear how
respondents 1n the last group would have split their relative values between PTV and Canadian
station programming, I used a range of responses: the extremes of 100 percent PTV/0 percent
Canadian and 0 percent PTV/100 percent Canadian. My estimate for the augmented Bortz

survey 1n 2005 is a range depending on the assumed answer of the last group: 5.9 to 6.2 percent.

When the ten omitted systems that caried only PTV and/or Canadian distant signals are
added to each year’s survey, the estimated values for PTV and Canadian programming increase
and the estimated values for the five other categories decrease. The augmented results for 2004-

05 for each of the seven programming categories are summarized on Chart 4.%°

Augmented Bortz Survey: Chart 4
Relative Value Of Distant Signal Programming, By Category
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Both the unadjusted and augmented Bortz survey results show the percentage value of all
royalties —basic, 3.75 and syndex royalties—paid by the surveyed cable systems that the

respondents assign to each programming type. Since PTV receives payments from only the

2 Methodology and sources are described in Appendix 2. Detail may not sum due to rounding.
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basic fund, an adjustment to the augmented survey results is needed to produce PTV’s share of
the basic fund.?! This adjusament divides the augmented PTV results by the percent of all
Form 3 royalties in the basic fund: 85.0 percent in 2004 and 85.9 percent in 2005.? The
adjusted PTV results equal about 7 percent. See Chart 5.%

Augmented Bortz Survey: Chart5
Relative Value Of Basic Fund Distant Signal Programming, By Category
100% S —
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“ Report of the CARP to the Librarian of Congress, In the Matter of the Distribution of 1998 and 1999 Cable
Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2001-8 CARP CD 98-99, October 21, 2003, p. 26, fu. 10.

“* Based on data provided by CDC.

Based on Chart 4 and data supplied by CDC. Since only syndicated programming participates in the syndex
fund, the other categories are also adjusted for their fund participation. (The nonsyndex adjustment factor, 99.97
percent in 2004 and 2005, produces virtually no change.) All categories other than PTV are adjusted for the
increase in PTV’s share. Detail may not sum due to rounding.
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V.

Conclusion

In summary, I conclude:

There was no major change in the factors that would affect relative marketplace value
in 2004-05. The relative number of subscribers receiving distant PTV and other
signals and the Bortz survey results indicate that there was no decline in the demand
for imported PTV programming. In fact, there were slight increases in these values.

The augmented Bortz survey, which includes systems that carried only PTV or
Canadian distant signals, would have been expected to find that cable operators
attributed to PTV about 6 percent of the fixed dollar amounts they spent on the
distant signals they actually imported to attract and retain subscribers in 2004-05.
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N E RA National Economic Research Associates, Inc.

Economic Consulting 1166 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10036
212345-3000 Fax 212 345-4650

Direct dial 212 345-5340
linda.mclaughlin@nera.com

www.nera.com

LINDA McLAUGHLIN
SPECIAL CONSULTANT

Ms. McLaughlin specializes in antitrust and trade regulation. She has prepared studies of
relevant product and geographic markets, market structure and performance, the impact of
mergers and acquisitions, vertical and horizontal arrangements, and pricing and purchasing
practices. These studies have focused on various consumer and producer industries, with
particular emphasis on media and insurance.

Her work in the media and entertainment industries also includes: analyses of proposed US
Federal Communications Commission rules concerning cable and broadcast television; pricing of
music copyrights and retransmitted television stations rights; evaluation of motion picture talent
contracts; the impact of a new magazine introduction; the reasonableness of cable, home

satellite, and recorded music projections; and the value of cable systems, cable networks, and
newspaper distributors.

In the area of insurance, she has also studied the effect of state rate regulation and deregulation
of large commercial transactions, as well as the causes of the liability insurance crisis and its
effect on reinsurers.

In addition, Ms. McLaughlin has performed studies of impact and damages in connection with
antitrust, contract, trademark, and other litigation. The firms involved in these studies have
included: manufacturers of consumer electronics products, fertilizers, windows, paint, and
pharmaceutical products; distributors of chemicals, steel, beverages, and telecommunications
services and equipment; tobacco growers; and satellite and internet service providers.
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Education

Linda McLaughlin

University of Pennsylvania
M.A., Economics, 1970

Marquette University
B.S., cumlaude, Mathematics, 1968

Professional Experience

1974-

1970-1974

NERA Economic Consulting

Special Consultant (since 2009)

Specialization: antitrust and trade regulation, intellectual property, economic
damages.

Primary industries studied: media and entertainment, including broadcast, cable
and satellite television, broadcast and satellite radio, motion pictures, recorded
music, music publishing, advertising, newspapers, magazines and internet; and
property-casualty and health insurance.

Other industries studies: telecommunications, photographic supplies, consumer
electronics products, fertilizers, paint, windows, window coverings,
pharmaceutical products, building products, hardware, chemicals, glass, steel,
breakfast cereal, beverages, and tobacco.

Hofstra University

Instructor

Taught introductory economics, intermediate microeconomics, and the
application of mathematics to economics.

Professional Activities

Member, American Economic Association and Committee on the Status of
Women in the Economics Profession.

Testimony, Reports, and Publications

IDT Telecom, Inc., et al. v. CVT Prepaid Solutions, Inc., et al. (D.N.J.), a Lanham Act case.
Report, April 2009; deposition testimony, May 2009.

Distribution of the 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003 Cable Royalty Funds, Docket No. 2008-2 CRB
CD 2000-2003. Report, January 2009.
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In the Matter of the Arbitration between BMI, Petitioner, and Williston Community
Broadcasting, et al., Respondent (American Arbitration Association), a contract case. Affidavit,
December 2008.

In the Matter of Mechanical and Digital Phonorecord Delivery Rate Adjustment Proceedings
before the Copyright Royalty Board, Docket No. 2006-3 CRB DPRA. Report, November 2006;
deposition testimony, October 2007; hearing testimony, February 2008.

In the Matter of the Application of Clear Channel Adshel, Inc. For a Judgment Pursuant to
Article 78 of the CPLR v. Franchise and Concession Review Committee of the City of New York,
et al. (Sup. Court N.Y.S., New York County). Affidavit, July 2006.

Teleglobe Communications Corporation et al. v. BCE, Inc. et al. (D. Del.), a bankruptcy case.
With William E. Taylor, Report, March 2006; rebuttal report, April 2006; deposition testimony,
May 2006.

Clear Channel Investments, Inc., Claimant v. XM Satellite Radio Holdings, Inc., et al.,
Respondents (JAMS Arbitration), a breach of contract case. Report, September 2005; deposition
testimony, September 2005.

Proposed Acquisition of United General Title Insurance Company by The First American
Corporation (Arkansas Insurance Department). Report, February 2005.

Mitchell Camarda, et al. v. Shapple Distributors, Inc., et al. (S.D.N.Y.), an antitrust case.
Report, August 2004; rebuttal report, January 2007; deposition testimony, February 2007;
affidavit, March 2007.

Paul Zuccarini v. Ziff Davis Media Inc., et al. (Sup. Court N.Y.S., Nassau County), a breach of
contract case. Report, May 2004; deposition testimony, July 2004.

In the Matter of the Merger of Pacific Northwest Title Insurance Company with and into The
First American Corporation (Washington State Office of the Insurance Commissioner and
Alaska Department of Insurance). Reports (both states), April 2004; hearing testimony
(Washington), April 2004.

CSC Holdings, Inc., Claimant, and Yankees Entertainment and Sports Network, LLC,
Respondent (American Arbitration Association), a contract case. Report, January 2004;
deposition testimony, February 2004; hearing testimony, March 2004.

United Magazine Company, Inc., et al. v. Murdoch Magaznes Distribution, Inc., et al.
(S.D.N.Y.), an antitrust case. Report, December 2003.

D. Lamar Deloach, et al. v. Philip Morris Companies, Inc., et al. (M.D.N.C.), an antitrust case.
Report, October 2003; deposition testimony, October 2003.
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Trowbridge, et al. v. Sony Music Entertainment, Inc., et al. (D. Me.), an antitrust case.
Report, July 2003; supplemental report, October 2003; addendum, November 2003.

Original IFPC Shareholders, Inc. v. AT&T Wireless Services, Inc. et al. (Cir. Court of DuPage
County, IIL.), a trade secret case. Report, March 2003; rebuttal report, May 2003; deposition
testimony, June 2003.

“Recording Industry Revenues and Costs.” Hearing testimony before the California Legislature,
Joint Hearing of the Senate Committee on Judiciary and the Senate Select Committee on the
Entertainment Industry on Record Label Accounting Practices, September 2002; report prepared
for the Recording Industry Association of America, November 2002.

Twentieth Century Fox Film Corp. v. Marvel Enterprises, Inc., Tribune Entertainment Co.,
Fireworks Communications, Inc. and Fireworks Television (US) Inc. (S.D.N.Y.), a breach of

contract, copyright and Lanham Act case. Report, August 2002; deposition testimony,
September 2002.

In the Matter Between Paxson Communications Corp., Claimant, and National Broadcasting
Co., Respondent (American Arbitration Association), an antitrust case. Report, March 2002;
supplemental report, June 2002; hearing testimony, June 2002.

The Commission’s Cable Horizontal and Vertical Ownership Limits and Attribution Rules, FCC
MM Docket No. 92-264. With Paul L. Joskow, Report, January 2002.

We Media Inc. v. Cablevision Systems Corp. et al. (S.D.N.Y.), a Lanham Act case. Report,
December 2001; deposition testimony, February 2002.

U.S v. BMI, In the Matter of the Application of Hicks Broadcasting of Indiana, et al., Applicants,
for the Determination of Reasonable License Fees (S.D.N.Y.). Report, November 2001; rebuttal
report, January 2002; deposition testimony, March 2002.

Atlantic Embroidery, Inc. v. Vanguard Industries, Inc. (E.D. Va.), an antitrust case. Report,
August 2001.

Determination of Rates and Termsfor Digital Performances of Sound Recordings, Docket No.
2000-9 CARP DTRA 1&2. Report, April 2001; hearing testimony, July-August 2001.

BPW Rhythmic Records L.L.C. v. CDNow, Inc. and N2K Inc. (S.D.N.Y.), a breach of contract
case. Report, August 2000; deposition testimony, August 2000.

Rajendra Patel v. Hughes Electronics Corporation et al. (S.D. Md.), a breach of contract case.
Report, July 2000.

Distribution of Satellite Royalty Funds, Docket No. 97-1 CARP SD 92-95. Report, January 1999.
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Arthur Sarkissian v. The Walt Disney Company, et al. (Sup. Court, Los Angeles, Cal.), a contract
case. Deposition testimony, October 1998.

Hometron USA, Inc., v. Bell Atlantic Corporation et al. (Cir. Court of Baltimore City, Md.), a
fraud case. Report, February 1998; deposition testimony, February 1998.

Time Inc. v. Petersen Publishing Co., L.L.C. (S.D.N.Y.), a Lanham Act case. With Philip A.
Beutel, Report, January 1998.

Integrated Consulting Services, Inc. v. LDDS Communications, Inc. (S.D. Md.), a breach of
contract case. Report, July 1997.

“Background Analysis for New York State Insurance Enterprise Zone.” Report prepared for The
Insurance Brokers’ Association of the State of New York, April 1997.

Satellite Carrier Royalty Rate Adjustment Proceeding, Docket No. 96-3 CARP SRA. Report,
November 1996; hearing testimony, March 1997.

Frebon International Corporation v. Bell Atlantic Corporation, et al. (D.D.C.), a breach of
contract case. Report, February 1996; deposition testimony, March 1996.

Review of the Commission’s Regulations Governing Programming Practices of Broadcast
Television Networks and Affiliates, FCC MM Docket No. 95-92. With Philip A. Beutel and
Howard P. Kitt, Report, October 1995, Supplemental Report, January 1996.

Turner Broadcasting System, Inc., et al., v. Federal Communications Commission, et al. (D.D.C.),
a First Amendment case. Deposition testimony, May 1995; affidavits, May and June 1995.

“Competitive Effect of Elimination of Small Overbuilds Between Time Warner and Cablevision
Industries.” With Paul Joskow, Report prepared for submission to the Federal Trade Commission,
April 1995.

Thompson Everett, Inc. v. National Cable Advertisng, Inc., et al. (E.D. Va.), an antitrust case.
With Richard Schmalensee, report, March 1994; deposition testimony, April 1994.

Selcke v. Touche Ross & Co., et al. (Cir. Court of Cook County, I11.), a breach of contract case.
Deposition testimony, March 1994 and May 1995.

Implementation of Sections of the Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of
1992, Rate Regulation, FCC MM Docket No. 92-266. With Lewis J. Perl and Jonathan Falk,
reports on econometric issues, June and July 1993.

Hachette Distribution, Inc. et al. v. Hudson County News Company, Inc. et al. (E.D.N.Y), an
antitrust case. Deposition testimony, March 1993.
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Abbott Laboratoriesv. Mead Johnson & Company (S.D. Ind.), a Lanham Act case. Report,
January 1993.

“Federal Charter Plan Background Analysis.” Report prepared for the Insurance Solvency
Coalition, December 1991.

“McCarran-Ferguson Act Reform: More Competition or More Regulation?” With Paul Joskow,
Journal of Risk and Uncertainty, December 1991.

Personal Preference Video, Inc. et al. v. Home Box Office, Inc. (N.D. Tex.), a breach of contract
case. Trial testimony, October 1991.

Cable Television Franchise Renewal Proposals of Manhattan Cable TV and Paragon Cable
Manhattan. Opinions on the reasonableness of certain assumptions, January 1990.

Associated Imports, Inc. v. International Longshoremen's Association et al. (S.D.N.Y.), a breach of

contract case. Deposition testimony, October 1988, September 1990; trial testimony, October
1990.

James M. King and Associates, Inc. v. G. D. Van Wagenen Co., et al. (D. Minn.), an antitrust case.
Affidavit, January 1988; deposition testimony, February 1988.

Apache Corp. v. McKeen et al. (E.D.N.Y.), a RICO case. Deposition testimony, April 1987.

James F. Chumbley, et al. v. Rockland Indudtries, Inc. (D. Md.), a breach of contract case.
Deposition testimony, December 1985; trial testimony, January-February 1986.

Acorn Building Components, Inc. v. Norton Co.; Jeld-Wen, Inc. v. Norton Co.; and Weather Shield
Mfg, Inc. v. Norton Co. (E.D. Mich., Southern Div.), product liability cases. Deposition testimony,
October 1985.

Action Publications v. Panax Corp. et al. (W.D. Mich.), an antitrust case. Deposition testimony,
June 1984; trial testimony, December 1984.

Eagt Coast Chemicalsv. Exxon (Sup. Court, N.J.), a product liability case. Report, June 1983;
deposition testimony, June 1983.

Missssippi Chemical Corp. v. Chemical Construction Corp. et al. (S.D. Miss.), a breach of
contract case. Deposition testimony, June 1982.

Comet Industries, Inc. v. EB Inc., et al. (W.D. Mo.), a breach of contract case. Deposition
testimony, September 1981.

Paschall and Intervenors v. The Kansas City Star Co. (W.D. Mo.), an antitrust case. Deposition

testimony, November 1980.
May 2009
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Appendix 2
Augmented Bortz Survey Sources and Methods

The Bortz survey draws a stratified random sample of cable operators, with the
stratification into four groups (or strata) based on the size of the system’s cable royalties. It then
eliminates ineligible systems (for example, those carrying no distant signals and those carrying
only PTV or Canadian distant signals)' and attempts to interview the remaining, eligible systems.
Interviews were completed with 64.5 percent of the eligible sampled systems in 2004 and with
68.1 percent of those in 2005.> In order to arrive at survey estimates from the interview
responses concerning valuation by program category for the total population (including those
interviewed and not interviewed), Bortz used a ratio estimation methodology that weights
responses based on (1) the total royalty of each respondent’s system, (2) the total royalties of all
respondents’ systems in that same stratum, and (3) the total royalties of all (sampled and

nonsampled) systems in that stratum.’

I obtained the augmented survey results based on the following data: for each of the ten
omitted systems that carried PTV and/or Canadian distant signals in each year, 2004 and 2005, 1
received information, including the royalty, the stratum and the type of signals carried. I also
received, from CDC, summaries of the original Bortz survey results for each of the four strata for
2004 and 2005, including the number of respondents, their royalties and their total value for each
of the program categories.* In addition, Trautman, 2009 (p. 46, Table A-1) supplied the eligible

sample and the distribution of total royalties for the four strata.

I obtained the augmented survey results by undertaking the following steps analogous to

the original Bortz survey:

First, I determined which of the ten systems drawn in the original Bortz survey in 2004

and 2005 but ineligible due to carrying only PTV and/or Canadian distant signals would be likely

' Trautman, 2009, p. 46, Table A-1.
> Trautman, 2009, pp. 47-48.
> Trautman, 2009, pp. 49-50.

These summaries gave a single figure for each programming category in a particular strata; individual responses
were not provided.
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respondents. The ten systems covered all four strata. To determine the likelihood of each
responding, I used the response rates specific to each stratum as the probability of an omitted

system in an individual stratum being included in the overall results.’

Second, I determined the responses of each system to the valuation question. For the
excluded systems importing only PTV signals or only Canadian signals (all ten of the omitted
systems in 2004, and eight of the ten in 2005), each was assumed to have 100 percent of its fixed
dollar amounts allocated to PTV or Canadian, in accordance with the respective PTV or
Canadian distant signal the system carried and 0 percent for all other program categories. In
2005, two systems carried both Canadian and PTV. I have assumed different distribution
amounts for these systems to represent the extremes (i.e. 0 percent Canadian and 100 percent
PTV, or 100 percent Canadian and 0 percent PTV). These extremes represent the ceiling and

floor of possible outcomes for these systems.

Third, I calculated the likely augmented Bortz survey results considering the following
factors: (1) the probability of responding for each omitted system in each stratum, (2) the
valuation response for program category x for the omitted system in each stratum, (3) the
valuation response for program category x for the original respondents (as a group) in each
stratum, (4) the royalty weight of each omitted system in each stratum, (5) the royalty weights
for the original respondents (as a group) in each stratum, (6) the royalty weights for total
royalties of all (sampled and nonsampled) systems in that stratum. The calculation is made
according to the formula for the total value of program category x in the Trautman report
(Trautman, 2009, pp. 49-50) with the omitted systems given both a probability weight and a
royalty weight.

I considered running a simulation, that is, a series of independent, random trials such that the share of trials with
the system included would match the overall probability for its stratum. Over a large number of trials, this
method would produce a result similar to the estimation method used and would not add precision.
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Volume II
Page 309
BEFORE THE COPYRIGHT ROYALTY JUDGES

LTBRARY OF CONGRESS

Washington, D.C.
_______________________ X
In the Matter of: ) Docket No:
Distribution of the ) 2007-3 CRB CD 2004-2005
2004 and 2005 )  Volume II
Cable Royalty Funds ) Pgs. 309 - 603
_______________________ X

Washington, D.C.

Wednesday, October 7, 2009

The following pages constitute the
continued proceedings held in the above-captioned
matter, held at the Library of Congress, Madison
Building, 101 Independence Avenue, Southeast,
Washington, D.C., before Cindy L. Sebo, RMR, CRR,
CSR, RPR, of Capital Reporting Company, a Notary
Public in and for the District of Columbia,

beginning at approximately 9:32 a.m.
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Capital Reporting Company

Volume II
Page 398 Page 400
1 exhibits pursuant to this Court's September 21st 1 A. In February of this year.
2 order. The parties have waived Mr. Wilson's live 2 Q. What was your prior position at NERA?
3 appearance. 3 A. Twas a senior vice president.
4 I have marked the binder containing 4 Q. Now, how long have you been with NERA?
5  Mr. Wilson's direct case testimony and exhibits as 5 A. Thirty-five years.
6  Settling Parties Exhibit 5. 6 Q. What is your educational background?
7 May I approach? 7 A. Thave a Bachelor's of Science from
8 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Yes. 8  Marquette University, where I majored in math, and
9 (Settling Parties Exhibit No. 5 was 9  aMaster's degree in economics from the University
10  marked for identification.) 10  of Pennsylvania.
11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any objection to 11 Q. AtNERA, in general, what kinds of work
12 Exhibit 5? 12 doyoudo?
13 (Pause.) 13 A. Ido economic analysis, applied work on
14 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Without objection, |14  industries, particularly addressing questions of
15 it's admitted. 15  competition, intellectual property and valuation
16 (Settling Parties Exhibit No. 5 was 16  and often in contested matters like this one.
17  admitted into evidence.) 17 Q. Are there particular industry areas in
18 MR. DOVE: At this time, Your Honor, 18  which you concentrate?
19  the Public Television Claimants would like to call 19 A. Yes.
20  Linda McLaughlin to the stand. 20 Q. And what are they?
21 21 A. Inmedia and entertainment,
22 22 particularly.
Page 399 Page 401
1 WHEREUPON, 1 Q. And for approximately how many years
2 LINDA McLAUGHLIN 2 have you concentrated in media and
3 was called as a witness and, having been first 3 entertainment -- in the media and entertainment
4 duly sworn, was examined and testified 4 field?
5 as follows: 5 A. For over 30 years.
6 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. 6 Q. Have you previously testified or filed
7 Please be seated. 7  reports as an economic expert regarding the
8 EXAMINATION ON QUALIFICATIONS | 8  economic attributes of entertainment and media
9 BY MR. DOVE: 9  markets?
10 Q. Good morning, Ms. McLaughlin. 10 A. Yes, I have.
11 A. Good morning. 11 Q. Would you please provide a few
12 Q. Would you please state your name for 12 examples?
13  the record? 13 A. Sure.
14 A. Linda McLaughlin. 14 I testified before an arbitrator in a
15 Q. And what is your business address? 15  matter for NBC. It had a dispute with Paxson over
16 A. 1166 Avenue of the Americas, New York, |16  the selling of a TV station ad time, and I
17  New York 10036. 17  examined the local television station markets for
18 Q. What is your current position? 18 audiences and advertisers in that case.
19 A. TI'm the special consultant at NERA, 19 In another case, I testified before a
20  National Economic Research Associates. 20  panel of arbitrators for Cablevision, and that was
21 Q. And when did you begin in that 21  asuit that involved a sports network and what
22 position? 22 tier it should be carried on and -- and the price.

24 (Pages 398 to 401)
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Volume II
Page 402 Page 404
1 And I testified as to the effect of -- 1  surveys of viewing.
2 the tier carriage would have on the revenue -- ad | 2 And in my testimony for NBC, again
3 revenue for the sports network given the 3 looking at viewing, the cable rate analysis that I
4 difference in -- in potential viewership. 4 described was based on surveys of cable operators,
5 And then I filed expert reports, 5  and how to weight those surveys was an important
6  including -- as an economist, of course, for 6  question.
7  the -- before the FCC in the -- in a matter that 7 In the music licensing case, I also
8  was concerned with the determination of cable 8  looked at surveys there, surveys of the actual
9 rates and the effect of competition on cable 9  music use and the amount of music use on different
10 rates. 10 radio stations and how -- and the appropriate way
11 Those are just some examples. There 11  to weight that up to talk about industrywide music
12 are others. 12 use.
13 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, have you previously 13 Q. Thank you.
14 testified or filed reports as an economic expert 14 MR. DOVE: Your Honors, at this time,
15  regarding copyright licensing or the valuation of |15  we offer Ms. McLaughlin as an expert economist
16  copyrighted works? 16  with experience in the economic attributes of
17 A. Yes. 17  entertainment and media markets and the valuation
18 Q. And would you please provide a few 18  of copyrighted works in those markets.
19  examples of that? 19 Ms. McLaughlin was previously qualified
20 A. Yes. 20  asan expert in these areas in the 2000 to 2003
21 Well, as you stated in here -- just 21  proceeding.
22 earlier, I testified in the 2000 to 2003 cable 22 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Valuation of what?
Page 403 Page 405
1  distribution proceeding earlier this year. 1 MR. DOVE: As an expert economist with
2 I also testified in -- before the 2 experience in the economic attributes of
3 Copyright Arbitration Panel in -- in a fee setting 3 entertainment and media markets and the valuation
4  for satellite retransmitted broadcast stations. 4  of copyrighted works in those markets.
5 I've testified in Federal Court for HBO 5 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any objection?
6  on a matter that had to do with closed circuit 6 (Pause.)
7  rights and pay-per-view rights for a sporting 7 MR. OLANIRAN: No objection,
8  event. 8  Your Honor.
9 And I filed expert economic report on 9 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: We'll recess to
10 the reasonableness of the proposed music licensing |10  discuss the proffer.
11  fees for radio stations. 11 (The Judges confer in Chambers.)
12 Q. In the course of your work, have you 12 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. We'll
13  analyzed surveys and other statistical studies? 13 come to order.
14 A. Yes. 14 Without objection, the proffer is
15 As -- part of my work, as -- as with 15  accepted.
16  other economists, particularly in the media and 16 MR. DOVE: Your Honors, I have marked
17  entertainment field, surveys are very important, 17  as Settling Parties Exhibit 6 a document entitled,
18 not only just taking the surveys, but putting them |18  Testimony of Linda McLaughlin dated June 1st,
19 into the context of the question that is being 19 2009, corrected September 30th, 2009, which has
20  addressed. And]I --I certainly did that in the 20  been previously provided to counsel for the
21  case of -- in my testimony on the Cablevision 21  various parties.
22 case, where I -- I relied upon Nielsen and other 22 (Settling Parties Exhibit No. 6 was
25 (Pages 402 to 405)
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Page 406 Page 408
1  marked for identification.) 1 Settling Parties Exhibit 6?
2 MR. DOVE: May I approach the witness 2 A. No.
3 and Your Honors? 3 Q. Sitting here today, do you declare that
4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 4 Settling Parties Exhibit 6 is true and correct?
5 BY MR. DOVE: 5 A. Yes,Ido.
6 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, I've handed you a copy | 6 MR. DOVE: Your Honors, I would move
7 of what has been marked Settling Parties 7 for admission of Settling Parties Exhibit 6 into
8  Exhibit 6, and I ask that you please examine it 8  evidence.
9 and tell me whether this is your written testimony | 9 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any objection to
10 ascorrected on September 30th, 2009. 10  Exhibit 67
11 (The witness reviews the document.) 11 (Pause.)
12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 12 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Without objection,
13 BY MR. DOVE: 13 it's admitted.
14 Q. Would you please identify the 14 (Settling Parties Exhibit No. 6 was
15  correction that has been made on Page 5 of this 15  admitted into evidence.)
16  exhibit? 16 BY MR. DOVE:
17 A. Sure. 17 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, on whose behalf are you
18 It's in Footnote 6 in the third 18  appearing here today?
19  sentence, and it's the numbers that were given for | 19 A. Public Broadcasting Service.
20  PTV's shares of fees generated in '98-'99 and in 20 Q. Which questions were you asked to
21 2004-2005. 21  address?
22 There was an error in the original 22 A. 1was asked to address two questions:
Page 407 Page 409
1 numbers, and these are the corrected numbers. 1  First, whether there were any major changes in the
2 Q. Were there any other corrections that 2 factors that would affect the relative marketplace
3 you made to your original testimony dated 3 demand, particularly as to Public Broadcasting
4 June lIst, 2009? 4  Service; and second, I was asked to figure out
5 A. No. 5  what the Bortz survey would've found -- would have
6 Q. Turning to Appendix 1 of 6  been expected to find if it had not excluded cable
7  Settling Parties Exhibit 6, is this a description 7  systems from their sample that carried only
8  of your experience and qualifications? 8  distant PTV or Canadian stations.
9 A. Yes. 9 Q. Did you reach any conclusions as to the
10 Q. Turning to Appendix 2 of 10  questions you were asked to address?
11  Settling Parties Exhibit 6, is this an explanation 11 A. Yes.
12 of your methodology and sources for the augmented | 12 Q. And what are those conclusions?
13  Bortz survey? 13 A. My conclusion as to the first question
14 A. Yes. 14  isthere were no major changes. As to the second,
15 Q. And then, turning to the final 15  it's that the Bortz survey would've shown a
16  attachment of Settling Parties Exhibit 6, is this 16 6 percent value for the cable -- for PTV from the
17  acopy of your written direct testimony in the 17  cable operators if it had been -- not excluded
18 2000 to 2003 proceeding which you cite in your 18  those other systems.
19  written testimony in this case as 19 Q. Let's turn to your -- first to your
20  Public Television Exhibit 9?7 20  analysis of whether there were any significant
21 A. Yes,itis. 21  changes between 1998-'99 and 2004-2005 in the
22 Q. Do you have any corrections to 22 distant signal marketplace as it relates to

26 (Pages 406 to 409)

Oct. 7, 2009 McLaughlin Testimony - 4

(866) 448-DEPO

www.CapitalReportingCompany.com

© 2009



Capital Reporting Company

Volume II
Page 410 Page 412
1  public television. 1  signals. And it-- and on average, they get about
2 What did you review or consider in 2 1 and a half distant signals in both '98-'99 and
3 addressing that issue? 3 2004-2005, and the public television part of that,
4 A. Tlooked at data compiled by Cable Data 4 they get, on average, .15 public television
5  Corp. from the cable operator statements of 5  stations in '98-'99 and .18 in 2004-2005.
6  accounts and particularly at distant subscriber 6 Of course, these are averages,
7  incidents. 7  including people who don't get it at all.
8 In addition, I looked at the testimony 8 Q. And how about your Chart 2? What does
9  of Mr. Troutman, which contained the Bortz survey | 9  that show?
10  results. 10 A. Chart 2 looks at the percent
11 Q. And what specific steps did you take to 11  distribution of the distant subscriber incidents,
12 analyze the question? 12 but -- for the same types of stations. And it
13 A. For the first part of the question, I 13  shows that PTV had 10 percent of the -- of the
14  looked at various measures of distant subscriber 14  distant subscriber instances in '98-'99 and
15 incidents. 15 averaged 12 percent in 2004-2005, slightly higher,
16 I looked at the total numbers for 16  Dbutnot a large change.
17  people who -- first of all, I looked at the total 17 Q. Then, finally, how about Chart 3? What
18  subscribers of people who didn't carry -- receive 18  does that show?
19  any signals. Then I looked at the ones that did 19 A. Chart 3 shows the results of the Bortz
20  receive signals, how -- of each type of signal, a 20  survey as it appeared in Mr. Troutman's testimony.
21  public television, Canadian, independent and 21  And it shows that there was 2.9 percent for PTV in
22 network in each of the time periods, and I 22 '98-'99 on average and 3.6 percent in 2004-2005, a
Page 411 Page 413
1 compared the data for '98-'99 with 2004-2005. 1 slightly higher number, but the 2004 and 2005
2 And then I looked at various other 2 numbers are within the confidence intervals of the
3 average measures for the two periods. 3 '98 and '99 estimates.
4 For the second question on Bortz, | 4 Q. Thank you.
5 looked at not only the results for 5 Let's now turn to your adjustment to
6  public television and the confidence intervals 6  the Bortz survey --
7  between '98 and '99 and 2004-2005, but also the | 7 JUDGE ROBERTS: Before we do that,
8  extent to which systems were excluded in both 8  Mr. Dove --
9  periods for carrying public television stations 9 MR. DOVE: Sure.
10 only. 10 JUDGE ROBERTS: -- Ms. McLaughlin, in
11 Q. And what did you conclude? 11  comparing '98-1999 to the 2004-2005 period, did
12 A. 1 concluded that there was no major 12 you compare or do any investigation or analysis
13 change. 13  into the type of programming that was available on
14 Q. Now, are these conclusions illustrated 14  distant signals in the '98-'99 period relative to
15  anywhere in your written testimony? 15 the 2004-2005 period?
16 A.  Yes. 16 THE WITNESS: Well, by "type of
17 Q. And where would that be? 17  programming," you mean programming like sports and
18 A. Thave three charts that show some 18  movies and so forth?
19  summaries of the data. Chart 1 is on Page 4. 19 JUDGE ROBERTS: The various programming
20 Q. And what does Chart 1 show? 20  categories that we have in this proceeding.
21 A. Chart 1 looks at the Form -- the 21 THE WITNESS: Right, right.
22 subscribers in Form 3 systems with any distant | 22 Well, for the most part, I was focused
27 (Pages 410 to 413)
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1 on--onPTV compared to everyone else. So for 1 THE WITNESS: I didn't do a specific
2 PTV, it's the station itself and the -- everything 2 comparison, but I would say that I'm generally
3 that's on the station is the type -- is the type 3 familiar with the types of programming that are on
4 of programming. 4 both public television and -- and on the other
5 So I didn't particularly look at the 5  channels.
6  types of programming, although I'm -- I'm aware of | 6 And just as an example, I noticed that
7  the types of programming as part of my, you know, 7 there has been a trend in some channels that have
8  ordinary work in following -- in following media. 8  programming that you might think would be the same
9 JUDGE ROBERTS: If there was a 9  type as on public television, say, nature
10  difference between the types of programs that were |10  programming.
11  available on distant signals in '98-'99 and the 11 JUDGE ROBERTS: Yes.
12 2004-2005 period, would you conclude that that 12 THE WITNESS: So that nature
13  could be a changed circumstance during that period |13  programming on the Discovery Channel has moved
14  that might be relative or important to a 14  more toward reality TV. I think the
15  determination of relative value? 15  Deadliest Catch was introduced in 2005, and that's
16 THE WITNESS: Again, by "type of 16  one of their very popular programs, but it's not
17  program," you mean -- let's say if there were more |17  atall the kind of nature program that would be on
18  movies or less, you know -- 18  public television; that they -- the -- on -- on
19 JUDGE ROBERTS: Let's say, for 19  Animal Planet, they introduced, in the early maybe
20  instance, there was less sports programming on 20 2002-2003, the show Animal Cops, about people, you
21  distant signals in the 2004-'05 period than there 21  know, arresting people for mistreating their pets.
22 was in the '98-'99 period. 22 And, again, that's not the kind of nature show
Page 415 Page 417
1 Is that something that you would feel 1  that would be on public television.
2 would be a changed circumstance that might impact | 2 So I've noticed this trend on the cable
3 the relative value of sports programming? 3 networks, that there's more of a shift to
4 THE WITNESS: It might impact the 4 reality-based programming, which is less of the
5 relative value of sports programming, and 5  type that's on public television.
6 that's -- that's the type of question that I would 6 JUDGE ROBERTS: If there were more
7 think that -- that -- that the Bortz survey could 7  programs, more science programs, more nature
8 get at. 8  programs, more music programs, more documentary
9 It wouldn't -- I couldn't get at it 9  programs, more news programs available on cable
10 from looking at the subscriber incidents, because 10  networks in the '04-'05 period than there were in
11 Idon't -- that's not my type of programming. 11  the '98 and '99 period, in your expert opinion,
12 But, yes, it could -- the differences 12 would that be a possibility of a changed
13  inthe amount that's available could influence the 13  circumstance that would warrant investigation?
14  value of the total amount that was actually 14 THE WITNESS: It's a possible changed
15  imported. 15 circumstance, but you'd have to consider not just
16 JUDGE ROBERTS: In looking at the 16 the quantity, but the quality.
17  Public Television category that you considered in 17 And so I've noticed this in looking
18  your testimony here, did you do any comparison 18  justamong cable programs, putting aside the
19  between the types of programs that were available |19  broadcast programs, that there's a -- there's a
20  on public television in the '98-'99 period and the 20  core of cable networks that has a certain amount
21  types of programs that were offered in the '04-'05 21  ofviewing, and it's pretty much retained its
22 period on other cable networks? 22 viewing as some -- as many, many, many channels
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1 have been introduced with very, very tiny viewing, 1 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: It's so different
2 just-- just looking at viewing as an aspect. 2 that you started to call it the same thing.
3 Another aspect would be the -- the 3 Mr. Dove.
4 value of the cable programming, how much the cable 4 BY MR. DOVE:
5 license fees are compared to the total. 5 Q. Let's turn, Ms. McLaughlin, to your
6 So, obviously, there -- not 6  adjustment to the Bortz survey contained on
7  obviously -- sometimes there isn't anything paid 7  Pages 7 through 12 of your written testimony,
8  for some of the cable -- newer cable networks, but 8 Section II1.
9  although there are more of them, the amount paid 9 I guess my first question is, why did
10  for the core group is -- it stands up pretty well 10  you decide that you needed to augment the Bortz
11  in proportion. 11 survey?
12 Even though there's a -- you know, a 12 A. Because the Bortz survey does not show
13 greater quantity, the value of the extra quantity 13  the value that cable operators give the distant
14  isn't necessarily as much. 14  signals they carry. It limits itself to cable
15 Now, that doesn't have to be -- you 15  operators that carry a U.S. commercial station.
16  know, it doesn't have to be diluted quality. 16 Now, if they carry PTV or Canada,
17  Some of the quality is very good, and cable 17  that's fine, too; they will be included. But
18  network quality has been coming up. 18 it --itrules as ineligible the cable -- a group
19 JUDGE ROBERTS: How would you measure |19  of cable systems, that is, cable systems that
20  quality then? 20  carry only public television or only Canada.
21 THE WITNESS: Well, among the cable 21 And if you're only carrying one signal,
22 networks, you could be -- you could measure it in 22 then the value you're going to give to that signal
Page 419 Page 421
1 terms of the revenues that it -- that they bring 1 is much greater than if -- or certainly likely to
2 in from -- from their various sources. But 2 be greater than if you're carrying several and
3 it's -- in terms of -- I don't know -- I don't 3 you're going to be dividing it up, potentially,
4 know that I have a good -- you could look at the 4 among certain program types.
5  amount spent on programming, the programming 5 Q. How many cable systems were excluded
6  budgets. 6  from the Bortz survey even though they imported a
7 I'd have to think more about the 7  Canadian or a public television distant signal?
8  question of -- of how to measure program 8 A. In 2004, there were 10 that were
9  quality. 9  excluded. Nine of them carried public television
10 JUDGE ROBERTS: Thank you. 10  and one Canada.
11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Did younoticea |11 In 2005, there were also 10 that were
12 large drop in subscribers when public television 12 excluded. And here, nine of them carried
13  dropped Masterpiece Theatre? 13 public television, two -- two of those nine also
14 THE WITNESS: There -- I didn't see 14  carried Canada -- Canada stations and one carried
15  that there was a drop in -- in the subscriber 15  only Canada.
16 incidents. In fact, it has been generally going 16 Q. What was the first step that you took
17  up. 17  in augmenting the Bortz survey results?
18 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: That's surprising. |18 A. The first step was to make two
19  Although they claimed they haven't dropped 19  assumptions. These cable operators were --
20  Masterpiece Theatre, but they did. 20  were --
21 THE WITNESS: I didn't think they did, 21 JUDGE ROBERTS: I have a question,
22 butit's -- it's different. 22 Mr. Dove, before you go on with that.
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1 THE WITNESS: Oh, sure. 1  results, of course, they're not going to be saying
2 JUDGE ROBERTS: Ms. McLaughlin, inyour | 2  anything about the value of public television, but
3 opinion, is it appropriate for the Bortz survey to 3 they're included in the study.
4 exclude a cable system that only carries a distant 4 In your expert opinion, is that
5  public television system? In other words, the 5  appropriate?
6  fact that they only carry a distant 6 THE WITNESS: I--1--1--Tdon't
7 public television system, does that mean that they 7  think they're even given a choice to say
8  can't answer the questions that are posed by the 8  public television. I thought that they were
9  Bortz survey, which is how do you value sports? 9  only -- I could be confused on that, but I thought
10  how do you value movies? how do you value 10  that -- that they limited the choices of what --
11  syndicated series? 11  of your answers to what it was that you carried.
12 THE WITNESS: No. In fact, they can 12 So they didn't -- they didn't give you
13 answer the question, and we know how they would 13  abox for Canada or a public television if you
14  answer the question. 14  didn't carry that, I thought.
15 I -- I repeat the question in my 15 JUDGE ROBERTS: That means they're
16 testimony, and it says you're supposed to look at 16  going to answer zero, effectively, one way or the
17  the programming that you bring in and -- other 17  other. Ifthere's a blank there, they're going to
18  than national network programming from ABC,NBC |18  say zero --
19 and CBS, and say how much value you give to each |19 THE WITNESS: Yes --
20  type of program and make sure the numbers add up 20 JUDGE ROBERTS: --if it's not there,
21 to 100 percent. 21  it's automatically zero?
22 So if you carry only a 22 THE WITNESS: Right. But -- but as it
Page 423 Page 425
1  public television station and you followed the 1  should be, if you're looking at the value of what
2 instructions, you would say 100 percent for 2 they did carry, the value of what they did carry
3 public television. 3 is nothing for public television because they
4 Now, it's not necessary to ask the 4 didn't carry it.
5  people that. You could just say that's what they 5 JUDGE ROBERTS: Okay. But my question
6  would say, we'll skip over and just write down 6  toyou is, why is it appropriate that in that
7 100 percent for those people or for Canada the 7  instance, those results should be tabulated and
8  same. 8 taken into account, but in the -- in the instance
9 But what I think is wrong is not -- you 9  where it's a public television station only, that
10  could ask them or you could not ask them and -- 10  should be excluded?
11  and just write down the number, you know, the 11 THE WITNESS: Well, because you're
12 100 percent is -- which is what they should say. 12  trying to get the picture of -- of everything --
13  But you should include them in the aggregation or |13  of -- for all these cable systems, whatever they
14  else you're not aggregating the value of 14  carried, what value do they give to it.
15  everything -- you know, of the -- all the distant 15 So if you -- if you were to leave out
16  signals. You're only aggregating the value for 16 the stations that carried only WGN, you wouldn't
17  people who import U.S. commercial stations. 17  know what value they were putting on the WGN
18 JUDGE ROBERTS: Now, what about the 18  programming. And if you left out the stations
19  cable systems that only carry WGN? You got-- we |19  that carried only PTV, you -- you wouldn't know
20  received testimony yesterday that there are 20  what value they were -- they were giving -- you
21  apparently quite a few cable systems that only 21  know, you wouldn't -- you wouldn't be including
22 have WGN and, when they supply their Bortz 22 them in the -- in your total.
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1 In other words, my objection is really 1  systems that were ineligible, they weren't called
2 with the total result, not with the -- with so 2 to find out what they -- what they would say, but
3 much the splitting up. I don't have a problem 3 other systems were. And not everybody answered.
4 with how the WGN people would split up their 4 So there's a response rate.
5  answers. 5 So the first assumption I have to make
6 I -- I --itjust -- it's just that I 6  is what the response rate of these people would be
7  think you want to count -- remember, this is a -- 7  if they had been included. And I assume that it
8  this was done in -- in a random sampling way. So 8  would be the same as for everybody else, for the
9  you've got the people who are carrying WGN should | 9  people who were included.
10  be basically based on how many of them are 10 So the -- the -- in 2004, there was a
11  carrying it and the people who are carrying PTV 11 64 percent response rate for everybody, basically
12 and other things, basically, according to the 12 assuming that there was a 64 percent response rate
13 proportion that they are being carried in your 13 for the excluded systems. So you wouldn't have 10
14  sample. 14  of them in your final sample; you would only have
15 So -- 15  about six of them in your final sample, a little
16 JUDGE ROBERTS: Which is why you 16  over six.
17  provide your augmented Bortz results survey; is 17 And then the second assumption is one I
18  that correct? 18  justdiscussed in answer to your question,
19 THE WITNESS: Yes. 19  Judge Roberts, that I'm assuming they would follow
20 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: I think you just 20  the survey correctly. And if they were -- if they
21  said this, but let me phrase it the way I'm 21  had been asked and if they only carried
22 hearing it to make sure I'm understanding 22 public television, they would give 100 percent to
Page 427 Page 429
1 correctly. 1 public television. And if they only carried
2 You're saying that to be consistent 2 Canadian, they would give zero percent to
3 with counting WGN results -- WGN only distant | 3  public television and 100 percent to Canadian.
4  signal results, that you should also carry the 4 So these two assumptions really form
5  only public television or only Canadian distant 5  the basis of my adjustment.
6  signal results, otherwise it would be 6 Q. Would you please explain, in the most
7  inconsistent? 7  simplified form possible, how you went about
8 THE WITNESS: I am saying that. And 8  augmenting the Bortz results?
9 I'm -- I'm actually even saying more than that. I 9 A. Thave a simplified explanation on
10  think you should count the people who carry 10  Page 10 of my testimony. It gets the gist of what
11  multiple types, the people -- and the people who |11  Idid without talking about the -- a lot of the
12 carry only one type, and you should count all of |12  details.
13 them if what you want to look at in your results |13 I begin with the respondents to the
14 s the value for all the things that were actually 14  survey. My example is from 2004. There were 162
15  carried. 15  respondents in the survey, and they gave PTV
16 BY MR. DOVE: 16  3-1/2 percent.
17 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, I believe you were 17 Then there were the nine systems that
18  beginning to explain what -- what -- the kind of |18  were ineligible, and I assumed they would have the
19 fundamental assumptions that went into your 19  same response rate as the -- the 162 respondents.
20  augmenting the Bortz results. 20  That was 64-1/2 percent, so that there would be
21 A. Right. 21  about a little less than six of them on average
22 The first assumption is these -- these 22 would be expected to respond and that all of them
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1 would say 100 percent for PTV. 1  stratification and weighting process described
2 And then the third component is I look 2 anywhere in your written testimony?
3 at the one Canadian system that was ineligible. I 3 A. Yes. They're in Appendix 2.
4 assume it, too, would have had the 64 percent 4 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, what was the augmented
5  response rate. So it would be expected to comein | 5  Bortz survey result for public television in 2004?
6  about .6 respondents, and it would give PTV 6 A. 6.2 percent.
7 zero percent. 7 Q. And what was the augmented Bortz survey
8 And then I -- I -- T aggregate the -- 8  result for public television in 2005?
9  in the simplified example, I would aggregate them | 9 A. 5--5.91t0 6.2 percent.
10  up 162 times the 3-1/2 percent, the -- the -- a 10 Q. And why is there a range for 2005, but
11  little less than six times the 100 percent, the 11 not for 2004?
12 less than one times zero percent, and then divide |12 A. Well, in 2005, as I mentioned earlier,
13 it by the sum of those systems. 13 some of the omitted systems, two of them, had both
14 Q. Now, the actual process that you went 14  aCanadian station and a public television station
15  through to recalculate the Bortz survey results 15  as distant.
16  was a little more complicated than the simplified |16 So for those systems, you wouldn't know
17  form that you just described; is that right? 17  what they would say in terms of how they would
18 A. Yes,itis. 18  split, how much they would give to
19 Q. And what else did you do -- did you 19  public television.
20  have to do to augment the Bortz survey results? 20 So I took the two extremes,
21 A. The difference is principally in two 21  zero percent to public television and
22 areas. One, the Bortz survey is stratified 22 100 Canadian, or 100 percent to public television
Page 431 Page 433
1 survey, so it's -- it has small, medium, large and 1  and zero percent Canadian. And I just expressed
2 very large strata based on royalty size. And so I 2 the extremes without making any judgment where it
3 examined the omitted system based on the -- based | 3  would fall.
4 on which stratum they each fell in. 4 So the 5.9 is if those two systems gave
5 And then -- and I also used -- the 5  zero percent to public television, and the 6.2 in
6  different strata had slightly different response 6 2005 is if they gave 100 percent.
7  rates. Solsaid if you were in Strata 1, you 7 So the -- the correct answer would have
8  would have the response rate of the Strata 1 8  to be someplace in between.
9  people and so forth. 9 Q. Did you review any other information
10 And the second thing the Bortz survey 10 that would help put these results in perspective?
11  does is weight, not by how many systems there are, |11 A. Yes. Ilooked at something else that
12 that you get one vote because you're one system, 12 was in the -- in the Bortz survey about people
13 but based on the total royalties of the system. 13 who -- the results, if you exclude -- all right.
14 So I did both the total royalties of 14  They left out the PTV only people. They were
15  the system, the relative -- relative to the total 15  only -- they only had people with U.S. commercial
16 royalties of all the systems in the strata and 16  stations. Butsome of the people with U.S.
17  relative to all of the omitted and included, that 17  commercial stations also had PTV. So they --
18 is, sampled and nonsampled systems, the whole 18  Mr. Troutman summarized the results for those.
19  population. 19 And this was in line with the -- with
20 So I considered all of those factors 20  data compiled Cable Data Corp. that shows maybe
21  doing it the same way that the Bortz survey did. 21 30 percent or so of the systems don't -- have
22 Q. And are the details of the 22 public television -- distant public television and
32 (Pages 430 to 433)
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1  therestdon't. 1  the total royalties of all the systems, and that's

2 So I looked at the -- at -- at the 2 the -- the fixed sum that the Bortz survey

3 smaller subgroup that was reported in 3 respondents are -- are effectively dividing.

4  Mr. Troutman's report, and it showed -- in 2004, 4 So since -- if you want to know how

5  for example, it showed that -- the value that they 5  much 6.2 percent of the total for PTV would

6 gaveto PTV. 6  translate to if PTV doesn't get any of the 3.75

7 Now, all of these people are carrying 7  fund but only gets the basic fund, that would be

8  PTV. They gave a value of 11 percent to PTV. 8 7.3 percent.

9 Now -- but all of these people are also 9 So it's just -- it's a pure translation
10 carrying commercial stations. They didn't--you |10  based on the size of the 3.75 fund relative to the
11 know, the PTV onlys aren't in. 11  basic fund.
12 If I did sort of a rough version, the 12 MR. DOVE: Thank you, Ms. McLaughlin.
13 way I explained without the weighting and 13 Ihave no further questions.
14  stratification, and added in the PTV onlys to that |14 JUDGE ROBERTS: I have a question for
15  group, the 11 percent would go up to something 15 you, Ms. McLaughlin.
16  like 19 percent. 16 If you were shown a response -- a Bortz
17 So, I mean, I think that gives you an 17  survey response from a cable operator that carried
18 idea of -- of why the PTV number is 6 percent, for |18  several distant signals, one of which was a
19  example, and -- and not some -- you know, why 19  public television system, and that respondent in
20  isn'tit bigger. Well, because a lot of people 20  the public television system category assigned a
21  don't carry PTV, and those who do carry PTV rate [21  zero value to PTV even though they did carry a
22 it more. 22 distant signal, what would that tell you about

Page 435 Page 437

1 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, just a couple more 1 that response?

2 questions. 2 THE WITNESS: Well, by itself, it -- it

3 First, could you turn your attention to 3 would -- I would have expected it to be greater

4 Page 11 of your written testimony? And on that 4 than zero, not zero, since they are taking up the

5  Page 11, there's a Chart 4. 5  space for the channel at the very least.

6 Would you please just explain what 6 But maybe -- you know, sometimes people

7  Chart 4 shows? 7  answer surveys -- and I have to say I'm speaking

8 A. Chart 4 shows the -- the values from 8  now -- [ use -- [ use survey results, but I'm not

9  the augmented Bortz survey for 2004 and 2005, not | 9  a-- you know, a survey design person. But I do
10  only the 6.2 percent and -- and the 5.9 to 10  know that sometimes survey design people say that
11 6.2 percent for public television, but also the 11  people answer in round numbers, and so -- you
12 values for Canada with the augmented result and 12 know, like 5, in -- instead of giving 63 percent
13  everyone else, because everyone else's results 13 or 2 percent for something, they might say zero
14  change when the -- these extra systems are 14  for something and 5 -- you know, when it's between
15  added. 15  zeroand S or zero and 10.
16 Q. And then, turning your attention to 16 So it could be that, that it's
17  Chart 5 on Page 12, what does that chart show? 17  essentially, you know -- you know, a rounding
18 A. Chart 5 is really -- comes entirely out 18  down, but that's the only thing that -- that I
19  of Chart 4 and -- and the concept that if PTV 19  could say about it.
20  would only get money from the -- the basic fund, 20 Or, you know, the person is just, as
21  rather than the total. 21  with -- with survey responses, there's some
22 The Bortz survey looks -- weights by 22 variability here. And you're asking -- you try to
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1  ask arelatively large number of people, because, 1  surveys and who is evaluating the validity of the
2 you know, there could be, you know, sports in the 2 responses.
3 answers that -- 3 That's -- just -- just to say my first
4 JUDGE ROBERTS: Would you conclude 4 answer -- thought to that is, oh, yes, if they're
5 that -- if you saw a survey like that where PTV 5  violating the -- you know, the rules that would
6  was carried but was assigned a zero value, would 6  have to be true, you should leave them out. But
7  you conclude that that survey had to be wrong and, | 7  if it were the case that it's a
8  therefore, excluded? 8  rounding up/rounding down, then you're leaving out
9 THE WITNESS: You mean that particular 9  the person who is rounding down, but not the
10  response? 10  person who is rounding up.
11 JUDGE ROBERTS: Yes. 11 So I'm, you know -- I'm not sure what
12 THE WITNESS: You know, again, I think |12 the right answer is in that. I think it just
13  this is really a question for someone who's expert |13  requires more expertise than I have on the topic.
14  atsurveys. 14 JUDGE ROBERTS: I'm asking you this
15 I don't know whether you're supposed 15  question because the Bortz survey, of course,
16  to, because if you go through and you picked 16  purports to show what the value is to the cable
17  out-- you -- you omitted certain ones, I don't 17  operator. And if the cable operator responding
18  know -- you could have a rule like that. Like, if 18  zero when, in fact, it does carry a distant PTV
19  aperson answers in a way that is inconsistent 19  station, that could be that indeed, the cable
20  with some -- some other expectation, you could 20  operator does believe it is of zero value.
21  toss it out. 21 Apparently, though, it could mean
22 But I don't know whether -- I don't 22 something else, because in your augmented Bortz
Page 439 Page 441
1 know what that does to the survey, you know, 1  survey, you're presuming that it would have to be
2 validity. It -- if you do that. 2 100 percent for the system that is carrying only
3 I know, sometimes, in analyzing 3 the distant PTV station and that it couldn't be
4  datasets, I would leave out outliers and -- but 4 something less than 100 percent. It couldn't be,
5 I --there are other reasons for, you know, why 5  well, I only carry one distant public television
6  you shouldn't do that. 6  station, but I give it an 80 percent value or a
7 So I think this is a question really 7 50 percent value.
8  outside of my area. 8 THE WITNESS: Um-hum.
9 JUDGE ROBERTS: Well, given your 9 JUDGE ROBERTS: You're assuming
10  approach that for those systems that carrya--a |10 100 percent because they carry it?
11  PBS distant signal only and that they would have |11 THE WITNESS: Because that's the way
12  to, of course, assign it a value of 100 percent 12 the question is, right, exactly.
13  because that is indeed what they carry, given that |13 They -- I -- I think that when you only
14  thatis your -- your approach with respect tothe |14  have a single category, it's a lot easier to see
15  PTV station only, wouldn't you have to somehow |15  what the value is and -- whereas with the
16  respond to those Bortz survey results that showa |16  multiple -- with multiple categories that you
17  zero where PTV was, in fact, carried? 17  actually are carrying, I think it's more difficult
18 THE WITNESS: Well, I would -- yes,as |18 to answer the question. And you might've -- it
19 long as it's not a sort of rounding up/rounding 19  might've been just a rounding up/rounding down
20  down issue. I mean, I would want to get some 20  answer.
21  advice on that, I think, from -- from a survey -- 21 JUDGE ROBERTS: And just to conclude
22 someone who is a -- a question design personin |22  this and looking, again, at that system that
34 (Pages 438 to 441)
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1 reported the zero when it did, in fact, carry a 1  Page 12, and the second conclusion in her
2 distant public television station, does that, in 2 testimony.
3 your view, suggest that the cable operator's 3 And let me just briefly explain the
4 response really is that I didn't put any value on 4 grounds.
5 it or that there must be some mistake or error in 5 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Allright. Let's
6  the response, or you don't know? 6  take them one at a time.
7 THE WITNESS: I guess I don't know for 7 What's the first thing?
8  that particular -- you know, I think you have to 8 MR. LUTZKER: The first thing is on
9  ask the particular cable operator. 9  Page 1, the summary -- in summary, I conclude
10 JUDGE ROBERTS: Okay. Thank you. 10 there are two bullet points. It's the second
11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: We'll recess till |11 bullet point.
12 1 o'clock. 12 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: All right.
13 (Whereupon, at 12:05 am., a 13 MR. LUTZKER: And then, starting on
14 luncheon recess was taken.) 14  Page 7, under III, Augmented Bortz Survey
15 15 Results --
16 16 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: All right.
17 17 MR. LUTZKER: -- through Page 12, which
18 18  would be the entire section dealing with Augmented
19 19  Bortz Survey Results.
20 20 And then, again, the -- Page 13, the
21 21  second paragraph, which repeats -- the second
22 22 bullet point, which is discussing the augmented
Page 443 Page 445
1 AFTERNOON SESSION 1  Bortz survey.
2 (1:01 p.m.) 2 And briefly, this morning, during the
3 WHEREUPON, 3 examination of the witness and I believe it was in
4 LINDA McLAUGHLIN 4  particular questions posed by Judge Roberts and
5  was called for continued examination and, having 5  responses elicited by the witness indicated -- and
6  been previously duly sworn, was examined and 6 I wrote it down, because I was really surprised at
7 testified further as follows: 7  the statement -- I'm not a survey design person,
8 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. We'll | 8  which I understood the witness to mean that she
9  come to order. 9  has no expertise in survey design.
10 Cross-examination? 10 And then, further, in commentary,
11 MR. LUTZKER: Your Honor, before we 11  again, in colloquy with Judge Roberts -- and I
12 begin cross-examination, I have a motion I would 12 don't have the exact quotations, but it was in
13 like to raise. 13 regard to the zero -- potential zero share for a
14 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Yes. 14  PTV station, how could you explain that. And the
15 MR. LUTZKER: Should I come to the 15  witness indicated that, well, she would have to
16  podium? 16  turn to a design survey person or get further
17 Your Honor, I would move to strike 17  expertise to further explain the -- the result,
18  portions of Ms. McLaughlin's testimony, 18  which, in a sense, she didn't believe would likely
19  particularly on Page 1, the second paragraph of 19  happen, but she wasn't able to explain it.
20  her summary statement at the bottom of the page, 20 As the witness was qualified -- and,
21 and Pages 7, entitled, Augmented Bortz Survey 21  again, [ wrote down Mr. Dove's description of her
22 Results, through -- where is it Steve? -- through 22 qualifications as an economist with expertise in
35 (Pages 442 to 445)
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1  the economic aspects of the media and 1  isaCanadian signal. And they have chosen to
2 entertainment and the valuation of copyrighted 2 exclude those from their survey design.
3 works in those markets. 3 They -- they have designed the survey.
4 The nature of the expertise and the 4 The results, they feel, prejudice the results of
5  discussion of the Bortz survey results, which deal | 5  their survey for some reason.
6  with the relative market value, are certainly 6 I mean -- and he explains and the --
7  consonant with her level of expertise. 7  the merits of that can be separately addressed,
8 However, as she explained -- again, for 8  but you need to understand the relationship of the
9  the first time, [ was -- [ was really quite 9  questions that are asked, the data that's being
10  stunned to understand this -- that her expertise 10  solicited, the manner in which the responses are
11  indesign is nonexistent, and yet, the substance 11  being tabulated to understand the relevance of the
12 of the paragraphs that I've asked to be stricken 12 decision to include or exclude any survey
13 all involve a redesign of a survey and a 13  information.
14  reinterpretation of the survey results, obviously, |14 And it is certainly within the
15 to the, you know, benefit of a particular 15  expertise of survey design experts to comment on
16  claimant. 16  another survey's failings or reinterpretation of
17 But the -- the bottom line is the 17  data or requestioning or alternative questions,
18  absence of expertise to make these critical 18  but this is not the expertise -- with all due
19  determinations about which she is testifying. 19  respect, it's not the expertise of this witness.
20 I know -- before we begin, you know, 20 This witness is an expert in copyright
21  further examination of -- of the witness, I -- I 21  valuation, but she has testified that she does not
22 feltit, you know, urgent to sort of raise the 22 have survey design expertise. And to modify, to
Page 447 Page 449
1  matter, because it was based on this -- this 1  augment, to change, to reinterpret these results
2 colloquy and conversations that were had. 2 without that level of expertise renders her a
3 And as a result of that, I believe the 3 layman, not an expert with respect to the material
4  testimony that she has presented this morning is 4 that she is presenting.
5  outside the scope of her expertise, is without 5 To the extent her report is an expert
6  foundation based on her expertise and, therefore, 6  report -- and that's -- that's what I'm judging
7  should not be considered in -- in this record. 7  this on. She's the expert, and I want to be able
8 And so I move to strike. 8  to depend on her expertise and evaluate it.
9 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: The jump you're | 9 She's not an expert in that.
10  making that I didn't follow is why does the 10 And I think the Panel -- excuse me --
11  testimony for the adjustment to the Bortz survey 11  the Judges cannot rely on this and, as a result,
12  require survey questionnaire design? 12 to have it in the record would be a confusing --
13 MR. LUTZKER: The -- yesterday, 13 it could create concerns on appeal if it becomes
14  Mr. Troutman testified about the -- and he is a 14  part of a decisionmaking process where her
15  design -- a survey design expert -- testified as 15  expertise -- she's not been qualified for this;
16  to the design and mechanism of the Bortz survey. |16  she's self-professed not to have the expertise;
17 He made and the Bortz group has made -- 17  and, yet, she is tinkering with the design of
18  and they've done this previously -- decisions that |18  someone else's survey, and, I would add, doing so
19  certain -- the questions that they are asking and 19  in a way that is to the material advantage of one
20  the organization of the survey that they have set 20  ofthe Claimants in ways that, frankly, are
21  up is somehow prejudiced in a situation in whicha |21  confusing.
22 single signal is a PTV signal or a single signal 22 But, I mean, that's -- that goes to the
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1  essence of the problem. 1 So I guess that's --

2 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any response to | 2 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Mr. Dove, let

3 the motion? 3 me -- [ think you've answered this already, but

4 MR. DOVE: Yes, Your Honor. 4 let me press you a little bit.

5 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Go ahead. 5 I do not recall the Bortz witness to

6 Give up the mike. 6  say -- to refer at all to this testimony or to

7 MR. LUTZKER: Sure. 7  affirm any support of this testimony when he said

8 MR. DOVE: As an initial matter, 8 that there should be an adjustment; is that

9  Your Honor, the testimony -- the written testimony | 9  correct?
10  of Ms. McLaughlin, you know, has already been 10 MR. DOVE: That's correct, Your Honor.
11  admitted with -- into evidence without objection. 11  Thatis correct, Your Honor.
12 There was an opportunity to voir dire the witness |12 And I guess my last point is certainly
13  after she was qualified or before she was 13 that Mr. Lutzker is free to cross-examine, here in
14  qualified as an expert. 14  amoment, Ms. McLaughlin regarding her -- you
15 1 did -- Ms. McLaughlin did respond to 15  know, any of the points he wants to make regarding
16  questions about her use of surveys in her past 16  her expertise or knowledge in survey questionnaire
17  work and, despite all those opportunities, no 17  and whether she's, in fact -- you know, it goes to
18  objection was made at that time. 18  the weight of the -- of her testimony and -- and
19 It is our position that testimony -- 19  what weight the Judges should give that
20  that the adjustment testimony that Ms. McLaughlin |20  testimony.
21  gives does not require that specialized expertise 21 But I don't believe, under these
22 in survey questionnaire design. 22 circumstances, that the -- you know, her testimony

Page 451 Page 453

1 Mr. Troutman, the person who has that 1 should be stricken.

2 expertise, conceded on the stand that his survey 2 JUDGE ROBERTS: Mr. Dove, what do you

3 did not -- needed to be adjusted to account for 3 think about withdrawing her classification, or

4 the fact that public television -- that signal -- 4 should we terminate her classification as being an

5 that cable systems had only carried 5  expert in the valuation of copyright royalties?

6  public television or only carried Canadian 6 MR. DOVE: Well, I guess, you know,

7  signals, that that survey needed to be adjusted. 7  from my perspective --

8 And what Ms. McLaughlin has done, based | 8 JUDGE ROBERTS: I think I heard

9  on her years of expertise in -- in copyright 9  Mr. Lutzker saying, while he was moving to strike,
10  valuation, is she has made those mechanical 10  he was more concerned about her expertise and the
11  adjustments to the results of the survey if you 11  fact that she was qualified as an expert.
12 were to essentially just follow the survey 12 MR. DOVE: Our position is that
13  questions as she testified. 13 Ms. McLaughlin is eminently qualified to -- to --
14 You know, she has been qualified as an 14  to testify on copyright valuation. But if -- if
15  expert on the valuation of copyrighted works. 15  the deciding factor is -- is whether -- you know,
16  That's what that is. It's an adjustment of the 16  whether some formal qualification is necessary,
17  Bortz survey that gets to the question of how do 17  that's not really -- you know, I wouldn't want the
18  you measure the relative value of these different 18  record to reflect that we don't believe she's
19  categories, in particular, the public television 19  qualified. We -- we do.
20  signal, which, as the survey expert conceded 20 But if that's the issue of concern
21  yesterday, needed to be adjusted for -- to 21  that, you know, her qualification -- you know, her
22 accurately reflect public television's share. 22 formal qualification as an expert on copyright
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1 valuation, you know, I must say that she's been 1 maybe this a rounding issue, perhaps, outliers;
2 qualified on, you know -- on using those exact 2 but, ultimately, she was not willing to embrace or
3 terms in the 2000 to 2003 proceeding both in the 3 to interpret the result what that zero value
4 rebuttal phase and the direct phase and -- and, 4  means.
5  you know, in the various matters that she has 5 So what that suggests is that she does
6  testified in the past. 6  not fully understand -- she cannot interpret the
7 So our position is she is an expert in 7  results. And if she's going from taking the Bortz
8  copyright valuation. But if that is the -- an 8  results and then moving forward with augmenting or
9  issue of concern to the Judges, that 9  adjusting a result which she has -- she concedes
10  qualification, you know, versus just letting her 10  she cannot understand, then that would be an
11  testify, you know, our concern is that her 11  inappropriate adjustment.
12 testimony be allowed and permitted and be 12 And for that reason, we support the
13  considered by this -- by this Panel. 13 motion to strike also.
14 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. 14 Thank you.
15 Any other response? 15 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any other
16 MR. OLANIRAN: Greg Olaniran for 16  response?
17  Program Suppliers. 17 MR. DOVE: May I respond briefly to
18 We also have -- 18  what Mr. Olaniran said, just very briefly?
19 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Come on up. 19 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: All right.
20 MR. OLANIRAN: Good afternoon, 20 MR. DOVE: Just two things,
21 Your Honor. Greg Olaniran for Program Suppliers. |21  Your Honors. First is the witness never testified
22 We also have a concern with the -- with 22 that she wasn't qualified to interpret the results
Page 455 Page 457
1 the adjustment that Ms. McLaughlin has made tothe | 1  of the -- of the Bortz survey. You know, she
2 Bortz survey results. 2 is -- you know, she is augmenting those results,
3 In addition to the question about -- to 3 and she's doing exactly -- I'm reading now from a
4 the concern about the survey design question, 4 transcript from yesterday's proceeding of
5 there is also a question of what happens to the 5  Mr. Troutman.
6  sample. 6 We have acknowledged that there needs
7 And if I understand her testimony 7  to be some adjustment for the fact that our
8  correctly, she -- she has said that she is not 8  methodology doesn't really allow us to survey
9  qualified to interpret the results of the Bortz 9  systems that only carry public television signals
10  survey. And -- 10  or only carry Canadian signals.
11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: I'm sorry. Say 11 Ms. McLaughlin has attempted to do
12 that again. 12  that.
13 MR. OLANIRAN: She's not qualified to 13 Our view is that both of these counsel
14  interpret the results of the Bortz survey, if I 14  are free to cross-examine her on that point or to
15  understand her testimony correctly. 15 putin rebuttal testimony at a later phase, which,
16 When Judge Roberts asked her what she 16  you know, comes up with a different sort of
17  would -- how she would interpret a zero value 17  adjustment, but that a motion to strike is not
18  assigned by a cable operator to a 18  proper.
19  public television signal when other signals are 19 MR. LUTZKER: May 1?
20  present on that system, she said she would have to 20 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: All right,
21  look to someone else who is an expert. 21  Mr. Lutzker.
22 She gave a couple of answers, she said 22 MR. LUTZKER: Thank you.

38 (Pages 454 to 457)

Oct. 7, 2009 McLaughlin Testimony - 16

(866) 448-DEPO

www.CapitalReportingCompany.com

© 2009



Capital Reporting Company

Volume II
Page 458 Page 460

1 When Mr. Troutman was on the stand, he 1  areas, and they have economic expertise as well as

2 was the perfect witness in my view -- maybe notin | 2  survey design expertise. And they would be

3 the other parties' view -- to follow up and 3 perfectly qualified to comment on, to restructure,

4 understand what adjustments would be made to his | 4  to reinterpret and revisit someone else's survey.

5 survey. Other survey experts, design survey 5 What Ms. McLaughlin has presented is

6  experts, people whose careers are predicated upon 6  her credentials, such as they are, and they're

7  working with surveys, are the right people to 7 deep and they're broad, but she acknowledges on

8  comment on the flaws of another survey. 8  the stand I'm not a survey design expert. That's

9 I have no doubt -- and I did not move 9  the critical concession that impels me to -- you
10  to strike Ms. McLaughlin's commentary about the |10  know, to ask -- to strike this portion.

11  Bortz survey because I accept her qualifications 11 I don't ask to strike the Bortz'

12 in copyright valuation based upon her long and 12 portion because I think she has the expertise to

13  experience -- long experience and career. 13 look at someone else's survey and comment on the

14 However, the adjustments that she is 14  results in relative valuation. But to redesign

15 making to the Bortz survey go beyond that 15  the survey and then reinterpret it -- and as she

16  qualification and that expertise and for -- as | 16  said, she made a number of assumptions.

17  said, to my surprise and for the first time, 17 JUDGE ROBERTS: How is she redesigning

18  understood her to say she is not a survey design 18  the survey? Isn't she just taking the results of

19  expert. 19  the Bortz survey and -- and making some

20 That is the critical acknowledgment 20  mathematical calculations as to how they should be

21  that underscores the inherent error, if you will, 21 adjusted?

22 in -- in leaving her testimony in the guise of 22 MR. LUTZKER: No; because the -- the
Page 459 Page 461

1  expertise when she has none. And so I just -- 1  Bortz survey does not go to asking the questions

2  and-- 2 of the participants when they have just -- just a

3 JUDGE ROBERTS: Mr. Lutzker, let me ask | 3  single PTV signal or -- or a Canadian signal.

4 you the same question I did with Mr. Dove. 4 They don't -- they exclude those from the survey.

5 Is your qualms here with 5 She makes the assumption that

6  Ms. McLaughlin's testimony that it's being given 6 100 percent would be allocated.

7  as an expert or do you move to strike the 7 Bortz has made the assumption that we

8  testimony? But is it more devoted towards the 8  can't use that data. It's a flaw in their system.

9  fact that she's qualified as an expert in giving 9  They acknowledge it. They don't know what to do.
10  this testimony? Couldn't she give this testimony 10 She has made an assumption, [ know what
11  asaneconomist? 11  to do, which is a design -- a redesign, in my
12 MR. LUTZKER: No, I don't think she can 12 view, of that survey.

13 give this testimony as an economist, because what 13 JUDGE ROBERTS: Wouldn't we have had
14  sheis doing -- and by her acknowledgment -- let 14  the problem here if she had said, well, I thought

15  me back up. 15 the survey instrument here of Bortz was flawed and
16 There are some economists who may be 16 it should have been these particular questions

17  able to give this, you know, credible testimony in 17  instead should have been asked, and that's what I
18  this area if you have the expertise that underlies 18  went out and did and I got a different result?

19 itas well as -- as part of your economic 19  Isn't then there is a problem because she doesn't

20  expertise. 20  have expertise in the survey?

21 I mean, I've worked with survey design 21 MR. LUTZKER: Absolutely.

22 experts in the -- in the trademark and other 22 JUDGE ROBERTS: But instead, she's
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1  taking the results that came out of here and is, 1 new assumptions and have changed it.
2 again, making a mathematical adjustment to them 2 That's -- that's what [ see. And I --
3 and is not changing the survey instrument at all. 3 you know, again, this comes as -- you know, based
4 And what's wrong with that? 4 on her own acknowledgment in testimony.
5 MR. LUTZKER: Well, she is, in fact, 5 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: Mr. Lutzker, do you
6  changing the survey instrument, because the 6  recall Mr. Troutman's rationale for excluding
7  survey, as set forth by Mr. Troutman and the Bortz 7  these particular stations in his results?
8  group, made decisions as to whose responses would | 8 MR. LUTZKER: I'd have to go back to
9  beincorporated in the survey. 9  the record.
10 So it is -- it -- she has, in a sense, 10 I do know that -- that the very same
11  taken the survey instrument and said, if there's 11  issue was raised in 1998 and '99 when Mr. Troutman
12 only a PTV signal, the only question you ask is 12 was on the stand. That issue was posed --
13 how do you value PTV. That's -- that's 13 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Your answer is
14  essentially what she's done with her -- with her 14  going beyond the question. You're purporting to
15  analysis. 15  present testimony.
16 And that's not the Bortz survey; that's 16 MR. LUTZKER: I will withdraw that.
17  her survey. 17  Thank you.
18 JUDGE ROBERTS: It seems to me she 18 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: I guess you can
19  could take the numbers of the Bortz survey and 19  tell him to do that, but. ..
20  through -- if she so desired, through mathematical |20 All right. Thank you.
21  manipulation, come out with the price of hot 21 We'll recess.
22 dogs. 22 (The Judges confer in Chambers.)
Page 463 Page 465
1 Now, we may not find that persuasive, 1 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. We'll
2 butI don't see where she has changed the 2 come to order.
3 underpinnings of the survey itself. She's just 3 The objection by the
4 taking the data from it, manipulating it and 4  Devotional Claimants raises very difficult
5  coming up with a result, obviously, that is 5  problems with the testimony identified in the
6  advantageous to the Public Television, perhaps, 6  objection for the expertise that Ms. McLaughlin
7 but, nevertheless, is just an interpretation, not 7 has been qualified.
8  aredesign. 8 While it seems like a very close
9 MR. LUTZKER: Well, that -- in my 9  question, we conclude that the testimony is an
10  opinion -- and that's why I sort of present the 10  economic analysis of the survey conducted by
11  motion -- she is redesigning, because it -- 11 Bortz, and the matters raised in the objection
12 Mr. Troutman said, there are flaws in our survey. |12  address the weight to be given to her testimony,
13 PTVis not adequately addressed. We need to 13 but not a submission.
14  readdress this. 14 The motion is denied.
15 How would he do it? That question was 15 Mr. Lutzker, do you want to proceed on
16 notposed. That would have been an essential 16  cross now?
17  question to sort of guide. 17 MR. OLANIRAN: I will proceed on cross.
18 But the issue is, if you take his -- 18 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: You will?
19  his survey and include Ms. McLaughlin's analysis | 19 MR. OLANIRAN: Yes.
20  in an area she acknowledges she's not an expert, |20 May I proceed, Your Honor?
21  you have redesigned the totality of the survey, 21 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Yes, sir.
22 you have presented a new database, new results, |22
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION 1 public television signals, correct?
2 BY MR. OLANIRAN: 2 A. Yes, as well as -- beyond -- after the
3 Q. Good afternoon, Ms. McLaughlin. My 3 first sentence, that is what it addresses, yes.
4  name is Greg Olaniran. I'm counsel for 4 Q. Okay.
5  Program Suppliers. 5 Okay. Now, you concluded on that -- in
6 According to your testimony, you were 6  that testimony on -- on Page 2, you concluded that
7  asked to address two issues relevant to the 7  distant signals per subscriber overall remained
8 relative value of public television signals; is 8  relatively stable, correct?
9  that correct? 9 A. That's right.
10 A. Yes. 10 Q. And you also concluded, specifically
11 Q. Okay. And the first was whether there 11  with respect to public television, that that
12 has been a major change in the factors that would |12  remained stable, correct?
13 affect relative marketplace values between the 13 A. That's right. It was a slight increase
14  '98 and '99 time frame and the '04-'05 time frame; |14  in one and a slight decrease in the other, but it
15  is that correct? 15  was pretty -- pretty much the same, yes.
16 A. That's correct. 16 Q. Now, is your calculation in this regard
17 Q. And the second was to propose an 17  intended to be evidence of relative marketplace
18  adjustment to the Bortz survey results for the 18  value for public television signals?
19  '04-'05 survey time period, correct? 19 A. Not the percent of value, but whether
20 A. Yes. 20  there was a change in the value.
21 Q. On the first issue, you looked at 21 Q. Soyou're -- you're asking that the
22  essentially a carriage; is that correct? 22 fact that there was no change or there was little
Page 467 Page 469
1 A. Well, that was, in part, the first part 1  change be considered evidence that the marketplace
2 ofthe first issue, that is, the subscriber 2 value for public television has not changed?
3 incidents part. 3 A. Tt did not change much between '98-'99
4 I also looked at the original Bortz 4 and 2004 and 2005.
5  survey. 5 Q. So, in fact, you're asking for some --
6 Q. Right. 6  for an inference with regard to relative
7 You analyzed the per subscriber distant | 7  marketplace value with regard to this analysis,
8  signal carriage, correct? 8  are you not?
9 A. That was one part of my analysis, 9 A. Interms of a change in it, not in
10 yes. 10  terms of the level.
11 Q. And you also looked at the distant 11 Q. You also looked at distant subscriber
12  subscriber incidents; is that correct? 12  incidents; is that correct?
13 A. Maybe -- I think I misunderstood your |13 A. That's correct.
14  first question. 14 Q. And you concluded that the -- that
15 Could you just repeat that? I 15  public television's share of distant subscriber
16  thought -- I thought you said the same thing 16  incidents also remained stable between the '98 and
17  twice, but I'm sure you didn't. 17 '99 time frame and the '04-'05 time frame,
18 Q. Well, on Page 2 of your testimony -- 18  correct?
19 I'msorry -- on Page 3 of your testimony in the |19 A. Yes. Itincreased a little, but it was
20  first full paragraph, you are looking there at 20 ot a major change.
21  the -- the -- the average distant signals per 21 Q. And, again, my question is very
22 subscriber both in general and with respectto |22  similar.
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1 Should we conclude, from your 1 A. That's correct.
2 observation in that regard, that there has not 2 Q. And my question is -- [ understand
3 been a change in public television signals' 3 you're not saying it should be used to determine
4  marketplace value? 4 relative marketplace value, but you are saying
5 A. Compared to '98-'99? 5  that it should be used to determine whether there
6 Q. Yes. 6  has been a change. So I'll ask my question again.
7 A. Yes -- well, at least there was no 7 Are you aware of whether or not
8  major change. If anything, it was an increase, 8  public television has used this evidence -- this
9  not a decrease. 9  type of evidence to determine a change in the
10 You could conclude there was not a 10 relative marketplace value?
11  decrease and that there was no major increase. 11 A. TI'mnot sure if it was
12 Q. My question is, because there was no 12  public television. I do remember that -- in terms
13 decrease or because there was a slight change, is 13  ofachange in marketplace value, no.
14  that, in and of itself, evidence of marketplace 14 I think, at one time, there was a
15  value or evidence of a change in marketplace value |15  witness -- in the past, there was a witness who
16  of public television? 16 used it as evidence of the absolute amount of
17 A. Ofthe lack of the change of 17  marketplace value. And I'm not sure if that was a
18  marketplace -- of marketplace value or lack of a 18  public television witness or not, but someone in
19  big change in marketplace value, yes. 19  the past, and not me.
20 Q. So you're asking, then, that we look to 20 Q. Do you recall that proceeding?
21  distant subscriber incidents to determine whether |21 A. Tdon't recall which.
22 or not there has been a change in 22 Q. Would you please turn to Page 9 of your
Page 471 Page 473
1  public television's relative marketplace value? 1 testimony?
2 A. That's one of the factors, yes. 2 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Ms. McLaughlin,
3 Q. Are you aware of whether or not 3 you're answering in response to the way the
4 public television has actually used this type of 4 question is phrased, but when you say
5  evidence as a basis for either market -- 5  "marketplace" -- "marketplace value," are you
6  determining relative marketplace value or a change 6  intending to say relative marketplace value?
7  in marketplace value? 7 THE WITNESS: Yes, [ am.
8 A. Well, I don't think it can be as -- | 8 BY MR. OLANIRAN:
9  just want to be clear about my testimony. I'm not 9 Q. Are you on Page 9, Ms. McLaughlin?
10  using it to say you can use it to determine the 10 A. Yes, I am.
11  level of marketplace relative value. In other 11 Q. I wanted to talk to you about the first
12 words, I'm not saying a 10 percent share of 12 full paragraph. And in that paragraph, you
13 PTV should get 10 percent of -- or has 10 percent 13  testified that the Bortz respondents were not
14  ofrelative market value. 14  asked to ignore the substitute programs on WGN's
15 I'm just saying you can use it as 15  satellite feed, correct?
16  evidence -- as evidence of whether they are -- 16 A. The noncompensable programming, yes.
17  there's been a big change or not. 17 Q. Right.
18 Q. You're saying if it hasn't changed, if 18 And that the Bortz respondents were not
19 it remained relatively the same, that should be 19  asked to ignore the -- the so-called
20  something that should count towards whether or not [ 20  noncompensable portion of WGN's satellite feed?
21  the relative marketplace value of 21 A. Right.
22 public television signals has changed? 22 They were asked to ignore the
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1 noncompensable part of the network stations 1  programming that we're talking about, is it not?
2 affiliates, but not the noncompensable part of 2 A. Well, what you want to adjust is
3 WGN. 3 whatever value, you know, the -- the -- the person
4 Q. And -- and you state that as a result 4 who is asked in the survey.
5  ofthat, the values assigned by the Bortz 5 To the extent that person gave value in
6  respondents overstated syndicated series and 6  answering the question, let's say, for programs --
7  movies and devotional programming, correct? 7  for movies or in answering that question for
8 A. Both syndicated series, movies and 8  devotional programming, if the respondent gave
9  devotional programming is part of that 9  it-- was considering the -- you know, the bigger
10 noncompensable. So to the extent they gave any 10  group of programming, and there was no reason to
11  value to it, that would be giving more value to 11  think that they wouldn't be since they weren't
12 that and overstating it. 12 asked not to, whatever extra value they gave due
13 Q. So the answer to my question, then, 13 to that, that's what you would want to take out.
14  is--is that Bortz respondents have, in fact, 14 Q. But the sole basis -- the sole basis
15  overstated syndicated series, movies and 15  for -- for the suggestion there should be an
16  devotional programs to the extent you deem them 16  adjustment is because you deem some volume on
17  noncompensable on -- they have been determined to | 17  WGNA -- WGN satellite feed, you deem some volume
18  be noncompensable on the WGN satellite feed, 18  of programming on that signal as noncompensable?
19  right? 19 A. Well, I understand that -- that when
20 A. Yes, to the extent they did give it any 20  yousay I deem it as noncompensable, I really
21  value. And you would expect that somebody 21  base -- as my footnote says, I -- the -- the --
22 would've given some of it some value. 22 the noncompensable part of that programming, I got
Page 475 Page 477
1 Q. Do you know whether or not they gave it 1  from a statement of Mr. Ducey.
2 value? 2 Q. So you don't know for yourself -- you
3 A. Idon't know. 3 cannot verify whether they're, in fact,
4 Q. To the extent they did, you think they 4  noncompensable?
5  have been overstated? 5 A. Well, I do know, just as someone
6 A. Yes. 6  familiar with the industry, that there are --
7 Q. Okay. And the reason you believe 7 that -- that there is programming that is inserted
8  they're overstated is because you believe the 8 in the signal that is not retransmitted by the
9  operators would have -- would have been assigning | 9  satellite carrier. And I know that -- that to be
10  values to programs that were not retransmitted 10  the case. I don't know how much there is.
11  because they're substitute programs? 11 Q. Let's assume that is the case. I just
12 A. They were not retransmitted; they were 12  want to get at what the foundation would be for
13 just transmitted, exactly. 13 adjusting the value, which you seem to be
14 Q. By extension of that logic, then, the 14  suggesting.
15  values ascribed to syndicated series or movies and |15 You don't actually propose an
16  devotional programming by the respondents should |16  adjustment --
17  somehow be adjusted for that noncompensibility 17 A. No.
18  of -- of minutes? 18 Q. --right?
19 A. Well, I don't know about minutes, but 19 And the sole basis for suggesting an
20  that non -- about the fact that there was some 20  adjustment is the fact that when you look at the
21  noncompensable programming. 21  entire WGNA and according to what -- your
22 Q. Butit's --it's a volume of 22 understanding of what Dr. Ducey is saying, when
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1 youlook at the entire WGNA, some volume of 1 volume of the programming; it's the -- it's the
2 what -- what the subscriber receives is not 2 values that the cable operators are given --
3 compensable -- is not retransmitted programming, | 3  giving to it.
4 simply transmitted? 4 Q. But the basis, again, is the volume.
5 A. That's correct, that's the basis, the 5  The basis for the adjustment that you're asking
6  fact that there's noncompensable programming. 6  the Judges to make or that you're suggesting is
7 Q. Soit's a volume that gives rise to the 7  the volume.
8  applied adjustment? 8 MR. DOVE: Objection, Your Honor. I
9 A. It's not the -- it's not the volume of 9  just believe this has been asked and answered
10  the programming. If it was -- if it was really 10  several times now.
11  tiny, you could say, well, you could -- you know, |11 MR. OLANIRAN: I'll move on.
12 you could ignore it. But since it's not -- 12 BY MR. OLANIRAN:
13 unless -- unless there was something about the 13 Q. When you were responding earlier to
14  tiny program that was, you know, really well 14  Judge Roberts' questions, you indicated that Bortz
15  valued by the cable operators. 15  survey respondents would know if there was less
16 It's the value the cable operators are 16  sports programming. I believe you were talking --
17  giving it is the reason for the adjustment, not 17  speaking in reference to WGN or perhaps another
18  the volume of the programming itself. In other 18  signal.
19  words, it's -- if there are a lot of minutes and 19 Do you recall that?
20 it was valued small -- a small amount, then it 20 A. That doesn't sound exactly right.
21  would be a small adjustment. And if there were |21 I recall something generally about
22 few minutes and it was valued a large amount, it |22  that, but I -- I didn't think that it was whether
Page 479 Page 481
1 would be a large adjustment. 1 the -- I think he asked if -- if there were a
2 Q. When you say if it was tiny, perhaps an 2 change in the amount of programming, could that
3 adjustment would not be required, should we be 3 affect the value of the program. And I said, yes,
4  going about making adjustment depending on the 4  itcould. It would depend on the quality of the
5  size? 5  program, not just the amount.
6 A. Well, the only reason -- only reason I 6 Q. Okay. I guess -- perhaps, I misheard.
7  said about tiny, if it was some de minimus amount 7 Well, let me put the question to you
8  that could basically be ignored. 8  this way: Is it your testimony that cable
9 But I even thought, well, even if it 9  operators that are responding to the Bortz survey
10  was small in amount, it could be big in value, you [10  are not aware of the program substitution on WGN
11  know, like some program that everybody wants to |11  at the satellite level?
12 watch that is only one program, but is very -- 12 A. I think cable operators -- I don't know
13 valued highly by subscribers. 13  for sure that they would all know, but I think
14 Q. IfItold you, for example, that on 14  that cable operators certainly might be aware of
15  WAGN, sports programming is five times -- the 15  the substitution.
16  Program Suppliers' programs on WGN is five times |16 That -- you know, but that doesn't
17  more than the amount of sports on that same 17  necessarily influence their answer to the
18  signal, does that tell you anything? 18  question; that is, they weren't asked the question
19 A. No. 19  about the -- if they were aware of it and the
20 Q. So we really can't look at the volume, 20  question just said, I want you to value the
21  canwe? 21  programming, but not the extra programming that's
22 A. That's what I said. It's not the 22 putin, then the ones who knew about it would be
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1  able -- you know, would be able to do that if they 1 point of view, but the quality in terms of its
2 knew exactly which programming was which. 2 value to the cable operator of having that
3 But the question doesn't even ask that. 3 retransmitted program.
4 They just say value the programming on the channel | 4 Q. That quality that you're speaking of
5  that you transmitted. 5  sounds like something much more objective than --
6 Q. Do you know for a fact -- the fact 6  not a determination of whether it's a good program
7 that -- that the cable operators, in responding, 7  or a bad program or whether you like it
8  were not aware -- were not influenced by the fact 8  personally. It's a question of really what's
9 that there was substitution on the satellite feed? 9  going to attract and retain subscribers?
10 A. Tdon't know for a fact how -- what 10 A. Yes, exactly.
11  they were influenced by. Each -- each person 11 Q. Aside from the carriage analysis that
12 could be influenced by whatever. 12 youdid and your analysis of the -- of the Bortz
13 Q. I'msorry. Are you -- did you finish? 13  survey results, public television has -- you have
14 A. Yes. 14  not presented an independent analysis of what the
15 Q. But, in your experience, you think most 15  marketplace value of public television should be
16  cable operators know that the substitution exists? 16 in this proceeding, have you?
17 A. I certainly think large cable operators 17 A. Well, aside from those -- I mean,
18  would know that substitution exists. 18 that's -- no, aside from my testimony, I haven't.
19 Q. Okay. And we have no reason to believe 19 The only -- the only -- as I told you,
20  that in responding to the Bortz survey, that they 20 the first part goes to the change, all right, and
21  did not consider the substitution? 21  where I said that my conclusion was no major
22 A. Well, they weren't asked to. I-- and 22 change.
Page 483 Page 485
1  they weren't even asked in a vague way to. 1 The second part on the augmented Bortz
2 So I -- I wouldn't expect them to, but 2 results, I think I describe that right at the
3 Ireally -- I -- I really wouldn't expect them to 3 beginning as what the cable operators would have
4  consider that. 4 attributed to PTV of the dollars they spent on
5 Q. Also, in response to one of the 5  the -- on the signals they imported. So that
6  questions that was posed to you by Judge Roberts, | 6  would be the cable operators relative marketplace
7  you indicated -- and I don't recall the specific 7 value.
8  question, but I recall that you mentioned quality. 8 Q. My question was whether you conducted
9  And the response -- you said, in terms of the 9 anindependent analysis of what PTV's marketplace
10  reduction in the amount of a certain program type, |10  value should be.
11  that you'd have to consider not just the quantity, 11 You looked at the Bortz survey,
12 but the quality; is that right? 12 correct, and you augmented the Bortz survey?
13 A. Yes. In fact, that's what I just 13 A. Right.
14  referred to in one of my answers to you earlier. 14 Q. But that's not exactly independent,
15 Q. Okay. And my question to you is that 15  because you relied on a survey that had already
16  in the determination of marketplace value, is it 16  been established.
17  your understanding that quality of the program 17 Is that fair?
18  should be a factor? 18 A. Right. If you want to say did I -- did
19 A. Well, by "quality," I mean the quality 19 I start from scratch to do it, no. I started with
20  interms of -- of attracting and retaining 20  the Bortz survey and augmented it.
21  subscribers, the quality in terms of -- from -- 21 Q. My question was whether you made an
22 not from an aesthetic point of view or an art 22 independent analysis.
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1 A. No, not completely independent, no. 1  but--
2 Q. Okay. 2 A. Yes--
3 MR. OLANIRAN: That's all T have, 3 Q. --including the adjustment.
4 Your Honor. 4 A. --including the adjustment, yes.
5 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any further cross? | 5 Q. It's true, is it not, that the purpose
6 CROSS-EXAMINATION 6  of the Bortz survey is to determine what cable
7 BY MR. LUTZKER: 7  systems would have paid on a relative basis for
8 Q. Ms. McLaughlin, at Page 6 of your 8  different types of nonnetwork programming on
9  testimony, you indicate that the sheer change of 9  distant signals that they carried and, in fact,
10  PBS in the Bortz study from 2.9 to 3.5 is not 10  had they been required to negotiate in the open
11  substantial; is that correct? 11  marketplace?
12 A. Yes. Isay that -- that it was -- that 12 A. Not quite. Almost, but not quite.
13 there was no substantial change, yes. 13 Q. Then -- then --
14 Q. What's your definition of "substantial 14 A. Ifyou take any given cable operator,
15  change"? 15  you're looking at the amount that they actually
16 A.  Well, what I considered in -- in 16  did pay, and then you're asked -- then they're
17  this -- it includes both the magnitude, but also 17  dividing that up.
18  what -- really what informed my statement here is 18 In the -- in the open marketplace, some
19  that-- and I think I mentioned this in my 19  cable operators -- remember, some people had to
20  testimony -- that the -- the values in 2004 and 20  pay this just as part of the minimum fee, so it
21 2005 were within the confidence intervals of 21  wasn't really indicative of what they were -- the
22 2000 -- of '98 and '99 for PTV. 22 value of -- for the system -- stations that they
Page 487 Page 489
1 And also, the omitted systems were -- 1  were importing.
2 were -- for PTV were a similar percent of the 2 And, also, some could have gotten --
3 total in both years. So they would be equally 3 they could have been willing to pay less or
4  affected by the omission of the PTV signals -- 4 willing to pay more. And by "less," I mean if
5  systems with PTV only. 5 they had to pay the minimum fee.
6 Q. If the results were outside the range 6 So that's the difference. It doesn't
7  of the confidence intervals, would that then be 7  show the value that they would have paid if they
8 indicative of the substantial change? 8  were -- even for buying the exact same signals if
9 A. If--if it was the case for both 2004 9 it was in open negotiations. It just shows how
10  and 2005 relative to both '98 and '99, yes. 10 they distribute the value among the amount they
11 Q. [IfaBortz category went from a 3.6 to 11 did pay.
12 a7.8, recognizing, you know, the reasonable 12 Q. Okay. Thank you for that.
13 ranges that Bortz would have for confidence 13 Is it fair to say that the assumption
14  intervals, do you think that would constitute a 14  behind your augmented Bortz analysis is that the
15  substantial change? 15  Bortz survey makes sense whether all program
16 A. 1 think that -- I mean, you would have 16  categories are valued as well as when only one
17  tolook at the -- you'd have to look at it. It 17  program category is carried by the system and thus
18 might be. It certainly might be. 18  valued?
19 Q. Okay. PBS does subscribe to the Bortz |19 A. Well, it may not make sense to ask the
20  survey, correct? Subscribe in the sense that you |20  person the question if you know what the answer is
21  believe it is a way to determine relative 21  going to be, but I think that it makes sense to
22 marketplace value subject to your adjustment, 22 apply -- if you're going to apply the methodology
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1 of --if -- if you ask someone who carries, let's 1 BY MR. LUTZKER:
2 say, a U.S. commercial station, they could give 2 Q. Is there only one category of
3 all of the value to one category or they could 3 programming on Public Broadcasting?
4 divide it among the categories of the programming | 4 A. For purpose -- for this purpose, yes.
5  that they have. 5 I mean, there are different types of
6 So the reason for asking is to find out 6  programming, but for the purpose of the question,
7  how they would divide it, right? 7 it -- you know, it says that there's a -- when it
8 But if the concept behind the survey is 8  lists the categories, it -- it says PBS and all
9 to take whatever -- whatever that value is and 9  other programming broadcast by the educational
10 then, you know, add it together in the way that 10  station that you carry is to be -- go in this
11  they do, that's -- that's the concept -- that 11  category.
12 concept is what I've -- I've used. 12 Q. [Ifthere's a movie on PBS, how would a
13 Q. But, in other words, what I'm asking 13  participant identify that?
14  is, is the assumption behind Bortz that they can 14 A. It -- if they followed the
15 inquire of these cable operators how to allocate 15  instructions, they would identify it -- and they
16  relative value among these categories, that that 16  were trying to value that, they would identify
17  assumption that Bortz is applicable even if only 17  that as public television.
18  one program category applies? Is that your 18 Q. When you're saying "if they followed
19  assumption in doing the augmented survey? 19  the instructions," is it the survey givers or the
20 A. Well, let's -- let's put it this way: 20  survey -- is it the Bortz people that are asking
21  It's my assumption that the instructions would 21  the questions or the cable operators?
22 be -- would be followed. And that's what I 22 A. Oh, no. The cable operators, who --
Page 491 Page 493
1  stated, that -- that you can -- if you only have 1  these are the instructions to the cable operators
2 one category and you're trying to divide it among 2 that I'm discussing.
3 one category, the answer is all of it for the one 3 Q. And, in your experience, do the
4  category. 4  participants, the cable operators in this case,
5 Q. Ifthe seven categories were listed, 5 always follow instructions?
6  but only one signal was carried, is it your 6 A. 1--1didn't examine individual
7 assumption that only one category would receivea | 7  responses to the -- to the survey. I don't know
8  share? 8  whether they always follow instructions.
9 A. Ifthey followed the -- the S That's why I made specific my -- my
10 instructions, which was my assumption. 10  assumption that they would follow the
11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Now, wait a 11  instructions.
12  minute. The question left an opportunity that's 12 Q. But that is your assumption, it's
13  inconsistent with your answer. One signal can 13  not--
14  have more than one category in its programming. |14 A. Asto PTV, that is my assumption, yes.
15 MR. LUTZKER: I'm going to get -- | 15 Q. --and it's not something that you
16  will get to that. 16  know, whether as to PTV or any other entity or
17 THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm sorry. I was 17  categories?
18 thinking of a -- of a signal like PBS or Canada, 18 A. Whether they did follow the
19  where there would only be one category for the -- [19  instructions?
20  for the programming. 20 I -- I think you -- no. I -- I would
21 I -- I'm sorry if I misunderstood your 21  have to check the individual responses, plus |
22 question. 22 would have to -- you know, probably, in order to
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1 tell, you would also have to, you know, ask more | 1  category of programming, of which there are
2 questions of the cable operator. 2 some -- | mean some such broadcast stations. I
3 Q. Well, let me first ask you, have you 3 don't know if they were distant signals that were
4  ever seen the Bortz survey results, the raw data 4 captured in the survey -- that those would be
5  results, the filled out forms? 5 included as well, because they weren't specially
6 A. No. 6  exempted.
7 Q. Have you ever asked to see them? 7 But that was sort of the point of it,
8 A. Tasked for -- I didn't specifically 8  that you needed a question in order to get cable
9  ask for the raw survey results. I was -- [ was 9  operators to break it apart. You couldn't just
10 told that there were confidentiality issues about 10  say, well, this is an independent station or an
11  the -- about the raw results and that they were -- |11  affiliated station or a PTV station as to all of
12 [ had to sign a special confidentiality agreement |12  the kinds of stations.
13  even to get the summary results. 13 So I think that's -- that was really
14 Q. Butyoudidn't try to see redacted -- 14  the point of the Bortz survey. But then the
15 ifthere's confidential, a name might be 15  resulting use of the Bortz survey to represent the
16  confidential, an address or a phone number. 16  relative market value, I think you have to include
17 But you didn't ask to see 17  the singleton, so to speak, that -- the people who
18 nonconfidential information that might be 18  have only one type of programming, or you're not
19  contained within the survey results. 19  going to get the totality.
20 Is that what you're saying? 20 Q. Isn'tit true, when a survey designer
21 A. T--Tdidn't ask forit. I didn't 21  creates the survey and chooses the universe for
22 actually think that it was available -- it would 22 the sample and so forth, that they take into
Page 495 Page 497
1 have been available had I asked for it. But -- 1  consideration responses, nonresponses? I mean,
2 but I did not ask for it. 2 you had indicated 64 percent are responding.
3 Q. Why is it that the Bortz survey is 3 The warts and all, problems and all
4 equally applicable if only PBS is carried as a 4  become embraced within a total survey. Wouldn't
5  signal, as opposed to other broadcast stations 5  that not be true?
6  that have all the other categories of programming? 6 A. Yes; but there are -- but there are
7  Why is it equally applicable? Should a different 7  different questions and -- and some of it has to
8  question be asked in that situation? 8  do with what you -- a way to get a more robust
9 A. 1 think that the difficulty I have with 9  result out of asking fewer people, and
10  your -- your question is whether or not you have 10  stratification is one of the tools that is used
11  to ask the question in -- in the second 11 for that.
12  circumstance. 12 Really, it doesn't -- it really
13 The -- 1 think that the point of the 13 wouldn't matter if you were asking a different
14  Bortz survey going all the way back was to find 14  kind of question of cable operators.
15  out how cable operators would divide something 15  Stratification could still be the answer to that
16  that had to be divided. And a lot of the 16 if you were asking them about their costs or some
17  programming, of course -- a lot of the signals, of 17  other -- other question completely different from
18  course, have multiple kinds of programming and do |18  what you're asking now.
19  have to be divided. 19 Stratification in the way that the
20 I think that if -- if it's the case 20  Bortz survey was done would still be a useful tool
21  that there is a U.S. commercial -- you know, 21  for that. It's not that each part of the -- the
22 commercial station that happens to have only one 22 survey automatically gets adjusted for the other
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1 part of the survey; I mean -- that is, if you have 1  operator carrying only PTV -- PTV signal could not

2 this kind of a question, then you would have a 2 put 100 percent down for PTV?

3 different sampling design, not necessarily. 3 A. Say that again. [ missed --

4 Q. [Itistrue, is it not, that Bortz 4 Q. Do you consider it implausible --

5  doesn't include the single PTV categories? 5 A. Right.

6 A. That's true. 6 Q. -- that a cable operator answering the

7 Q. Isitrigorous, from an economist's 7  Bortz survey where the only signal they carry is

8  perspective, to take the data that Bortz deemed 8  PTV with a full list of the seven questions --

9  unusable and then use it for your augmentation? 9 A. Right.
10 A. Canyou -- 10 Q. -- could only put down 100 percent for
11 MR. DOVE: Objection. Objection. 11 PTV?
12 You're mischaracterizing what Bortz deemed certain | 12 A. No, I don't consider that implausible
13 data unusable, when Mr. Troutman testified thatan |13  atall. He's only carrying PTV. He's instructed
14  adjustment was required. Just objection for 14  todivide it all -- among the type of programming
15  mischaracterization. 15  that he does carry. He was just read the list of
16 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Itappearstobea |16  what he does carry. And so it wouldn't be
17  correct characterization from my observation. 17  implausible for him to say it was all -- the
18 Overruled. 18  category that he was told to put it in.
19 THE WITNESS: I -- the -- I'm putting 19 Q. With respect to your adjustments, what
20  back in people he determined were ineligible, and 20  impact does your analysis have on the robustness
21  they were ineligible because he was looking to 21  ofthe Bortz study?
22 have people break things down that needed to be 22 A. It -- it changes the Bortz study from a

Page 499 Page 501

1  broken down. 1  study of cable operators that carry U.S.

2 That's my understanding of -- of his 2 commercial stations into cable operators that

3 report. 3 carry distant stations. So in that -- any distant

4 BY MR. LUTZKER: 4  station.

5 Q. No. Iunderstand what you did. 5 And so in that respect, it's not --

6 I'm asking, from an economist's 6 it's not comparable -- it's two different

7  perspective, is it a rigorous economic 7  universes, so it's not comparable in terms of

8  specialist's approach to take data that 8  robustness.

9  Mr. Troutman decided should not be included in his 9 The only thing that I would say is --
10  study in the final results and then use it to 10 as to the second -- those that I added, the people
11  augment those results? 11 who were chosen in the survey who carry only PTV,
12 A. Given the reason that he decided to 12 not only would -- should they say 100 percent, but
13  deem it ineligible, yes. 13 the people who weren't chosen in the survey that
14 Q. And why is that? 14  they're representing would also say -- should also
15 A. Because -- they were ineligible just 15  say 100 percent.
16  because they only had one type of programming, and | 16 Whereas, for the cable operators that
17  his survey was dividing -- was asking people to 17  are in the group that Bortz does survey, two
18  divide the types of programming. 18  people may carry the same channel and -- and one
19 Q. Should he have asked a different 19  of'them is in the survey and one is not, and they
20  question? 20  could have different values -- different
21 A. No. 21  percentage values. So there's more variability in
22 Q. Do you find it implausible that a cable 22 the group that Bortz surveys than in the group
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1  thatIadd. 1  you -- if we restrict our universe to those people
2 Q. Have you calculated what changes in the 2 who do carry PTV and not a U.S. commercial
3 standard errors your adjustments would make to the | 3 station, this is the results.
4  Bortz survey? 4 Q. And do you recall where in the Bortz
5 A. No, I haven't, because since this is 5  study, because I just --
6  a--an expected result, the -- well, first, they 6 A. Yes, I can tell you from my -- from my
7  wouldn't be comparable because it's two different 7  footnote.
8  groups, as I explained. 8 It should be on Page 16 in Table II-2.
9 But second, they would be -- it would 9 JUDGE ROBERTS: What footnote?
10  be possible to calculate confidence intervals, but 10 THE WITNESS: My Footnote 19.
11  they would be virtual; that is, they would be 11 BY MR. LUTZKER:
12 based on the assumption, based on trial and error 12 Q. And in terms of -- was this part of the
13 of when you pick, out of the 10, how often youget |13  popularity question?
14  the one Canadian versus -- you know, in terms of |14 A. No, no. This is on the question -- the
15  the response rate compared to -- you know, you 15 question that we've been talking about, the
16  have to get a whole system -- how often you get 16  relative market value question, at Question 4.
17  the one Canadian and -- and say, you know, five 17 Q. This is excluding -- this is the
18  others or six others. 18  results with only PTV stations?
19 That would affect the variability, but 19 A. Only systems that carry PTV and a U.S.
20 it would be a bootstrapped or virtual confidence 20  commercial station.
21  intervals, not an actual, because they weren't 21 Q. And what percentage of the universe
22 actually surveyed. 22 does that embrace?
Page 503 Page 505
1 Q. Do I understand your answer as no? 1 A. Well, it's 50 -- it includes -- it's
2 A. 1did not calculate that, no. 2 something in the 30 percent area.
3 Q. Do you have any other empirical 3 Q. So, in other words, this is -- this is
4 evidence to support the appropriateness of your 4 asnapshot of a 30 percent universe -- we're
5  adjustment? 5  obviously dealing with 100 percent universe, but
6 A. Well, in part, that -- there was a 6  this is a 30 percent universe?
7  footnote in my testimony that looked at the value 7 A. Well, when you say "100 percent
8 that people who carry PTV and a U.S. commercial 8  universe," the Bortz universe isn't 100 percent of
9  station give that was taken from Mr. Troutman's 9  everybody who's -- who is importing a distant
10 testimony that showed that those people value PTV |10  signal. It's a sample and it's a sample
11 more highly than the group as a whole, so that 11  restricted to those who have U.S. commercial
12 somebody that would have PTV only would also be |12  stations.
13 expected to value PTV more highly than the group |13 Q. But the -- the Table I1I-2 on Page 16
14  asawhole, many of which don't carry PTV at all. 14  that you're referring to --
15 Q. That adjustment, that -- that sort of 15 A. Right.
16  empirical evidence is already incorporated into 16 Q. --is drawing data on PBS, and PBS'
17  the Bortz study in the final numbers that it 17  carriage in '04-'05 is approximately at a
18 allocates to PTV, is it not? 18 30 percent level?
19 A. No. This was a separate -- a separate 19 A. Thirty plus, right.
20  table in Mr. Troutman's testimony that -- there 20 Q. Okay. Allright.
21  were two of them. One focused on Canada and one |21 In your augmented analysis, you explain
22  focused on public television. And it said if 22 an additional anomaly where there are two systems,
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1  one that carries -- that carried PTV and the 1 Q. Okay. Let me turn -- and I know you
2 Canadians, and you do this sort of 2 had some discussion with Mr. Olaniran about the
3 100-zero/zero-100 allocation between the two. 3 WGN situation. Let me just confirm one or two
4 Do you know what the impact of that 4  points.
5  analysis is on the relative shares -- just of 5 You've indicated you have not looked at
6  those two -- taking those two systems, making 6  any survey instrument results, in other words,
7  those two assumptions, what is the net impact for 7  the -- the actual Bortz reports, the -- the
8  PTV and for the Canadians? 8  survey -- the raw survey documents as completed?
9 A. Well, it goes from 6.9 to 7.2. 9 A. You mean what people said?
10 So if -- when those -- when they are 10 Q. Yes.
11  included at zero for PTV, PTV's value is 6.9. And |11 A. No.
12 ifthey're included at 100 percent for PTV, its 12 Q. Ifyou had and if you had seen survey
13 valueis 7.2. 13 results where Devotional Claimants in a situation
14 So it's .3 percentage points. And, of 14  where WGN is the only distant signal carried -- so
15  course, it's the same .3 on the Canadian side 15  that's the universe we're working with --
16  because they're moving over. 16 A. Okay.
17 So the Canadian number -- when the PTV |17 Q. --only WGN, Devotional Claimants get
18 s 6.9, the Canadian is 1.8. And then the other 18  zero on that -- from that cable operator --
19  side, they go -- ones goes up .3 and the other 19 A. Right.
20  goes down .3. 20 Q. -- what does that do to your WGN
21 Q. But, in other words, by making that 21  analysis?
22 adjustment, it gives about a 5 percent boost to 22 A. If we're talking about only devotional
Page 507 Page 509
1 PTV and about a 17 percent boost to Canadians? | 1  programming --
2 A. Well, I would say a .3 percentage point 2 Q. I'm only talking about devotional
3 boost is the way I would look at it. 3 programming.
4 Yes, you -- 4 A. --and we're -- and we're saying
5 Q. In other words, you're going from 5.9 5  what -- what is the effect, it would -- if all of
6 to 6.2. That's.3. But, in other words, if -- 6  the people who had only WGN gave zero to
7 A. No; from 6.9 to 7.2. Oh, I'm sorry. 7  devotional, then I would say that as to the
8  I'm saying the wrong -- I'm sorry. I'm looking at | 8  devotional -- noncompensable devotional
9  the wrong chart. 9  programming, they didn't give it any value. So
10 From 5.9 to 6.2, yes. 10  that would be the case.
11 Q. And that's roughly about 5 percent? 11 But if one person gives it a zero, that
12 A. Yes; but that is -- you know, it's 12 doesn't really say anything, except that that --
13 still within -- it -- I don't regard that as being 13 that one response didn't over -- you know, didn't
14  alarge change. 14  overstate it as to devotional.
15 Q. The -- 15 Q. Ifyou are aware that there is
16 A. It's only .3 percent is my point. It's 16  devotional programming on WGN, does that change
17  asmall number. 17  any of your response?
18 Q. Imean, do you have -- you haven't done |18 A. No. There could be devotional
19 any statistical analysis of the implications of 19  programming on WGN that was compensable or
20  that for the overall Bortz or for other parties in 20  noncompensable, and it could be valued at -- at
21  Bortz? 21  nothing by a particular cable operator.
22 A. No, I have not. 22 Q. Itcould be, and if it -- and if there
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1  is programming, it could have some value. 1 CROSS-EXAMINATION
2 But to the extent there are respondents 2 BY MR. SATTERFIELD:
3 that give a zero value, have they not already 3 Q. Hello, Ms. McLaughlin. I just have a
4  fully accounted for what you would considertobe | 4  couple of questions that I want to clarify a
5  potentially noncompensable content? 5  point.
6 A. Well, just as to the devotional part of 6 Could you turn to Page 11 of your
7  that. 7  testimony, please?
8 Remember, I'm looking at this from 8 A. Yes.
9  PTV's perspective -- there are lots of other 9 Q. And in looking at Chart 4, in the 2004
10  programming, right, as well as the programming -- |10  column, at the top, it shows the augmented results
11 Q. I'm looking it from the devotional. 11  of the Canadian system at .57
12 A. Yes, from the point of view of 12 A. Yes.
13  devotional, for a person who responded with a zero |13 Q. And this reflects the addition of one
14  value, that person did not overcompensate dueto |14  cable system; is that correct?
15 the noncompensable programming -- 15 A. Well, the inclusion as eligible of one
16 Q. And-- 16 cable system, yes, that carried Canadian only.
17 A. --just that person. 17 Q. Now, looking next to that at the chart
18 Q. --and even if they gave a compensable 18  for -- the column for 2005, at the top, it has a
19 number to the extent there was compensable 19  box for the Canadian, and it shows a range of 1.5
20  content, you are not in a position to alter that 20 tol.8.
21  analysis, are you? 21 Now, is it my understanding that the
22 A. Well, I -- T haven't given that thought 22 1.5 reflects the addition of one cable system
Page 511 Page 513
1 about altering it, but you would have to figure 1 only?
2 out some way of how much they would've valued it 2 A. The 1 --the 1.5, yes, reflects only
3 had they considered only the noncompensable 3 one cable system.
4  program. 4 Q. Now, why does the addition of one cable
5 Q. So your answer no? 5  system to both 2004 and 2005 result in such a
6 A. Thaven't done it. 6  different increase?
7 MR. LUTZKER: Okay. Thank you. 7 A. Because of the -- the way the Bortz
8 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any other 8  survey is designed with weighting and
9  cross-examination? 9  stratification, it depends which strata you're
10 MR. SATTERFIELD: Just a couple of 10  in-- which stratum you're in and, also, what --
11  questions. 11 how your value will translate into the total
12 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Then I think --if |12  relative value.
13  there is other cross, let's go ahead and take a 13 And it also depends on what the --
14  10-minute break now. 14  your -- your royalty -- I mean -- the reason it
15 MR. SATTERFIELD: Okay. 15  depends on which stratum you're in is it depends
16 (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken 16  on, for that stratum, your royalties, the
17  from 2:44 p.m. to 2:56 p.m.) 17  royalties of the other people in the stratum and
18 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you. We'll {18  the royalties of the whole population in the
19  come to order. 19  stratum -- that would fall into the stratum that
20 Cross-examination. 20  had sampled or not sampled.
21 MR. SATTERFIELD: Kendall Satterfield 21 Q. So the difference is that in '04, the
22  for the Canadian Claimants Group. 22 omitted system happened to be -- it must have been
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1  amuch smaller system than the omitted system in 1 Q. But wouldn't it possibly -- wouldn't it
2 the'05 survey? 2 necessarily be the case that if you were going to
3 A. Yes, or at least relative to the other 3 augment the Bortz results, that you would want to
4  people. But, yes, in general, yes. 4 make sure that public television -- the number of
5 Q. Right. 5  cable systems that carried only public television
6 But just -- so the random selection of 6  systems was accurately reflected in this ratio?
7  this one system that was then declared ineligible 7 A. No. I think you'd want to make sure
8  caused a 1 percentage point difference between the | 8  that the original sample, which was a sample of
9  two years? 9  the whole -- you know, of the population, was --
10 A. Yes. 10  was -- was more or less representative, not -- not
11 Q. Now, for public television, did the 11  the -- not the extra group.
12 ratio of omitted systems -- did it reflect the 12 Because if the extra group -- if the
13  overall ratio of cable systems that carried only a 13 original sample is representative and the extra
14  public television station? 14  group is underrepresented, then it must be that
15 A. Tdidn't look at the question that way. 15  the included group was overrepresented, and so,
16  Ilooked at -- but -- and let me see if this -- if 16  together, they're just right.
17  you find this relevant or not. I don't want to 17 Do you see what I mean? And that's
18 answer a question you didn't ask. 18  what I'm trying to get, a together result.
19 1 did look at the ratio of cable 19 MR. SATTERFIELD: I don't think I have
20  systems with carriage of public television in 20  any further questions.
21  total and the total augmented PTV carrying cable |21 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Any further cross?
22 systems in the sample versus the -- you know, 22 Any redirect?
Page 515 Page 517
1 versus the big total -- the total of everyone. 1 MR. DOVE: No, Your Honor.
2 Q. Butyou don't know what percentage of 2 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Questions from the
3 cable systems in, say, 2005, in the whole universe | 3  Bench?
4 carried only public television stations? 4 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: Yes. Just one or
5 A. No, I don't know that. 5  two.
6 Q. So you don't know whether or not the 6 Ms. McLaughlin, would you turn to
7  sample of systems selected through the Bortz 7 Page 2 of your written statement?
8  stratified random sampling process actually 8 In describing the -- the background to
9  captured a re- -- a sample of public television 9  what you did here, you make a few statements in
10  systems that reflected whether -- the -- the 10  the second full paragraph there. In the second
11  number of systems that carried only 11  sentence of the second full paragraph, you say,
12 public television stations? 12 The hypothetical marketplace negotiations over
13 A. Tonly know that the number that they 13 such programming would occur, and so forth.
14  picked for public television in total when they 14 THE WITNESS: Um-hum.
15  started, all right, and before they started 15 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: And you follow that
16  deeming things ineligible. That number 16  with the sentence that Only demand is relevant in
17  represented the -- the -- in general, the portion 17  such negotiations.
18  that were carried on -- in the population as a 18 Could you explain why that's so?
19  whole. 19 THE WITNESS: Because when you have a
20 It is PBS' share of the initially 20  secondary product, like retransmitted stations,
21  selected ones corresponds to PBS' share of the -- |21  that s, they're already in existence and they're
22 in the population, systems carrying PBS. 22 not going to get used up by being retransmitted,
53 (Pages 514 to 517)
Oct. 7, 2009 McLaughlin Testimony - 31
(866) 448-DEPO

www.CapitalReportingCompany.com

© 2009



Capital Reporting Company

Volume II
Page 518 Page 520
1  sothey are -- a price in that circumstance is 1 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: And in the first
2 based on demand. 2 statement there, this whole process that you just
3 It's the same thing with a syndicated 3 described would take place not in the actual
4  program that has previously aired, like a Seinfeld 4 marketplace, but in the hypothetical marketplace
5  on television -- on network television and, now, 5  that you're trying to reconstruct it?
6 it's going to be sold into the syndication market. 6 THE WITNESS: Yes, for the signals that
7 Tt already exists. We already have the episodes. 7  were actually retransmitted; that's right.
8 In that case, it's not the -- the 8 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: Thank you.
9  cost-- you know, putting aside any negotiation 9 MR. OLANIRAN: Your Honor, may I have
10  cost on that side, it's not the cost; it's the 10  one or two follow-up questions?
11  demand. 11 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Yes.
12 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: Would the copyright | 12 RECROSS EXAMINATION
13  owners, however, in making their initial decision 13 BY MR. OLANIRAN:
14  to provide the programming for the -- let's call 14 Q. For the record, again, Ms. McLaughlin,
15 it the primary market -- 15  my name is Greg Olaniran.
16 THE WITNESS: Yes. 16 I just want to make sure I understood
17 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: -- have taken into 17  the exchange you just had with Judge Wisniewski
18  account the fact that, indeed, it may have a 18  with respect to why demand side is the only
19  secondary market value? 19  relevant consideration.
20 THE WITNESS: Yes, that does happen. 20 You stated that with shows like
21  This is something I actually addressed in my 21 Seinfeld or reruns of programs, essentially, we
22 initial testimony that's attached here, that if -- 22  already know what it is, and that's why we
Page 519 Page 521
1 if -- let's say with a movie, they know that 1 don't -- I'm not sure I understand your answer
2 they're likely to receive, if they're going to get 2 there.
3 revenues from it, if it's going to be a success, 3 A. No, not that we know what it is, but it
4 not only from theoretical showing, but from -- 4  has already been produced.
5  from DVD rentals, say, and that could be quite a 5 Q. Okay.
6  large market. 6 A. 1It's "in the can," so to speak, is the
7 And they might be thinking, well, we 7  industry term. It's -- it's -- you know, it's
8  know what kind of movies do well in DVD rentals, 8  already produced. We've expended the money for
9  or we know what kind of movies do well in some 9  the stars.
10  other secondary markets. 10 Now, I'm not saying that they're --
11 And so that can be considered -- 11  there can be, depending on contracts and how
12 JUDGE WISNIEWSKI: Which would lead |12  they're written, if there's -- if there is some
13 them to invest more money in the product? 13  extra payment that's due for other markets, that
14 THE WITNESS: Exactly, exactly. 14  could be considered.
15 But in terms of setting the -- the 15 But I'm just saying, generally
16  price for the particular DVD, in that case, or 16  speaking, that once a program is -- is already
17  foreign rental or something like that, once it is 17  produced or transmitted, in this case, to the
18  produced and, now, we're -- now, we're saying how |18  local broadcast market, then, afterwards -- then
19  much -- how much should we charge you in France, [19  any resale of that type program would be -- in
20  well, we're going to charge you based on what you |20  this retransmission would be based on demand, not
21  would pay; and over in England, we'll charge you 21  on the cost of the program, which has already
22 based on what you will pay. 22 sunk.
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1 Q. Are you assuming the same -- the same 1 I will spend just a few minutes
2 economic model for programs -- are you talking 2 introducing our particular witnesses and
3 about programs that were on network first and then 3 explaining how our evidence will fit within the
4  sort of -- or are you talking about all syndicated 4 overall case of the Settling Parties.
5  programs? 5 Our evidence will support the use of
6 A. No. I was talking about programs that 6  the Bortz -- of the Bortz studies to measure the
7  are preexisting. It wouldn't have to be network 7  relative value -- relative market value of distant
8  or -- they would have already had to be in first 8  signal programs.
9  run, not starting over, not a program, like 9 In addition, we hope to provide
10  Oprah Winfrey, that is produced anew each day. 10  information about our own programming and about
11 Allright? 11  the cable distant signal marketplace that will
12 I'm talking about a program that 12 ultimately corroborate the Bortz shares.
13  already exists, like a movie that was already 13 CTV is presenting the testimony of four
14  made, a TV show that was already made. Whetherit |14  witnesses. Our first witness will be
15  was first shown on -- on the network or on HBO, it |15  Rick Ducey -- Richard Ducey, the chief strategy
16  was already made. 16  officer for BIA/Kelsey who has been performing
17 Q. So you're saying that comment, then, 17  research and analysis in the television and cable
18  would not apply to first-run syndication? 18 industries for over 25 years.
19 A. In -- in selling the first-run 19 Dr. Ducey will present three studies,
20  syndication product, but it would apply in a re -- 20  the first showing the cable distant signal
21  to all programming -- for all retransmitted 21  programming marketplace; the second showing the
22 programming. 22 relative amounts of nonnetwork programming that
Page 523 Page 525
1 MR. OLANIRAN: Okay. Thank you. 1  are retransmitted in the distant signal
2 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Thank you, ma'am. 2 marketplace; and, third, he will provide
3 THE WITNESS: Thank you much. 3 information, a study that shows the geographic
4 CHIEF JUDGE SLEDGE: Commercial 4 clustering of the carriage of distant signals.
5  Television? 5 Now, he provides this information both
6 OPENING STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF 6  for 2004 and 2005, but also as compared with the
7 COMMERCIAL TELEVISION CLAIMANTS GROUP| 7  similar studies, comparable studies that have been
8 MR. STEWART: Good afternoon, 8  presented in prior proceedings so as to provide a
9  Your Honors. I'm John Stewart, and I'm 9  basis for comparison about changes in the cable
10  representing Commericial Television Claimants 10  distant signal marketplace over these periods of
11  Group in this proceeding, sometimes referred to as 11  time.
12 "CTV." 12 The periods of time he's going to cover
13 CTV represents all of the U.S. 13 are the ones that -- about which we've litigated,
14  commercial television stations that are 14  because those are the ones that studies have been
15  retransmitted as distant signals in the 15  done for.
16  United States in connection with claims for their 16 Now, the purpose of Dr. Ducey's studies
17  own programs. 17  isnot to present you with yet another alternative
18 With me today are my colleagues from 18  measure of relative market value. Instead, they
19  Crowell & Moring, Jennifer Burdman and Ann Mace. 19  will provide you descriptive context which we hope
20 Now, the Commercial Television 20  will help in understanding and evaluating the
21  Claimants, as you know, are part of the 21  relevant measures of relative marketplace value,
22 Settling Parties Group. 22 in particular, the Bortz study.
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Proof of Delivery

| hereby certify that on Friday, December 19, 2025, | provided a true and correct copy of the
2018-2021 CD - PTV WRS Volume Il of Il (PUBLIC) to the following:

American Society of Composers, Authors and Publishers, represented by Sam Mosenkis,
served via E-Service at smosenkis@ascap.com

Broadcast Music, Inc., represented by Brian A Coleman, served via E-Service at
Brian.Coleman@faegredrinker.com

Broadcast Music, Inc., ASCAP, SESAC (joint participants), represented by Jennifer T. Criss,
served via E-Service at jennifer.criss@faegredrinker.com

Canadian Claimants Group, represented by Lawrence K Satterfield, served via E-Service at
Iksatterfield@satterfield-plic.com

Commercial Television Claimants, represented by David J Ervin, served via E-Service at
dervin@crowell.com

Devotional Claimants, represented by Arnold P Lutzker, served via E-Service at
arnie@lutzker.com

Global Music Rights, LLC, represented by Scott A Zebrak, served via E-Service at
carly@oandzlaw.com

Joint Sports Claimants, represented by Michael E Kientzle, served via E-Service at
michael.kientzle@arnoldporter.com

Major League Soccer, L.L.C., represented by Edward S. Hammerman, served via E-Service
at ted@copyrightroyalties.com

Multigroup Claimants, represented by Brian D Boydston, served via E-Service at
brianb@ix.netcom.com

Powell, David, represented by David Powell, served via E-Service at
davidpowell008@yahoo.com



Program Suppliers, represented by Lucy H Plovnick, served via E-Service at lhp@msk.com

SESAC Performing Rights, LLC, represented by Christos P Badavas, served via E-Service
at chadavas@sesac.com

Signed: /s/ Dustin Cho
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